Corporate Services
Dean Taylor, Deputy Chief Executive and Director

TO: ALL MEMBERS OF THE COUNCIL Your Ref:
Our Ref:  CC/SAHC

Please ask for: Mrs S Cole
Direct Line / Extension:  (01432) 260249
Fax: (01432)

E-mail:  scole@herefordshire.gov.uk

23 February 2012
Dear Councillor

YOU ARE HEREBY SUMMONED to attend the meeting of the Herefordshire Council to be
held on Friday 2 March 2012 at The Shirehall, St Peter's Square, Hereford. at 2.00 pm at
which the business set out in the attached agenda is proposed to be transacted.

Please note that car parking will be available at the Shirehall for elected Members.

Yours sincerely

B Glofoan

C CHAPMAN
ASSISTANT DIRECTOR LAW, GOVERNANCE AND RESILIENCE

Working in partnership for the people of Herefordshire

240, Brockington, 35 Hafod Road, Hereford HR1 1ZT
Herefordshire Council Main Switchboard (01432) 260000, www.herefordshire.gov.uk
NHS Herefordshire Main Switchboard (01432) 344344, www.herefordshire.nhs.uk






5 Herefordshire
Council

AGENDA

Council

Date: Friday 2 March 2012

Time: 2.00 pm

Place:  The Shirehall, St Peter's Square, Hereford.

Notes:  Please note the time, date and venue of the meeting.
For any further information please contact:

Sally Cole, Committee Manager Executive
Tel: 01432 260249
Email: scole@herefordshire.gov.uk

If you would like help to understand this document, or would like it in
another format or language, please call Sally Cole, Committee Manager
Executive on 01432 260249 or e-mail scole@herefordshire.gov.uk in
advance of the meeting.



Agenda for the Meeting of the Council

Membership

Chairman
Vice-Chairman

Councillor LO Barnett
Councillor ACR Chappell

Councillor PA Andrews
Councillor CNH Attwood
Councillor PL Bettington
Councillor WLS Bowen
Councillor AN Bridges
Councillor EMK Chave
Councillor PGH Cutter
Councillor PJ Edwards
Councillor KS Guthrie
Councillor J Hardwick
Councillor AJ Hempton-Smith
Councillor MAF Hubbard
Councillor JA Hyde
Councillor JG Jarvis
Councillor Brig P Jones CBE
Councillor JF Knipe
Councillor MD Lloyd-Hayes
Councillor Rl Matthews
Councillor SM Michael
Councillor PM Morgan
Councillor C Nicholls
Councillor RJ Phillips
Councillor GJ Powell
Councillor PD Price
Councillor P Rone
Councillor P Sinclair-Knipe
Councillor GR Swinford
Councillor DB Wilcox

Councillor AM Atkinson
Councillor CM Bartrum
Councillor AJM Blackshaw
Councillor H Bramer
Councillor MJK Cooper
Councillor BA Durkin
Councillor DW Greenow
Councillor RB Hamilton
Councillor EPJ Harvey
Councillor JW Hope MBE
Councillor RC Hunt
Councillor TM James
Councillor AW Johnson
Councillor JLV Kenyon
Councillor JG Lester
Councillor G Lucas
Councillor PJ McCaull
Councillor JW Millar
Councillor NP Nenadich
Councillor FM Norman
Councillor GA Powell
Councillor R Preece
Councillor SJ Robertson
Councillor A Seldon
Councillor J Stone
Councillor DC Taylor
Councillor PJ Watts
Councillor JD Woodward

GUIDANCE ON DECLARING PERSONAL AND PREJUDICIAL INTERESTS AT MEETINGS

The Council's Members’ Code of Conduct requires Councillors to declare against an Agenda item(s)
the nature of an interest and whether the interest is personal or prejudicial. Councillors have to decide
first whether or not they have a personal interest in the matter under discussion. They will then have to
decide whether that personal interest is also prejudicial.

A personal interest is an interest that affects the Councillor more than most other people in the area.
People in the area include those who live, work or have property in the area of the Council. Councillors
will also have a personal interest if their partner, relative or a close friend, or an organisation that they
or the member works for, is affected more than other people in the area. If they do have a personal
interest, they must declare it but can stay and take part and vote in the meeting.

Whether an interest is prejudicial is a matter of judgement for each Councillor. What Councillors have
to do is ask themselves whether a member of the public — if he or she knew all the facts — would think
that the Councillor’s interest was so important that their decision would be affected by it. If a Councillor
has a prejudicial interest then they must declare what that interest is. A Councillor who has declared a
prejudicial interest at a meeting may nevertheless be able to address that meeting, but only in
circumstances where an ordinary member of the public would be also allowed to speak. In such
circumstances, the Councillor concerned will have the same opportunity to address the meeting and on
the same terms. However, a Councillor exercising their ability to speak in these circumstances must
leave the meeting immediately after they have spoken.



HEREFORDSHIRE COUNCIL 2 MARCH 2012

AGENDA

Pages

1. APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE
To receive apologies for absence.
2, DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST

To receive any declarations of interest by Members in respect of items on the
Agenda.

3. MINUTES 1-10
To approve and sign the Minutes of the meeting held on 3 February 2012.
4, CHAIRMAN'S ANNOUNCEMENTS

To receive the Chairman's announcements and petitions from members of
the public.

5. QUESTIONS FROM MEMBERS OF THE PUBLIC 11-20
To receive questions from members of the public.

6. FORMAL QUESTIONS FROM COUNCILLORS TO THE CABINET
MEMBERS AND CHAIRMEN UNDER STANDING ORDERS

To receive any written questions from Councillors.
7. NOTICES OF MOTION UNDER STANDING ORDERS

Three Notices of Motion have been submitted for consideration by Council.

Notice of Motion One
Submitted by Councillor P Sinclair-Knipe.

In order to honour The Rifles Regiment for their service in Iraq and
Afghanistan, | ask that Council formally adopts The Rifles as the County
Regiment. This in no way cuts across the Freedom that The Rifles have
been granted by Hereford City Council and the Town Councils of Leominster
and Ross-on-Wye.

This adoption does not give the Regiment any specific privileges, but it does
recognise the sacrifices made by Herefordians serving with The Rifles and its
predecessors going back to the Herefordshire Rifle Volunteers formed in
1861.

Notice of Motion Two
Submitted by Councillor AJM Blackshaw.

Mindful that we are a Christian society and respectful of all religions,
we strongly deprecate the High Court Judgment on 10 February 2012
by Mr Justice Ouseley concerning prayers at Council meetings.

It is the intention of Herefordshire Council to continue with the practice of
preceding the full Council agenda with prayers. This Council earnestly
requests the Prime Minister and all church leaders to support us in this action.




10.

11.

12.

13.

14.

15.

16.

Notice of Motion Three
Submitted by Councillor Rl Matthews.

This Council notes the concerns of many Council Members regarding the
present trend of allocating ever-increasing powers and expenditure to
Hereford Futures, which is a body run by an un-elected and unaccountable
group of people.

This is also the view of a number of well-known and respected local
businessmen, who are frequently querying the value of this organisation.

This Council therefore moves that for greater accountability and transparency
elected Members be more frequently appraised of Hereford Futures activities
and access be provided to Company Minutes plus any other appropriate
records as and when this is requested.

LEADER'S REPORT

To receive the Leader’s report, which provides an overview of the Executive’s
activity since the last Council meeting.

PRAYERS AT COUNCIL MEETINGS

To continue the practice of opening a Council meeting with prayers but with
specific regard to Section 1 of the Localism Act 2011

COUNCIL TAX RESOLUTION 2012/13

To calculate the Council’'s Council Tax Requirement and set the Council Tax
amounts for each category of dwelling in Herefordshire for 2012/13.

ELECTORAL REVIEW OF HEREFORDSHIRE: COUNCIL SIZE SUBMISSION

To consider and approve the proposed submission to the Local Government
Boundary Commission, in respect of council size.

COMMUNITY GOVERNANCE REVIEW - ROSS-ON-WYE

To advise Members of a request by Ross Town Council, supported by Ross
Rural Parish Council, for a community governance review of their areas; to
make provision for such reviews to be undertaken by Audit and Governance
Committee; and to provide an aspirational timetable.

PAY POLICY STATEMENT
To approve a pay policy statement for the authority.
STANDARDS COMMITTEE

To receive the report and to consider any recommendations to Council arising
from the meeting/s held on 10 November 2011 and 13 January 2012.

HEREFORD & WORCESTER FIRE AND RESCUE AUTHORITY

To receive the report of the meetings of the Hereford & Worcester Fire and
Rescue Authority held on 14 December 2011.

WEST MERCIA POLICE AUTHORITY

To receive the report of the meeting of the West Mercia Police Authority held
on 13 December 2011. Councillor WLS Bowen has been nominated for the
purpose of answering questions on the discharge of the functions of the
Police Authority.

21-24

25-26

27 -50

51-90

91-96

97 - 106

107 - 110

111 -114

115-120



The Public’s Rights to Information and Attendance at Meetings

YOU HAVE A RIGHT TO:-

e Attend all Council, Cabinet, Committee and Sub-Committee meetings unless the business
to be transacted would disclose ‘confidential’ or ‘exempt' information.

¢ Inspect agenda and public reports at least five clear days before the date of the meeting.

e Inspect minutes of the Council and all Committees and Sub-Committees and written
statements of decisions taken by the Cabinet or individual Cabinet Members for up to six
years following a meeting.

e Inspect background papers used in the preparation of public reports for a period of up to
four years from the date of the meeting. (A list of the background papers to a report is
given at the end of each report). A background paper is a document on which the officer
has relied in writing the report and which otherwise is not available to the public.

e Access to a public Register stating the names, addresses and wards of all Councillors with
details of the membership of the Cabinet, of all Committees and Sub-Committees.

e Have a reasonable number of copies of agenda and reports (relating to items to be
considered in public) made available to the public attending meetings of the Council,
Committees and Sub-Committees.

e Have access to a list specifying those powers on which the Council have delegated
decision making to their officers identifying the officers concerned by title.

e Copy any of the documents mentioned above to which you have a right of access, subject
to a reasonable charge (20p per sheet subject to a maximum of £5.00 per agenda plus a
nominal fee of £1.50, for postage).

e Access to this summary of your rights as members of the public to attend meetings of the
Council, Cabinet, Committees and Sub-Committees and to inspect and copy documents.

e A member of the public may, at a meeting of the full Council, ask a Cabinet Member or
Chairman of a Committee any question relevant to a matter in relation to which the Council
has powers or duties or which affects the County as long as a copy of that question is
deposited with the Monitoring Officer eight clear working days before the meeting i.e. by
12:00 noon on a Monday in the week preceding a Friday meeting.

Public Transport Links

e The Shirehall is ten minutes walking distance from both bus stations located in the town
centre of Hereford. A map showing the location of the Shirehall is found opposite.

% without bleaching and free from optical brightening agents (OBA). Awarded the Nordic Swan for low

@ Where possible this agenda is printed on paper made from 100% Post-Consumer waste. De-inked
<9 emissions during production and the Blue Angel environmental label.

$0300krdg.doc






LAPY

1 s REFQO
2 CPEOs,

ROMAN ROAD ROMAN ROAD N

T

HEREFORD
RACECOURSE

Whitecross School

A3y #{

WORCESTER

A Si3 §

&/
w
[N

B
&

BISHOP'S
MEADOW

Q"""E’

10

ROTHERWAS

TO ROSS-0ON-WYE /

Brockington 7 Kemble House __ _i=s e i
Town Hall 8 Trinity House -
| Shire Hall | 9 Thorn Office Centre

Education Centre 10 Herefordshire Commercial Services
Garrick House 11 Merchant House
Bath Street 12 Plough Lane

W AN -






FIRE AND EMERGENCY
EVACUATION PROCEDURE

IN CASE OF FIRE

(no matter how small)

1. Sound the Alarm
2. Call the Fire Brigade

3. Fire party - attack the fire with appliances available.

ON HEARING THE ALARM

Leave the building by the nearest exit and
proceed to assembly area on:

GAOL STREET CAR PARK

Section Heads will call the roll at the place of assembly.

$4s2xd53d.doc






AGENDA ITEM 3

HEREFORDSHIRE COUNCIL

MINUTES of the meeting of Council held at The Shirehall, St
Peter's Square, Hereford. on Friday 3 February 2012 at 10.30 am

Present: Councillor LO Barnett (Chairman)

Councillor ACR Chappell (Vice Chairman)

Councillors: PA Andrews, AM Atkinson, CNH Attwood, CM Bartrum,
PL Bettington, AJM Blackshaw, WLS Bowen, H Bramer, AN Bridges,
EMK Chave, MJK Cooper, PGH Cutter, BA Durkin, PJ Edwards, DW Greenow,
KS Guthrie, RB Hamilton, J Hardwick, EPJ Harvey, AJ Hempton-Smith,
JW Hope MBE, MAF Hubbard, RC Hunt, JA Hyde, TM James, JG Jarvis,
AW Johnson, Brig P Jones CBE, JLV Kenyon, JF Knipe, JG Lester, MD Lloyd-
Hayes, RI Matthews, PJ McCaull, SM Michael, JW Millar, PM Morgan,
NP Nenadich, C Nicholls, FM Norman, RJ Phillips, GJ Powell, R Preece,
PD Price, P Rone, A Seldon, P Sinclair-Knipe, J Stone, GR Swinford, DC Taylor,
DB Wilcox and JD Woodward

48.

49.

50.

51.

PRAYERS

The Very Reverend Nicholas Bury lead the Council in prayer.

APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE

Apologies had been received from Councillors: G Lucas, GA Powell and SJ Robertson.

Note: Council TM James was present at the beginning of the meeting but then needed to
leave the meeting after agenda item 1 and was absent for the remainder of the
meeting.

DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST
There were no declarations of interest.
MINUTES

The Minutes of the Council meeting held on 18 November 2011 were presented to Council
for approval. Arising out of the minutes under Notice of Motion one a discussion took place.
The leader of the It's Our County group questioned the accuracy of the minute and in
particular minute number 36 bullet point 5, as he considered it did not fully reflect the
discussion that had taken place about the percentage of objections to the relief road.
However, others contested the need to amend the minute and no agreement was finally
reached as to the accuracy of this point.

That the Minutes of the Council meeting held on 18 November 2011 were approved as
a correct record, subject to the following amendments:

Chairman’s Announcements — The Chairman received a petition from Councillor
KS Guthrie on behalf of the Keep Queens Wood Free Campaign, which was handed to the
Cabinet Member Highways, Transportation and Waste.




52.

53.

54.

Item 36 Notices of Motion (Transposition of voting figures).
Notice of Motion one - Council’'s Commitment to Reduce the Threat of Rural Isolation.

It was moved and seconded that the motion be put whereupon a vote was taken:

For:

48

Against: 0
Abstentions: 0

The Notice of Motion was declared carried with:

For:

37

Against: 0
Abstentions: 16

Item 37 Leader’s Report — Rural Members’ Forum. The Leader was asked if there
might be a similar informal Members’ Forum for urban wards and the market towns. The
Leader invited Members to put forward proposals for his consideration.

CHAIRMAN'S ANNOUNCEMENTS

The Chairman, in her announcements, informed Council that:

The March meeting of Council would be held at 2.00 pm on Friday 2 March and
not the usual time of 10.30 am.

The Chairman would be writing to the Lord Chamberlain’s office on behalf of
Herefordshire Council and residents to convey loyal greetings and
congratulations to Her Majesty on the occasion of her Diamond Jubilee.

The Chairman congratulated Matthew Hunt, a teacher at Kingstone High School,
on winning the Classic FM New Music Teacher of the Year Award, presented to
him at the Albert Hall, London in November by Tim Loughton MP, Parliamentary
Under Secretary of State for Children and Families. The award was created by
the judges in recognition of the talent and achievements of an exceptional music
teacher at the start of their career. The Chairman added that she would be
writing a letter of congratulations to Mr Hunt also.

Council was informed that the officer/member Goodwill Group had raised another
£1,500.0 in 2011 in support of Macmillan Cancer Care, St Michael’'s Hospice,
The Charles Renton Unit and Help for Heroes.

The Chairman reminded Council of the work of the Hope Support Charity and
informed Council that the charity were looking for volunteers to take part in a
tandem skydive in April to raise money for the charity.

The Civic Service would be held on Sunday 25 March at the Cathedral followed
by tea at the Town Hall.

The Chairman presented to the Cabinet Member Corporate Services and
Education a certificate granting Herefordshire Council license as an Operating
Authority of the Duke of Edinburgh’s Award.

QUESTIONS FROM MEMBERS OF THE PUBLIC

There were no public questions received which met the criteria of provision 4.1.14 of the
Council’'s Constitution.

FORMAL QUESTIONS FROM COUNCILLORS TO THE CABINET MEMBERS AND
CHAIRMEN UNDER STANDING ORDERS



55.

A copy of the Member questions and written answers, together with the supplementary
guestions and answers asked at the meeting, are attached to the Minutes as Appendix
1.

DRAFT FINANCIAL STRATEGY AND BUDGET 2012/13

The Leader of the Council presented the Draft Financial Strategy and Budget 2012/13 to
Council and made the following points:

e Herefordshire is a unique county but it had to face the same challenges that all
councils had with a limited budget.

Officers need to work closely with Cabinet to make savings and create income.

e Need to continue to work with the Health Service partners and Health
Commissioners to strength the partnership.

o Essential to transform services to provide value for money in the way the
authority worked with other service providers and to continue to deliver on key
projects which would maintain financial stability.

e Propose to accept one year additional tax freeze grant worth £2.2m to freeze
Council tax for a second year. Part of the additional grant funding to be used for
a one off change and improvement programme.

e Cabinet agreed to an increase in the level of fees and charges. This is currently
being reviewed by the Overview and Scrutiny Committee.

¢ In looking to make a saving of £200k from the waste contract a scheme to fund
black refuse sacks through sponsorship and advertising is being considered and
will be put before Members.

e Capital programme — the broadband project is a significant project which will
provide support to the infra structure of Herefordshire and help businesses that
are struggling to have good communications. The programme includes funding
for a replacement archives facility, which will be met within a set budget and a
link road, funding for which could be raised using the low interest rates currently
available.

e Significant changes in the way local government is funded as a result of the
Localism Act. Electorate to have a greater say in the levels of Council tax
increases. 2013 the Council will collect business rates in Herefordshire. It is
clear from the government proposals that the Council will be expected to retain
and increase business rates in Herefordshire.

o Engagement with the public is needed to help shape resources and a long term
vision and plan is being prepared by the administration to shape the county’s
future through to 2020.

The Leader referred to the recommendations of the report and moved acceptance of the
recommendations as outlined on page 35 of the agenda. The Cabinet Member
Corporate Services and Education seconded the proposal.

The following points were made in discussion:

e In response to a question on the sustainability of the borrowing in the capital
programme the Cabinet Member Corporate Services and Education referred
Council to pages 119 to 120 of the report where Members could see that the
amount of potential borrowing was significantly higher than the actual borrowing
undertaken. Additionally in benchmarking against other unitary authorities
Herefordshire is placed 24™ out of 35 unitaries and was well within the middle
range and sustainable. The Leader added that funding could also come through
government grants or contributions in other ways, but it was essential to secure
potential funding in case it was required and stated it was intended to borrow as
little as possible.



Some Members were apprehensive over the freezing of Council tax and the
potential higher Council tax having to be imposed in future years. It was felt that
a modest rise was a more realistic way ahead rather than a freeze on Council tax
and possible large increase in following years. It was also felt that residents
already paid for the cost of black refuse sacks in their Council tax.

Councillors welcomed the proposal for a staff car parking charge but were
disappointed it was not being instigated sooner and felt this gave the wrong
message to the public. It was suggested the charge should cover all staff and
Councillors and should be graded so that those on lower incomes should pay
less for car parking.

With reference to Adult Social Care Members were grateful for the additional
information provided by the Director, but there was unease as the information
only related to savings and did not take into account there had been year on year
overspend of the budget.

In referring to the link road funding it was thought it was to be funded through
Advantage West Midlands. It was believed by some Members that a link road
would not provide any advantage to residents. In response the Cabinet Member
stated that a link road would be essential for the building of affordable homes and
to reduce traffic in Newmarket and Blue School streets and to create a
pedestrianized area around Garrick House.

In referring to the consultation on the budget and the lack of engagement with the
public at public meetings, it was noted that only 250 people had attended the
meetings held across the county. Members felt that too much reliance had been
placed on the answers given at the meetings, as some of the choices in the
questions were so worded that it was difficult for people to provide an accurate or
informed answer.

Unease was expressed over the lowering of the amount of reserves held for the
Waste Disposal contract and future landfill charges, which was now down to
£1.9m. Additionally there was concern that the budget would increase the
Council’s borrowing and reduce reserves.

Members agreed that austerity measures were required but believed that cuts in
the youth service would mean there would be little support for the youth of the
county.

A question was asked about the Amey Wye Valley Hereford contract and
whether the contract was still to be negotiated and what savings were being
made. The Cabinet Member informed Council that the current savings from the
joint working with Amey amounted to approximately £23m and assured the
Councillor that he would provide a more detailed breakdown to the Member
direct.

Reference was made to the change programme now called the transformation
programme and the difficulty in following the changes in the budget when the
titles of projects were changed. In referring to the Corporate directorate and the
reduction in the management posts, it was felt that this was still taking some time
in completing.

In referring to the budget report and the use of the terminology ‘quick win’ some
Members felt it was inappropriate as any additional cost for parking, pre-
application planning advice or transport to school would directly affect the budget
of residents.

It was requested that assurances were provided that discussion would be held on
the rents proposed for the new retail quarter on the Edgar Street Grid in order
that the site rents did not jeopardise the shop rents for the centre of High Town.

In responding to a question on why Members had not been informed on how
much had been spent on Hereford Futures over the last four years. The Leader
assured the Member the information he had requested would be provided.

Some Members expressed concern at the £3.2m grant funding allocated for the
upgrading of Broad Street.



¢ In referring to local government funding it was noted that Herefordshire was one
of the lowest funded areas, however, a different mechanism for calculating
funding would be brought in next year which would take into account the rurality
of areas.

¢ In response to a question on what the administration was doing to ensure fairer
funding for the county, the Leader advised Members of the meetings that he and
the Cabinet Member for Enterprise and Culture had had with the Prime Minister
and Government Ministers and the lobbying that had been done as a whole by
rural authorities joining together as a group to be more effective.

In rounding up the debate the Deputy Leader reminded Council of the savings that had
been made through redundancies or the transfer of staff over to the new partner
organisation Hoople Ltd and emphasised the need to deliver services within the
proposed budget.

The recommendations were put to the vote and carried:

For: 29
Against: 9
Abstentions: 14

RESOLVED
THAT:

a) The Medium Term Financial Strategy (MTFS) shown in Appendix
A to the report, which includes the 2012/13 budget and Treasury
Management Strategy and Policy Statement be approved;

b) A freeze of Council Tax for 2012/13 at 2011/12 levels be
approved;

c) The Capital Programme outlined in paragraph 67 of the report be
approved; and

d) Officers be required to further assess those elements which are
perceived as engaging the Council’s duties under the Equalities
Act 2010 (including those at paragraphs 48/49, 55-58 and 69) and
report further on any necessary amendments to this budgetary
framework.

The meeting ended at 12.55 pm CHAIRMAN






Appendix 1

MEMBERS’ QUESTIONS TO COUNCIL - 3 FEBRUARY 2012

Question from Councillor EMK Chave of Councillor PD Price, Cabinet
Member, Corporate Services and Education

1 By what process is monitoring of actual savings and overspends
against each year’s budget carried out? We are often told that a
strategy will achieve such and such a percentage saving. Who checks
this is real, and to whom do they report?

Answer from Councillor PD Price Cabinet Member, Corporate Services
and Education

Answer to question 1

Savings and overspends form part of the Council’'s overall net budget
monitoring, reported regularly to Cabinet (the reports being available on the
council web site). In addition the directorates have more detailed challenge
and review processes supported by their accountants. All savings proposals
undergo a rigorous challenge process before they are adopted.

Question from Councillor EMK Chave of Councillor PD Price, Cabinet
Member, Corporate Services and Education

2 In the interests of openness, transparency and accountability to the
general public whose money the Council spends, and whom they
serve, why are the budgets and accounts presented in such a
confusing way? Apparently even accountants, who like looking at
figures, find them obscure and potentially misleading!

Answer from Councillor PD Price Cabinet Member, Corporate Services
and Education

Answer to question 2

All English and Welsh councils’ published accounts must comply with the
Chartered Institute of Public Finance and Accountancy Code of Practice on
Local Authority Accounting, which consolidates the statutory and accounting
standards the council is legally required to follow including, since 2010/11,
compliance with International Financial Reporting Standards. The Audit
Commission have commented favourably on our approach

The council presents its overall budget envelope as part of its financial plan
and has used this approach for a number of years.

In addition, to accompany the council tax notifications sent to each household
in the county every March, we provide a summary guide to explain how

D:\moderngov\Data\AgendaltemDocs\6\0\0\Al00026006\$zmwjdhtm.doc



Appendix 1

MEMBERS’ QUESTIONS TO COUNCIL - 3 FEBRUARY 2012

council tax payers’ money is used; these guides are also available on the
council website.
Supplementary Question

In referring to her earlier question Councillor Chave stated she expected to
see laid before Council with this year’s budget, the headings and figures for
last year’s budget, along with the actual income and expenditure in columns
and an explanatory note if required. Without this information the Councillor
believed Council could not make an informed decision on the budget. May
Council expect for next year the budget is laid out with this information?

Answer from Councillor PD Price, Cabinet Member Corporate Services
and Education

The Cabinet Member stated that the presentation of the report would be
looked at in time for next year's budget to ensure absolute transparency. It
was added that the Audit Commission had been pleased with the Council’s
budget report and statement of accounts.

Question from Councillor MAF Hubbard of Councillor PD Price, Cabinet
Member Corporate Services and Education

Question 3 disallowed on the grounds that it is frivolous or otherwise out of
order, see Herefordshire Council Constitution Part 4, 4.1.15.4 b.

Question from Councillor Rl Matthews of Councillor PM Morgan, Cabinet
Member, Health and Wellbeing

4 A recent report for Herefordshire Council Health and Wellbeing Board
stated that about 4,500 children in the county — the majority of them
under 16 years — are said to be growing up in poverty. Can the
Cabinet Member please inform Members of what action is being taken
to address this frankly shocking issue? (Council Agenda page 72,
bullet point 5 — Deprivation.)

Answer from Councillor PM Morgan Cabinet Member, Health and
Wellbeing

Answer to question 4

This question illustrates the great importance of one of the six priorities in the

joint corporate plan which is to “Create a thriving economy” hence increasing
employment opportunities and wage levels.

D:\moderngov\Data\AgendaltemDocs\6\0\0\Al00026006\$zmwjdhtm.doc



Appendix 1

MEMBERS’ QUESTIONS TO COUNCIL - 3 FEBRUARY 2012

There are many actions that have and will be taken to improve the economic
prosperity of Herefordshire such as:

» Improving Broadband coverage

» Development of the Enterprise Zone at Rotherwas
» Relief road around Hereford

» Hereford Futures

» Adoption of the Local Development Framework

| look forward to all groups supporting us in these ventures.

A county-wide strategy (a draft of which is available at the following weblink:

http://councillors.herefordshire.gov.uk/documents/s50003630/Child%20Poverty%20S
trateqy%20FINAL%20DRAFT%20December%202011%20-%20Appendix.pdf) to
address this important issue is scheduled for consideration by Cabinet on 16th
February, having been endorsed by the Health & Wellbeing Board in January.

Supplementary Question

Can the Cabinet Member assure Council that this matter will be closely
monitored and that the administration will do all that it can to improve the
situation for young people?

Answer from Councillor PM Morgan Cabinet Member, Health and
Wellbeing

The Cabinet Member welcomed the question from the Councillor and agreed
this was a serious issue. The matter was being discussed by young people at
the young people’s forum this week. The matter would also be brought before
the Health and Wellbeing Board and Cabinet.

Question from Councillor GA Powell of Councillor JG Jarvis, Leader of
the Council

Question 5 disallowed on the grounds that it is out of order and the decision is
at the discretion of the Chairman, see Herefordshire Council Constitution Part
4,41.154band 4.1.7.1.

D:\moderngov\Data\AgendaltemDocs\6\0\0\Al00026006\$zmwjdhtm.doc



10



AGENDA ITEM 5

Herefordshire

Council
MEETING: COUNCIL
DATE: 2 MARCH 2012

TITLE OF REPORT: | QUESTIONS FROM MEMBERS OF THE PUBLIC

REPORT BY: ASSISTANT DIRECTOR LAW, GOVERNANCE AND
RESILIENCE

CLASSIFICATION: Open

Wards Affected

County-wide

Purpose

To receive any questions from members of the public deposited more than eight clear working days
before the meeting of Council.

Introduction and Background

1

Members of the public may ask a question of a Cabinet Member or Committee or other
Chairmen. Written answers will be circulated to Members, the press and public prior to the
start of the Council meeting. Questions subject to a Freedom of Information request will be
dealt with under that separate process.

Standing Order 4.1.14.4 of the Constitution states that: a question may only be asked if notice
has been given by delivering it in writing or by electronic mail to the Monitoring Officer no later
than midday eight clear working days before the day of the meeting (ie the Monday of the
week preceding the Council meeting where that meeting is on a Friday). Each question must
give the name and address of the questioner and must name the person to whom it is to be
put.

A questioner who has submitted a written question may also put one brief supplementary
question without notice to the person (if s/he is present at the meeting) who has replied to his
or her original question. A supplementary question must arise directly out of the original
request or reply. The Chairman may reject a supplementary question on any of the grounds
for rejecting written questions set out in these Council rules or if the question is too lengthy, is
in multiple parts or takes the form of a speech. In any event, any person asking a
supplementary question will be permitted only 1 minute to do so.

The Monitoring Officer may reject a question or a supplemental question if it:

Is not about a matter for which the Council has a responsibility or which affects the County or
a part of it;

Is illegal, scurrilous, defamatory, frivolous or offensive or otherwise out of order;

Further information on the subject of this report is available from
Chris Chapman, Assistant Director Law, Governance and Resilience on (01432) 260200

$n3ulu3sm.doc

11



Is substantially the same as or similar to a question which has been put at a meeting of the
Council in the past six months or relates to the same subject matter or the answer to the
question will be substantially the same as the previous answer;

Requires the disclosure of confidential or exempt information;
Relates to a planning or licensing application;

Relates to an employment matter that should more properly be dealt with through the
Council’'s Human Resources processes.

There will be a time limit of a maximum of 30 minutes for public questions and of 30 minutes
for Members’ questions. If either public or Member questions are concluded in less than 30
minutes, then the Chairman may allow more time for either public or Member questions within
an overall time limit of one hour for all questions and supplementary questions. There will
normally be no extension of time beyond one hour, unless the Chairman decides that there
are reasonable grounds to allow such an extension, and questions not dealt with in this time
will be dealt with by written response. The Chairman will decide the time allocated to each
question. The register of questions put to the Council meeting, both questions allowed or
rejected, is available at a Council meeting for members of the public to view.

Questions

Eight questions have been received by the deadline and are attached at Appendix 1.

12



Appendix 1
PUBLIC QUESTIONS TO COUNCIL - 2 MARCH 2012

Question from Mr A Powers, Hereford

Question 1

The budget is proposing further savings in school transport of £220K. The Council's own
Local Sustainability Transport Fund bid in April 2011 stated that school traffic could
account for a doubling of numbers of vehicles on some radial routes into Hereford during
term time. If this analysis is correct would not congestion in the city be more efficiently and
swiftly addressed if the £300K to be allocated to yet another relief road study were instead
to be spent on improving sustainable transport measures for local schools and residents?

13



Appendix 1
PUBLIC QUESTIONS TO COUNCIL - 2 MARCH 2012

Question from Mrs E Morawiecka, Breinton, Hereford

Question 2

"Herefordshire Council believed that the 1% decrease in traffic volume in 2009/10 was a
response to high fuel prices (report to Environment Scrutiny Nov 2010, page 23). As diesel
and petrol prices have increased since then by 15% and 12% respectively and with a
further duty increase of 3.02p/l due to be implemented on 1% August 2012, what motor

vehicle traffic volumes are the transport department forecasting for Hereford City in their
Local Transport Plan 3?"

14



Appendix 1
PUBLIC QUESTIONS TO COUNCIL - 2 MARCH 2012

Question from Mrs J Morris, Hereford

Question 3

Herefordshire Council supplies a number of private limited companies with staff on
secondment and also provides legal and other professional services by sharing public
employees. As these private companies have no clear reporting structure to Herefordshire
Council, could you tell me the total cost of staff seconded to these companies in the last 3
years and could you include the cost of the hours of professional advice provided by local
tax payers through council employees working for these companies?

15



Appendix 1
PUBLIC QUESTIONS TO COUNCIL - 2 MARCH 2012

Question from Ms C Protherough, Clehonger, Hereford

Question 4

"What is the anticipated impact by 2020 of the ageing population on estimated car use in
Herefordshire, taking into account that older people are more likely to rely on public
transport, or if still driving use their vehicles for less frequent and shorter journeys ? in
addition in the same period what is the projected increase or decrease in school age
children needing transport at peak hours?

16



Appendix 1
PUBLIC QUESTIONS TO COUNCIL - 2 MARCH 2012

Question from Mr S Brown, Bucknell
Question 5

When will the Council publish the results of last year's consultation on the revised Local
Development Framework and the current Local Development Scheme?

17



Appendix 1
PUBLIC QUESTIONS TO COUNCIL - 2 MARCH 2012

Question from Mr M Moore, Bredenbury, Herefordshire
Question 6

In March 2011, the Parliamentary Under Secretary of State for Transport, Norman Baker,
announced additional (transitional revenue) funding to support local transport authorities
and communities specifically in the development of community transport services. He
stated that he did not expect authorities to use the extra DfT funding to displace planned
expenditure on community transport for 2011/12. Under this arrangement Herefordshire
was granted £157,463. Community Transport (CT) schemes in Herefordshire were
advised of these funds (“Baker money”) through the Herefordshire CT Forum, and initially
encouraged to make applications for grants from that source for service development
projects. On several occasions subsequently, and as recently as 7 February 2012,
Herefordshire’s CT schemes have been informed by the Council that they should delay
bids for the CT grant provided by DfT until the Council issued guidelines on the bids which
it wished to do in the context of proposals going forward — it's aim being to support activity
which improved capacity and longer term financial sustainability. The proposals
referenced are those within the Council’'s Review of CT Services 2012, still on-going and
for which the process and, draft, reported outcomes have been heavily criticised by the
Herefordshire CT Schemes. As we near the end of the 2011/12 year, no effective and
direct action has been taken by the Council to use and dispose the extra DfT funding for
the development of Herefordshire’s CT schemes. Furthermore and contrary to the
principles of the Herefordshire Compact, access to this funding by the CT schemes is
being denied until the Council obtains an agreement and a mandate to pursue its policy on
the future arrangements for CT schemes in Herefordshire.

When will the Council enable the county’s CT schemes to access the funds they

desperately need to develop and improve the vital services they provide to their
communities?

18



Appendix 1
PUBLIC QUESTIONS TO COUNCIL - 2 MARCH 2012

Question from Ms P Mitchell, Hereford
Question 7
Status of the Local Transport Plan

Local transport authorities are required by law to produce and maintain a Local Transport
Plan that sets out the authority's strategy, implementation plan and targets for improving
transport in their community. The government permitted the Council's second Local
Transport Plan to be extended for one year (to the end of March 2012) after the Hereford
Preferred Option consultation resulted in rejection of a key element of the draft third Local
Transport Plan, the relief road.

In the absence of coverage by a legally adopted Local Transport Plan, what steps subject

to public scrutiny is the Council taking to maintain its targets for improving transport in the
county and ensure its transport planning and investment processes are lawful?

19



Appendix 1
PUBLIC QUESTIONS TO COUNCIL - 2 MARCH 2012

Question from Mr A Fisher, Hereford
Question 8

The October 2011 version of the Draft Revised Preferred Option Background Paper
described some 'detailed changes ... proposed for Hereford' (para 4.21) including another
crossing of the River Wye (which would 'not be considered to be a substitute for the
western relief road currently proposed', para 4.21 iv). Given the rejection of a Western
Relief Road in the Hereford Preferred Option consultation and the investment by the
Council earlier in 2011 in testing and eliminating the 'East Is Best' partial relief road
proposal, given, that is, the very controversial nature of this 'detailed change',

Why was the proposal for an additional eastern river crossing not put forward in last year's
Revised Preferred Option consultation and when will it be subject to public consultation?

20



AGENDA ITEM 8

Herefordshire

Council
MEETING: COUNCIL
DATE: 2 MARCH 2012

TITLE OF REPORT: LEADER’S REPORT

CLASSIFICATION: Open
Wards affected

County wide

Purpose

To agree revisions to the timetable for production of a policy framework item; and to provide an
overview of the Executive’s activity since the last meeting of Council.

Recommendations

THAT:

a) the revised timetable for the production of the Local Development Framework,
as set out at paragraph 11 below, be agreed; and

b) the overview of the Executive’s activity be noted.

Report

Herefordshire’s Future

1.

Members will be aware from the debate at Council last month of the challenges we face as a
council and a county. Seen in a national and even a global context, Herefordshire is by no
means unique; but | am satisfied that we have the building blocks in place to enable us to
move confidently into the future.

We have set a budget that ensures we maintain focus on our priority areas: helping the
vulnerable within our communities, and supporting the economy so that Herefordshire can
strengthen its resilience moving forwards. This does not mean that there will not be difficult
choices to make in the coming months. We will of course maintain a strong focus on reducing
costs of delivery as opposed to reducing service; however, as nationally, choices will need to
be made to ensure that sufficient resources are available to deliver high quality services that
are important to local people, and that meet identified need.

A number of key frameworks are already, or will shortly, be in place to guide our next steps.
Council has already approved an economic development strategy for the county, and at our
meeting on 16 February, Cabinet approved a strategy providing a co-ordinated approach to
addressing child poverty in Herefordshire. In the coming months we will be considering
guiding principles for Herefordshire’s learning community, the strategic delivery plan for
transforming adult services in the county, and of course the strategic planning document for
the county, the Local Development Framework.

21



As a council we cannot, and should not, be attempting to do all this alone; the role of public
services generally and local government in particular must evolve to meet the challenges of
the future effectively. In keeping with the national agenda for localism, we need to work with
our partners and the local community to ensure that we have a shared vision for where we
want our county to be and, as importantly, understand what role we expect each player —
whether an individual citizen, community group, business, local council, public sector body or
ourselves — to play in helping to realise that vision.

This administration, with our local partners, is therefore beginning a broader debate within the
community to affirm the vision for the future of this county, and to explore the role, not just of
the council as a democratic body and a provider or commissioner of services, but each of us
can play to ensure Herefordshire fulfils its potential. | would urge everyone to get involved —
we must work together to ensure we can meet the needs of Herefordshire both now and into
the future.

County Achievements

6.

10.

Persistent lobbying by officers and elected members at a regional and national and European
(through our MEP’s) level has opened the door for rural cities in the region to bid into the
European Regional Development Fund's Sustainable Urban Development Fund. Hitherto only
available to the bigger conurbations such as Birmingham, Coventry, Stoke and the Black
Country up to £16 million will be freed up for capital projects in Hereford city, Worcester,
Shrewsbury and Telford. Bids to support Hereford city redundant buildings grant scheme and
greening businesses grant scheme will be submitted following the call for proposals to be
published in March. Our targeted lobbying has also resulted in the Rural Development
Programme England ring fencing a proportion of the fund specifically for Broadband.

Project development officers within the regeneration team have, through their advice and
support to community groups and public sector partners, enabled in excess of £2m external
funding to be secured for Herefordshire in the last year, supporting 24 projects ranging in
scale from drama workshops for young people to helping to plan major capital projects such
as the Master’s House in Ledbury. This is a real achievement in the current economic climate.

The council continues to buck the national trend to deliver new homes in the continuing
difficult climate. As well as releasing council owned land to support delivery of affordable
housing, work the council is also actively working with the owners of empty homes to bring
them back into use for residential accommodation. As a result, 95 properties have been
brought back into use through various means, 58 of which had been empty for more than six
months.

Following the re-modeling of the delivered library service, which included withdrawal of the
universal mobile library service, all 134 Parish Councils in the county were invited to consider
whether they wished to engage in the formation of a community library, operating on a
voluntary basis with support from the county library service. We had over 20 approaches and
I’'m delighted to say that we have just opened the sixth community facility; a real
demonstration of the Big Society at work.

Thankfully, we don’t appear to have had such a harsh winter this year, however we have
launched a new online system for school closure notifications or school transport disruptions
in the event of bad weather; there is also an option for parents to sign up for email alerts,
demonstrating how we can use technology more effectively to make it easier for our residents
to access services and information.

Local Development Framework

11.

A revised timetable for the Local Development Framework was approved by Council in
November 2011, in order to allow for consultation upon a Revised Preferred Strategy. That

22



consultation has now been undertaken and has achieved a significant response. In order to
ensure that these responses can be properly analysed, it is proposed that Cabinet consider
the LDF in June this year, rather than May. There are no other changes to the agreed
timetable, with consideration for Council continuing to be programmed for July 2012.

Other Issues
12. In addition, the Executive has considered the following issues:

a)

b)

f)

Budget and Performance Monitoring Reports — In December Cabinet considered reports
on 2011/12 performance, and revenue and capital outturn. Actions being taken to address
areas of underperformance were noted.

Food & Drink — | have approved a sustainable food and drink strategy for Herefordshire,
providing a response to the challenges and opportunities which lie behind the production
of food and drink in the county, both now and into the future.

Herefordshire COMPACT — The Cabinet Member Economy & Culture has approved the
compact which is an agreement through which the public and voluntary sectors agree to
work well together to meet the needs of local citizens.

Waste Contract — Cabinet has received an update on progress regarding a variation to
the existing contract and agreed, alongside Worcestershire County Council’'s Cabinet, the
parameters to guide further negotiation.

Youth Service — Cabinet has considered options for the future provision of youth services
in the county and is currently consulting on a proposed way forward.

Cultural Services — Cabinet has considered options for the future management of cultural
services and delegated authority to the Director for Places & Communities, in consultation
with the Cabinet Member to agree the final arrangement; Overview & Scrutiny Committee
have been asked to give their views on the options.

23



24



AGENDA ITEM 9

Herefordshire

Council
MEETING: COUNCIL
DATE: 2 MARCH 2012

TITLE OF REPORT: | PRAYERS AT COUNCIL MEETINGS

REPORT BY: ASSISTANT DIRECTOR LAW GOVERNANCE AND
RESILIENCE

CLASSIFICATION: Open

Wards Affected

County-wide

Purpose

To continue the practice of opening a Council meeting with prayers but with specific regard to Section
1 of the Localism Act 2011

Recommendation

THAT the Council resolve pursuant to Section 1 of the Localism Act 2011 to continue
the practice of prayers before the main body of its agendas

Key Points Summary
o Recent case law has cast doubt on the established practice of opening a council meeting with

prayers. The Secretary of State has brought forward the commencement of the general power
of competence contained in the Localism Act 2011 to rectify the problem.

Alternative Options

1 The Council could decide to abandon the practice of opening meetings with prayers or to hold
prayers informally prior to the time stated in the summons

Reasons for Recommendations

2 The Council has a long tradition of Christian prayer before the formal business of its meetings
and would wish to perpetuate this practice

Introduction and Background

3 Members will be aware of the recent High Court decision involving Bideford Town Council. It
was held that section111 of the Local Government Act 1972 (the old enabling provision) did
not permit councils to include prayers in their agendas. It did not however infringe human
rights or equalities legislation.

Further information on the subject of this report is available from
Chris Chapman, Assistant Director Law Governance Resilience on (01432 260200)

25



4 The Secretary of State has brought forward the commencement of the general power of
competence provisions of the Localism Act 2011 to address this problem.

5 Council has to invoke the new provisions to re-establish the inclusion of prayers in the agenda
for council meetings.

6 Some commentators have doubted whether use of the general power of competence will
adequately address the problem, as the Secretary of State intends. However, the

Government’s advice is currently the best available. It may be necessary to review the
Council’s position if there is continuing litigation on the point.

Key Considerations

7 The holding of a Christian act of worship within the Council Meetings is a statement to the
general public about the Council’s values

Community Impact

8 The Council considers it important to perpetuate its community focus as a Christian
organisation

Equality and Human Rights

9 This proposal does not contravene any limitations in the Equality Act 2010
Financial Implications

10 None

Legal Implications

11 The Secretary of State maintains that this recommendation is within the general power of
competence contained in the Localism Act 2011

Risk Management

12 If the inclusion of prayers before the main part of the Council agenda were held to be unlawful
then the Council might be subject to judicial review

Consultees

13 None. This perpetuates an established practice.

Appendices

14 None

Background Papers

15 None identified

26



AGENDA ITEM 10

Herefordshire

Council
MEETING: COUNCIL
DATE: 2 MARCH 2012

TITLE OF REPORT:

COUNCIL TAX RESOLUTION

REPORT BY:

CHIEF OFFICER (FINANCE AND COMMERCIAL)

CLASSIFICATION: Open

Wards Affected

County-wide

Purpose

To calculate the council’'s Council Tax Requirement and set the Council Tax amounts for each
category of dwelling in Herefordshire for 2012/13.

Recommendation

THAT:

(a)

(b)

It be noted that the council calculated the tax base 2012/13;

1) for the whole council area as 71,981.60

2) for dwellings in those parts of the area to which a parish precept
relates as in the attached Annex 1(i);

in respect of council tax for 2012/13 that the following amounts be
approved by the Council for the year 2012/13 in accordance with Sections
31 to 36 of the Local Government Finance Act 1992 (as amended by the

Localism Act 2011) :

(i) £359,718,266

(i) £270,277,078

(i)  £89,441,188

being the estimated aggregate expenditure of
the Council in accordance with Section 31A (2)
of the Act, including all precepts issued to it by
Parish Councils;

being the estimated aggregate income of the
Council for the items set out in Section 31A (3)
of the Act (including Formula Grant);

being the amount by which the aggregate at
(b)(i) above exceeds the aggregate at (b)(ii)
calculated by the Council in accordance with
Section 31A(4) of the Act, as its Council Tax

Further information on the subject of this report is available from
Heather Foster Head of Corporate Finance on (01432) 260284

27



Requirement for the year (including Parish
precepts);

(iv) £1,242.56 being the amount at b(iii) above divided by the
amount of the Council Tax base calculated by
the Council, in accordance with Section 31B of
the Act, as the basic amount of its Council Tax
for the year (including Parish precepts);

(v) £2,696,917 being the aggregate amount of all special
items (Parish precepts) referred to in Section
34(1) of the Act;

(vi) £1,205.09 being the amount at (iv) above less the result
given by dividing the amount at (v) above by
the amount of the Council Tax base calculated
by the Council, in accordance with Section
34(2) of the Act, as the basic amount of its
Council Tax for the year for dwellings in those
parts of its area to which no Parish precept
relates;

(c) That the precepting authority details incorporated in Annex 1 (i-v), relating
to Special Items, West Mercia Police and Hereford and Worcester
Combined Fire Authority be approved in accordance with Sections 30(2),
34(3), 36(1) and Section 40 of the Local Government Finance Act 1992 (as
amended).

(d) That the council tax requirement for the council’s own purposes for
2012/13 (excluding parishes) be approved as £86,744,271;

and

(e) In respect of the Council’s 2012/13 Budget a council tax of £1,205.09 be
levied (at Band D).

Key Points Summary
e A resolution has to be passed each year by billing authorities in order to be able to collect its
council tax. The Local Government Finance Act 1992 (as amended by the Localism Act 2011)

sets out the specific amounts to be calculated and approved.

e Herefordshire Council’s proposed Band D council tax for 2012/13 is £1,205.09, which remains
at the same level as 2010/11 and 2011/12.

e The Parish Precepts for 2012/13 total £2,696,917 amounting to an average Band D Council
Tax Charge of £37.47 (an average increase of 4.7% over 2011/12).

e The precepts for the West Mercia Police Authority and Hereford & Worcester Fire and Rescue
Authority are shown in Annexes 1 (iii) and (iv). They remain at the same level as 2010/11 and
2011/12.

Alternative Options

1 There are no alternative options

28



Reasons for Recommendations

2

Local government legislation requires the Council to set a council tax each financial year. It
also requires that certain categories of income and expenditure and other financial information
are provided in accordance with Local Government Finance Act 1992 (as amended by the
Localism Act 2011).

Introduction and Background

3

A resolution has to be passed each year by billing authorities in order to be able to collect its
council tax. The report enables the Council to meet its legislative duty, determines the Council
Tax Requirement for the authority and sets the Council Tax for each category of dwelling in
Herefordshire.

The level of council tax reflects the 2012/13 budget approved at the Council meeting on 3
February 2012.

Key Considerations

Legal requirements

5

The Council must set a council tax each year based on a balanced budget. In addition
Sections 25 to 29 of Part 2 of the Local Government Act 2003 (as amended) impose duties on
local authorities designed to ensure they make prudent allowance for risk and uncertainties in
their budgets and that they regularly monitor their finances during the course of the year.

Section 25 of the Act deals with budget calculations and requires the statutory chief finance
officer to report on the robustness of estimates and reserves. This duty was introduced
because the Council decides on the Council Tax before the financial year begins and Council
Tax cannot be increased during a financial year. It therefore needs to consider the risks and
uncertainties that might force them to spend more than planned. The Council has a statutory
duty to take the chief finance officer’'s Section 25 report (contained on page 43 of the MTFS)
into account when it sets the Council Tax.

Whilst local authorities have discretion to make their own judgments on a prudent level of
budget and reserves, Section 26 of the Act contains reserve powers for the government to set
a minimum level of reserves. This means that the government has the right to intervene if it
thinks a local authority is acting irresponsibly.

Section 27 of the Act requires the statutory chief finance officer to report to Council if reserves
have dipped below the minimum agreed level when the next budget is set. That report must
include suggestions on how to avoid it happening again. In 2011/12 the Council did not drop
below the minimum level of balance set at £4.5m for the general reserve.

Sections 28 and 29 of the Act deal with budget monitoring issues and make budget monitoring
a statutory duty. If monitoring establishes that the budget position has deteriorated, authorities
are required to take appropriate action. This might include reducing spending in the rest of the
year, increasing income or funding the shortfall from reserves.

Council tax calculations

10

The calculation of Council Tax involves several stages and the Local Government Finance Act
1992 requires figures to be calculated including and excluding parish precepts. The following
table demonstrates this requirement is met;

29



Herefordshire Parish Herefordshire
Council Precepts incl.parishes
£ £ (average)

Estimated Gross Expenditure 357,021,349 2,696,917 359,718,266
LESS Estimated Income 213,661,949 | Not applicable 213,661,949
Net Budget requirement 143,359,400 2,696,917 146,056,317
LESS Formula Grant 56,615,129 | Not applicable 56,615,129
Council Tax requirement 86,744,271 2,696,917 89,441,188
Divided by council tax base (Band D 71,981.6 71,981.6 71,981.6
equivalent)
Council tax at Band D £1,205.09 £37.47 £1,242.56

Council Tax amounts

11

12

13

14

15

16

Annex 1 (i-v) to this report contains the individual Council Tax amounts for each category of
dwelling as required by the Local Government Finance Act 1992 and associated regulations.

Herefordshire Council’'s Band D council tax for 2012/13 is £1,205.09, which remains at the
same level as 2010/11 and 2011/12.

The Parish Precepts for 2012/13 total £2,696,917 amounting to an average Band D Council
Tax Charge of £37.47 (an increase of 4.7% over 2011/12). Annex 1 (i) details the Parish
Precept requirement and the Band D Council Tax Charge for each Parish.

As part of the process we are required to include precepts from other bodies that will be
included on Council Tax bills.

Details of the West Mercia Police Authority Precept are contained in Annex 1 (iii) These
remain at the same levels as 2010/11 and 2011/12 (£178.72 at band D).

Details of the Hereford & Worcester Fire and Rescue Authority Precept are contained in Annex
1 (iv). These remain at the same level as 2010/11 and 2011/12 (£73.64 at band D).

Community Impact

17

No community impact has been identified.

Equality and Human Rights

18

There are no equality and human right issues arising from the recommendations in the report

Financial Implications

19

These are set out in the report.

30



Legal Implications

20

21

Local government legislation requires an authority's chief finance officer to make a report to
the authority when it is considering its budget and council tax. The report must deal with the
robustness of the estimates and the adequacy of the reserves allowed for in the budget
proposals, so members will have authoritative advice available to them when they make their
decisions.

The recommendations in this report satisfy the requirements of the Local Government
Finance Act 1992 (as amended by the Localism Act 2011).

Risk Management

22 Local authorities must decide every year how much they are going to raise from council tax.
They base their decision on a budget that sets out estimates of what they plan to spend on
services. Because they decide on the council tax before the year begins and can't increase
it during the year, they have to consider risks and uncertainties that might force them to
spend more on their services than they planned. Allowance is made for these risks by:

» making prudent allowance in the estimates for services; and
* ensuring that there are adequate reserves to draw on if the service estimates turn out
to be insufficient.

Consultees

23 The draft Medium Term Financial Strategy was approved by Cabinet on 19 January 2012 and
Council on 3 February 2012

Appendices

Annex 1

(i) - Herefordshire Council requirement by parish, including Band D equivalent.

(i) - Council Tax for each valuation band, by parish, without the Police & Fire precepts.
(iii) — Police Authority precept requirement for each valuation band.

(iv)— Fire Authority precept requirement for each valuation band.

(v) — Council Tax for each valuation band by parish, including the Police & Fire precepts.

Background Papers

Medium term financial strategy 2012-2015

31



32



ANNEX 1

Annex
i Herefordshire Council requirement by Parish, including Band D equivalent
ii Council Tax for each valuation band, by Parish, without the Police & Fire precepts
iii Police Authority precept requirement for each valuation band
iv Fire Authority precept requirement for each valuation band

v Council Tax for each valuation band, by Parish, including the Police & Fire precepts

33



34



ANNEX 1 (i)

Herefordshire Council requirement by Parish, including Band D equivalent

Band D
Parish Charge
' Parish Pre:cept (Parish and
Parish Tax Base Basic Tax |Herefordshire
Precept
Rate Council's
(Band D)  Basic Rate -
£1 205 N9\
£ £ £

Abbeydore & Bacton Group Parish Council 4,750 161.72 29.37 1,234.46
Aconbury Parish Meeting 100 37.00 2.70 1,207.79
Acton Beauchamp Group Parish Council 2,800 178.08 15.72 1,220.81
Allensmore Parish Council 1,500 255.60 5.87 1,210.96
Almeley Parish Council 7,250 262.78 27.59 1,232.68
Ashperton Parish Council 3,150 120.28 26.19 1,231.28
Aston Ingham Parish Council 2,200 212.66 10.35 1,215.44
Avenbury Parish Council 3,500 111.96 31.26 1,236.35
Aymestrey Parish Council 2,739 165.25 16.57 1,221.66
Ballingham, Bolstone & Hentland Group 4,000 286.90 13.94 1,219.03
Bartestree & Lugwardine Group Parish Council 23,000 843.07 27.28 1,232.37
Belmont Rural Parish Council 45,000 1,451.44 31.00 1,236.09
Birley with Upper Hill Parish Council 2,000 138.78 14.41 1,219.50
Bishop’s Frome Parish Council 20,000 334.67 59.76 1,264.85
Bishopstone Group Parish Council 4,174 206.87 20.18 1,225.27
Bodenham Parish Council 9,780 468.95 20.86 1,225.95
Border Group Parish Council 7,500 313.88 23.89 1,228.98
Bosbury and Coddington Parish Council 10,000 391.99 25.51 1,230.60
Brampton Abbots & Foy Group Parish Council 2,000 219.79 9.10 1,214.19
Bredenbury & District Group Parish Council 4,250 169.02 25.14 1,230.23
Breinton Parish Council 7,020 400.21 17.54 1,222.63
Bridstow Parish Council 5,225 416.32 12.55 1,217.64
Brilley Parish Council 4,000 123.72 32.33 1,237.42
Brimfield and Little Hereford Group Parish Council 9,500 522.06 18.20 1,223.29
Brockhampton Parish Council 3,600 91.42 39.38 1,244 .47
Brockhampton Group Parish Council 8,885 338.28 26.27 1,231.36
Bromyard & Winslow Town Council 168,000 1,573.18 106.79 1,311.88
Burghill Parish Council 10,200 713.52 14.30 1,219.39
Callow & Haywood Group Parish Council 5,500 210.00 26.19 1,231.28
Clehonger Parish Council 11,000 527.53 20.85 1,225.94
Clifford Parish Council 4,000 260.87 15.33 1,220.42
Colwall Parish Council 56,873 1,181.81 48.12 1,253.21
Malvern Hills Conservators (Colwall Parish Council) 33,040 " 27.96 27.96
Cradley Parish Council 24,000 801.51 29.94 1,235.03
Credenhill Parish Council 16,800 687.42 24.44 1,229.53
Cusop Parish Council 6,500 182.24 35.67 1,240.76
Dilwyn Parish Council 11,545 309.58 37.29 1,242.38
Dinedor Parish Council 5,600 133.27 42.02 1,247.11
Dinmore Parish Meeting - 8.76 - 1,205.09
Dormington & Mordiford Group Parish Council 10,945 320.26 34.18 1,239.27
Dorstone Parish Council 2,300 175.99 13.07 1,218.16
Eardisland Parish Council 15,750 227.07 69.36 1,274.45
Eardisley Group Parish Council 7,700 509.09 15.13 1,220.22
Eastnor & Donnington Parish Council 3,500 143.85 24.33 1,229.42
Eaton Bishop Parish Council 5,000 190.57 26.24 1,231.33
Ewyas Harold Group Parish Council 16,651 460.23 36.18 1,241.27
Fownhope Parish Council 16,000 442.18 36.18 1,241.27
Foxley Group Parish Council 1,750 178.16 9.82 1,214.91
Garway Parish Council 4,724 173.46 27.23 1,232.32
Goodrich & Welsh Bicknor Group Parish Council 5,600 266.50 21.01 1,226.10
Hampton Bishop Parish Council 10,000 202.17 49.46 1,254.55
Hampton Charles Parish Meeting - 20.80 - 1,205.09
Hatfield and District Group Parish Council 2,500 216.79 11.53 1,216.62

35




ANNEX 1 (i)

Herefordshire Council requirement by Parish, including Band D equivalent

Band D
Parish Charge
_ Parish Prozcept (Parish and
Parish Tax Base Basic Tax Herefordshire
Precept
Rate Council's
(Band D)  Basic Rate -
£1 205 NA\
£ £ £
Hereford City Council 734,960 17,755.10 41.39 1,246.48
Holme Lacy Parish Council 11,400 199.08 57.26 1,262.35
Holmer & Shelwick Parish Council 6,575 607.46 10.82 1,215.91
Hope Mansell Parish Council 1,000 136.19 7.34 1,212.43
Hope under Dinmore Group Parish Council 3,300 167.44 19.71 1,224.80
How Caple, Sollershope & Yatton Group Parish
Council 5,000 157.76 31.69 1,236.78
Humber, Stoke Prior & Ford Group Parish Council 3,500 294.84 11.87 1,216.96
Huntington Parish Council 650 50.49 12.87 1,217.96
Kentchurch Parish Council 5,400 117.95 45.78 1,250.87
Kilpeck Group Parish Council 7,750 207.94 37.27 1,242.36
Kimbolton Parish Council 5,000 212.06 23.58 1,228.67
Kings Caple Parish Council 6,688 149.14 44 .84 1,249.93
Kingsland Parish Council 10,000 480.65 20.81 1,225.90
Kingstone & Thruxton Group Parish Council 8,000 445.94 17.94 1,223.03
Kington Rural and Lower Harpton Group Parish
Council 2,200 249.17 8.83 1,213.92
Kington Town Council 60,900 1,044.18 58.32 1,263.41
Kinnersley and District Group Parish Council 3,000 253.67 11.83 1,216.92
Lea Parish Council 9,600 273.56 35.09 1,240.18
Ledbury Town Council 266,596 3,702.35 72.01 1,277.10
Leintwardine Group Parish Council 15,000 455.55 32.93 1,238.02
Leominster Town Council 229,011 4,165.37 54.98 1,260.07
Linton Parish Council 6,000 467 .44 12.84 1,217.93
Little Birch Parish Council 2,700 98.19 27.50 1,232.59
Little Dewchurch Parish Council 7,500 180.22 41.62 1,246.71
Llangarron Parish Council 5,000 476.04 10.50 1,215.59
Llanwarne & District Group Parish Council 1,400 275.35 5.08 1,210.17
Longtown Group Parish Council 5,530 419.16 13.19 1,218.28
Lower Bullingham Parish Council 10,639 656.15 16.21 1,221.30
Luston Group Parish Council 9,000 379.32 23.73 1,228.82
Lyonshall Parish Council 5,000 290.12 17.23 1,222.32
Madley Parish Council 9,000 442.53 20.34 1,225.43
Marden Parish Council 17,500 550.52 31.79 1,236.88
Marstow Parish Council 5,000 171.90 29.09 1,234.18
Mathon Parish Council 6,392 155.62 41.07 1,246.16
Malvern Hills Conservators (Mathon) 4,400 " 28.27 28.27
Middleton-on-the-Hill and Leysters Group Parish
Council 3,500 174.45 20.06 1,225.15
Monkland and Stretford Parish Council 2,900 86.33 33.59 1,238.68
Moreton on Lugg Parish Council 11,000 303.25 36.27 1,241.36
Much Birch Parish Council 6,000 409.24 14.66 1,219.75
Much Cowarne Group Parish Council 3,600 214.45 16.79 1,221.88
Much Dewchurch Parish Council 3,500 271.96 12.87 1,217.96
Much Marcle Parish Council 4,685 304.80 15.37 1,220.46
North Bromyard Group Parish Council 4,000 323.93 12.35 1,217 .44
Ocle Pychard Parish Council 2,850 270.30 10.54 1,215.63
Orcop Parish Council 5,000 176.65 28.30 1,233.39
Orleton Parish Council 14,300 364.85 39.19 1,244 .28
Pembridge Parish Council 18,000 469.81 38.31 1,243.40
Pencombe Group Parish Council 6,500 200.80 32.37 1,237.46
Peterchurch Parish Council 13,560 423.58 32.01 1,237.10
Peterstow Parish council 3,500 192.26 18.20 1,223.29
Pipe and Lyde Parish Council 2,330 146.04 15.95 1,221.04

36




ANNEX 1 (i)

Herefordshire Council requirement by Parish, including Band D equivalent

Band D
Parish Charge
Parish Precept (Parish and
Parish Tax Base Basic Tax Herefordshire
Precept
Rate Council's
(Band D)  Basic Rate -
£1 205 NA\
£ £ £
Pixley & District Parish Council 5,000 235.84 21.20 1,226.29
Putley Parish Council 4,500 114.74 39.22 1,244.31
Pyons Group Parish Council 5,895 358.33 16.45 1,221.54
Richard's Castle (Herefordshire) Parish Council 3,000 128.51 23.34 1,228.43
Ross-on-Wye Town Council 200,000 3,647.73 54.83 1,259.92
Ross Rural Parish Council 3,000 451.97 6.64 1,211.73
Sellack Parish Council 1,750 118.29 14.79 1,219.88
Shobdon Parish Council 9,950 354.32 28.08 1,233.17
St. Weonards Parish Council 3,300 154.81 21.32 1,226.41
Stapleton Group Parish Council 5,000 150.24 33.28 1,238.37
Staunton-on-Wye and District Group Parish Council 2,500 212.85 11.75 1,216.84
Stoke Edith Parish Meeting (Chairman) - 45.08 - 1,205.09
Stoke Lacy Parish Council 5,000 163.88 30.51 1,235.60
Stretton Grandison Group Parish Council 2,000 223.93 8.93 1,214.02
Stretton Sugwas Parish Council 3,500 165.36 21.17 1,226.26
Sutton Parish Council 18,500 394.99 46.84 1,251.93
Tarrington Parish Council 10,000 238.11 42.00 1,247.09
Thornbury Group Parish Council 3,300 186.97 17.65 1,222.74
Titley and District Group Parish Council 3,921 227.99 17.20 1,222.29
Upton Bishop Parish Council 8,364 270.39 30.93 1,236.02
Vowchurch & District Group Parish Council 6,200 323.88 19.14 1,224.23
Walford Parish Council 16,000 665.32 24.05 1,229.14
Wellington Parish Council 21,500 423.43 50.78 1,255.87
Wellington Heath Parish Council 7,400 231.97 31.90 1,236.99
Welsh Newton & Llanrothal Group Parish Council 6,530 143.17 45.61 1,250.70
Weobley Parish Council 10,555 506.10 20.86 1,225.95
Weston Beggard Parish Council 1,000 85.09 11.75 1,216.84
Weston-under-Penyard Parish Council 6,300 488.75 12.89 1,217.98
Whitbourne Parish Council 9,000 339.35 26.52 1,231.61
Whitchurch & Ganarew Group Parish Council 9,000 519.27 17.33 1,222.42
Wigmore Group Parish Council 17,000 375.15 45.32 1,250.41
Withington Group Parish Council 15,000 648.69 23.12 1,228.21
Woolhope Parish Council 5,150 221.67 23.23 1,228.32
Wyeside Group Parish Council 4,200 324.13 12.96 1,218.05
Yarkhill Parish Council 4,000 138.84 28.81 1,233.90
Yarpole Group Parish Council 10,385 341.80 30.38 1,235.47
2,696,917 71,981.60 37.47

| The above table shows the parish precepts, including the charge for Band D properties, and the total Band D charge
| for parish precepts plus Herefordshire Council's Band D council tax (£1,205.09)

37




38



ANNEX 1 (ii)

Council Tax for each valuation band, by Parish, without the Police & Fire precepts
PARISH ‘ ‘ VALUATI(‘)N BANDS

A B C D E F G H

6/9 719 8/9 9/9 11/9 13/9 15/9 18/9

£ £ £ £ £ £ £ £
Abbeydore & Bacton Group Parish Council 822.97 960.13 | 1,097.30  1,234.46 @ 1,508.79 | 1,783.11 | 2,057.43  2,468.92
Aconbury Parish Meeting 805.19 939.39 | 1,073.59  1,207.79 | 1,476.19 | 1,74459 | 2,012.98  2,415.58
Acton Beauchamp Group Parish Council 813.87 94952 | 1,085.16 @ 1,220.81 | 1,492.10 | 1,763.40 | 2,034.68  2,441.62
Allensmore Parish Council 807.30 94186 | 1,076.41 1,210.96 @ 1,480.06 | 1,749.17 | 2,018.26  2,421.92
Almeley Parish Council 821.78 958.75 | 1,095.71 @ 1,232.68 @ 1,506.61 | 1,780.54 | 2,054.46  2,465.36
Ashperton Parish Council 820.85 957.66 | 1,094.47 1,231.28 | 1,504.90 | 1,778.52 | 2,052.13 | 2,462.56
Aston Ingham Parish Council 810.29 945.34 | 1,080.39 1,215.44 | 1,48554 | 1,755.64 | 2,025.73 @ 2,430.88
Avenbury Parish Council 824.23 961.60 | 1,098.98 1,236.35  1,511.10 | 1,785.84 | 2,060.58  2,472.70
Aymestrey Parish Council 814.44 950.18 | 1,085.92  1,221.66 @ 1,493.14 | 1,764.62 | 2,036.10 | 2,443.32
Ballingham, Bolstone & Hentland Group 812.68 948.13 | 1,083.58  1,219.03 | 1,489.93 | 1,760.83 | 2,031.71 | 2,438.06
Bartestree & Lugwardine Group Parish Council 821.58 958.51 | 1,095.44  1,232.37 | 1,506.23 | 1,780.09 | 2,053.95 2,464.74
Belmont Rural Parish Council 824.06 961.40 | 1,098.75  1,236.09 | 1,510.78 | 1,785.47 | 2,060.15  2,472.18
Birley with Upper Hill Parish Council 813.00 948.50 | 1,084.00 1,219.50 | 1,490.50 | 1,761.50 | 2,032.50  2,439.00
Bishop’s Frome Parish Council 843.23 983.77 | 1,124.31 | 1,264.85  1,54593 | 1,827.01 | 2,108.08  2,529.70
Bishopstone & District Group Parish Council 816.84 952,99 | 1,089.13  1,225.27 | 1,497.55 | 1,769.84 | 2,042.11 @ 2,450.54
Bodenham Parish Council 817.30 953.51 | 1,089.73  1,225.95 | 1,498.39 | 1,770.82 | 2,043.25 2,451.90
Border Group Parish Council 819.32 955.87 | 1,092.43 1,228.98 | 1,502.09 | 1,775.20 | 2,048.30  2,457.96
Bosbury and Coddington Parish Council 820.40 957.13 | 1,093.87 @ 1,230.60 | 1,504.07 | 1,777.54 | 2,051.00  2,461.20
Brampton Abbots & Foy Group Parish Council 809.46 94437 | 1,079.28 1,214.19 | 1,484.01 | 1,753.83 | 2,023.65  2,428.38
Bredenbury & District Group Parish Council 820.15 956.84 | 1,093.54  1,230.23 | 1,503.62 | 1,777.00 | 2,050.38  2,460.46
Breinton Parish Council 815.08 950.93 | 1,086.78 @ 1,222.63 | 1,494.33 | 1,766.03 | 2,037.71 @ 2,445.26
Bridstow Parish Council 811.76 947.05 | 1,082.35 1,217.64 | 1,488.23 | 1,758.82 | 2,029.40  2,435.28
Brilley Parish Council 824.94 962.44 | 1,099.93 1,237.42 | 1,512.40 | 1,787.39 | 2,062.36  2,474.84
Brimfield and Little Hereford Group Parish Council 815.52 95145 | 1,087.37  1,223.29 | 1,49513 | 1,766.98 | 2,038.81  2,446.58
Brockhampton Parish Council 829.64 967.92 | 1,106.19 @ 1,244.47 | 1,521.02 | 1,797.57 | 2,074.11 | 2,488.94
Brockhampton Group Parish Council 820.90 957.72 | 1,094.54 1,231.36 | 1,505.00 | 1,778.64 | 2,052.26  2,462.72
Bromyard & Winslow Town Council 87458 | 1,020.35 1,166.11 | 1,311.88 | 1,603.41 | 1,894.94 2,186.46 @ 2,623.76
Burghill Parish Council 812.92 948.41 | 1,083.90 1,219.39 | 1,490.37 | 1,761.35 | 2,032.31 | 2,438.78
Callow & Haywood Group Parish Council 820.85 957.66 | 1,094.47 1,231.28 | 1,504.90 | 1,778.52 | 2,052.13 @ 2,462.56
Clehonger Parish Council 817.29 953.51 | 1,089.72  1,225.94 | 1,498.37 | 1,770.81 | 2,043.23 | 2,451.88
Clifford Parish Council 813.61 949.21 | 1,084.82  1,220.42 | 1,491.63 | 1,762.83 | 2,034.03  2,440.84
Colwall Parish Council (inc Malvern Hills Conservators) 854.11 996.47 @ 1,138.81 1,281.17 | 1,565.87 | 1,850.59 @ 2,135.28  2,562.34
Cradley Parish Council 823.35 960.58 | 1,097.80  1,235.03 | 1,509.48 | 1,783.94 | 2,058.38  2,470.06
Credenhill Parish Council 819.68 956.30 | 1,092.91 @ 1,229.53 | 1,502.76 | 1,775.99 | 2,049.21 @ 2,459.06
Cusop Parish Council 827.17 965.03 | 1,102.90 @ 1,240.76 | 1,516.49 | 1,792.21 | 2,067.93 @ 2,481.52
Dilwyn Parish Council 828.25 966.29 | 1,104.34 @ 1,242.38 | 1,51847 | 1,79455 | 2,070.63  2,484.76
Dinedor Parish Council 831.40 969.97 | 1,108.54  1,247.11 | 1,524.25 | 1,801.39 | 2,078.51 | 2,494.22
Dinmore Parish Meeting 803.39 937.29 | 1,071.19  1,205.09 | 1,472.89 | 1,740.69 | 2,008.48  2,410.18
Dormington & Mordiford Group Parish Council 826.18 963.87 | 1,101.57 | 1,239.27 | 1,514.67 | 1,790.06 | 2,065.45  2,478.54
Dorstone Parish Council 812.10 94746 | 1,082.81 1,218.16 | 1,488.86 | 1,759.57 | 2,030.26  2,436.32
Eardisland Parish Council 849.63 991.24 | 1,132.84 1,27445  1,557.66 | 1,840.88 | 2,124.08  2,548.90
Eardisley Group Parish Council 813.48 949.06 | 1,084.64 1,220.22 | 1,491.38 | 1,762.54 | 2,033.70 | 2,440.44
Eastnor & Donnington Parish Council 819.61 956.21 | 1,092.82  1,229.42 | 1,502.63 | 1,775.83 | 2,049.03  2,458.84
Eaton Bishop Parish Council 820.88 957.70 | 1,094.51 @ 1,231.33 | 1,504.96 | 1,778.59 | 2,052.21  2,462.66
Ewyas Harold Group Parish Council 827.51 965.43 | 1,103.35  1,241.27 | 1,517.11 | 1,792.95 | 2,068.78  2,482.54
Fownhope Parish Council 827.51 965.43 | 1,103.35  1,241.27 | 1,517.11 | 1,792.95 | 2,068.78  2,482.54
Foxley Group Parish Council 809.94 94493 | 1,079.92  1,21491 | 1,484.89 | 1,754.87 | 2,024.85  2,429.82
Garway Parish Council 821.54 958.47 | 1,095.39  1,232.32 | 1,506.17 | 1,780.02 | 2,053.86  2,464.64
Goodrich & Welsh Bicknor Group Parish Council 817.40 953.63 | 1,089.87  1,226.10 | 1,498.57 | 1,771.04 | 2,043.50  2,452.20
Hampton Bishop Parish Council 836.36 975.76 | 1,115.15  1,254.55 | 1,533.34 | 1,812.13 | 2,090.91 @ 2,509.10
Hampton Charles Parish Meeting 803.39 937.29 | 1,071.19  1,205.09 | 1,472.89 | 1,740.69 | 2,008.48  2,410.18
Hatfield and District Group Parish Council 811.08 946.26 | 1,081.44 1,216.62 @ 1,486.98 | 1,757.34 | 2,027.70  2,433.24
Hereford City Council 830.98 969.48 | 1,107.98  1,246.48 @ 1,523.48 | 1,800.48 | 2,077.46  2,492.96
Holme Lacy Parish Council 841.56 981.83 | 1,122.09  1,262.35 | 1,542.87 | 1,823.40 | 2,103.91  2,524.70
Holmer & Shelwick Parish Council 810.60 945.71 | 1,080.81  1,21591  1,486.11 | 1,756.32 | 2,026.51 @ 2,431.82
Hope Mansell Parish Council 808.28 943.00 | 1,077.71 @ 1,212.43 | 1,481.86 | 1,751.29 | 2,020.71 @ 2,424.86
Hope under Dinmore Group Parish Council 816.53 952.62 | 1,088.71 @ 1,224.80  1,496.98 | 1,769.16 | 2,041.33 | 2,449.60
How Caple, Sollershope & Yatton Group Parish Council 824.52 961.94 @ 1,099.36 1,236.78  1,511.62 1,786.46 2,061.30 2,473.56
Humber, Stoke Prior & Ford Group Parish Council 811.30 946.52 | 1,081.74 1,216.96 = 1,487.40 | 1,757.84 | 2,028.26  2,433.92
Huntington Parish Council 811.97 947.30 | 1,082.63 1,217.96 = 1,488.62 | 1,759.28 | 2,029.93 | 2,435.92
Kentchurch Parish Council 833.91 97290 | 1,111.88  1,250.87 | 1,528.84 | 1,806.82 | 2,084.78 2,501.74

39




ANNEX 1 (ii)

Council Tax for each valuation band, by Parish, without the Police & Fire precepts
PARISH ‘ ‘ VALUATI(‘)N BANDS

A B C D E F G H

6/9 719 8/9 9/9 11/9 13/9 15/9 18/9

£ £ £ £ £ £ £ £
Kilpeck Group Parish Council 828.24 966.28 | 1,104.32  1,242.36 | 1,518.44 | 1,794.52 | 2,070.60  2,484.72
Kimbolton Parish Council 819.11 955.63 | 1,092.15  1,228.67 | 1,501.71 | 1,774.75 | 2,047.78 @ 2,457.34
Kings Caple Parish Council 833.28 97217 | 1,111.05  1,249.93 | 1,527.69 | 1,805.46 | 2,083.21  2,499.86
Kingsland Parish Council 817.26 95348 | 1,089.69  1,22590  1,498.32 | 1,770.75 | 2,043.16 @ 2,451.80
Kingstone & Thruxton Group Parish Council 815.35 951.24 | 1,087.14 1,223.03 | 1,494.82 | 1,766.60 | 2,038.38 @ 2,446.06
Kington Rural and Lower Harpton Group Parish Council 809.28 94416 | 1,079.04 1,213.92 1,483.68 1,753.44 2,023.20 2,427.84
Kington Town Council 842.27 982.65 | 1,123.03  1,263.41 | 1,544.17 | 1,824.93 | 2,105.68  2,526.82
Kinnersley and District Group Parish Council 811.28 946.49 | 1,081.71  1,216.92 | 1,487.35 | 1,757.78 | 2,028.20  2,433.84
Lea Parish Council 826.78 964.58 | 1,102.38 | 1,240.18 | 1,515.78 | 1,791.38 | 2,066.96  2,480.36
Ledbury Town Council 851.40 993.30 | 1,135.20  1,277.10 | 1,560.90 | 1,844.70 | 2,128.50  2,554.20
Leintwardine Group Parish Council 825.34 962.90 | 1,100.46  1,238.02 | 1,513.14 | 1,788.26 | 2,063.36  2,476.04
Leominster Town Council 840.04 980.05 | 1,120.06 = 1,260.07 | 1,540.09 | 1,820.11 | 2,100.11 @ 2,520.14
Linton Parish Council 811.95 947.28 | 1,082.60 1,217.93 | 1,488.58 | 1,759.24 | 2,029.88  2,435.86
Little Birch Parish Council 821.72 958.68 | 1,095.63  1,232.59 | 1,506.50 | 1,780.41 | 2,054.31  2,465.18
Little Dewchurch Parish Council 831.14 969.66 | 1,108.19  1,246.71 = 1,523.76 | 1,800.81 | 2,077.85  2,493.42
Llangarron Parish Council 810.39 94546 | 1,080.52  1,215.59 | 1,485.72 | 1,755.86 | 2,025.98  2,431.18
Llanwarne & District Group Parish Council 806.78 941.24 | 1,075.71 | 1,210.17 | 1,479.10 | 1,748.03 | 2,016.95  2,420.34
Longtown Group Parish Council 812.18 94755 | 1,082.91  1,218.28 | 1,489.01 | 1,759.74 | 2,030.46  2,436.56
Lower Bullingham Parish Council 814.20 949.90 | 1,085.60  1,221.30 | 1,492.70 | 1,764.10 | 2,035.50 @ 2,442.60
Luston Group Parish Council 819.21 955.75 | 1,092.28 1,228.82 | 1,501.89 | 1,774.97 | 2,048.03  2,457.64
Lyonshall Parish Council 814.88 950.69 | 1,086.51 @ 1,222.32 | 1,493.95 | 1,765.58 | 2,037.20  2,444.64
Madley Parish Council 816.95 953.11 | 1,089.27 @ 1,225.43 | 1,497.75 | 1,770.07 | 2,042.38  2,450.86
Marden Parish Council 824.58 962.02 | 1,099.45 1,236.88 | 1,511.74 | 1,786.61 | 2,061.46  2,473.76
Marstow Parish Council 822.78 959.92 | 1,097.05 1,234.18 | 1,508.44 | 1,782.71 | 2,056.96  2,468.36
Mathon Parish Council (inc Malvern Hills Conservators) 849.62 991.22 | 1,132.83  1,27443 1,557.64 1,840.84 2,124.05 2,548.86
Middleton-on-the-Hill and Leysters Group Parish Council 816.76 952.89 | 1,089.02 1,225.15  1,497.41 1,769.67 @ 2,041.91 2,450.30
Monkland and Stretford Parish Council 825.78 963.42 | 1,101.05  1,238.68  1,513.94 | 1,789.21 | 2,064.46  2,477.36
Moreton on Lugg Parish Council 827.57 965.50 | 1,103.43  1,241.36 | 1,517.22 | 1,793.08 | 2,068.93 | 2,482.72
Much Birch Parish Council 813.16 948.69 | 1,084.22  1,219.75  1,490.81 | 1,761.87 | 2,032.91 @ 2,439.50
Much Cowarne Group Parish Council 814.58 950.35 | 1,086.11 @ 1,221.88 | 1,493.41 | 1,764.94 | 2,036.46  2,443.76
Much Dewchurch Parish Council 811.97 947.30 | 1,082.63 1,217.96 = 1,488.62 | 1,759.28 | 2,029.93 @ 2,435.92
Much Marcle Parish Council 813.64 949.24 | 1,084.85 1,220.46 @ 1,491.68 | 1,762.89 | 2,034.10  2,440.92
North Bromyard Group Parish Council 811.62 946.90 | 1,082.17 @ 1,217.44 | 1,487.98 | 1,758.53 | 2,029.06  2,434.88
Ocle Pychard Parish Council 810.42 94549 | 1,080.56  1,215.63 | 1,485.77 | 1,755.91 | 2,026.05  2,431.26
Orcop Parish Council 822.26 959.30 | 1,096.35 1,233.39 | 1,507.48 | 1,781.57 | 2,055.65  2,466.78
Orleton Parish Council 829.52 967.77 | 1,106.03 | 1,244.28 | 1,520.79 | 1,797.30 | 2,073.80  2,488.56
Pembridge Parish Council 828.93 967.09 | 1,105.24  1,243.40 | 1,519.71 | 1,796.03 | 2,072.33 | 2,486.80
Pencombe Group Parish Council 824.97 962.47 | 1,099.96 1,237.46 | 1,512.45 | 1,787.45| 2,062.43 @ 2,474.92
Peterchurch Parish Council 824.73 962.19 | 1,099.64 1,237.10 | 1,512.01 | 1,786.93 | 2,061.83 @ 2,474.20
Peterstow Parish Council 815.52 95145 | 1,087.37  1,223.29 | 1,49513 | 1,766.98 | 2,038.81  2,446.58
Pipe and Lyde Parish Council 814.02 949.70 | 1,085.37 | 1,221.04 | 1,492.38 | 1,763.73 | 2,035.06  2,442.08
Pixley & District Parish Council 817.52 953.78 | 1,090.03 @ 1,226.29 | 1,498.80 | 1,771.31 | 2,043.81  2,452.58
Putley Parish Council 829.54 967.79 | 1,106.05  1,244.31 | 1,520.83 | 1,797.34 | 2,073.85  2,488.62
Pyons Group Parish Council 814.36 950.08 | 1,085.81 @ 1,221.54 | 1,493.00 | 1,764.45| 2,035.90  2,443.08
Richard's Castle (Herefordshire) Parish Council 818.95 95544 | 1,091.94  1,22843 | 1,501.42 | 1,774.40 | 2,047.38  2,456.86
Ross-on-Wye Town Council 839.94 979.94 | 1,119.93  1,259.92 | 1,539.90 | 1,819.89 | 2,099.86  2,519.84
Ross Rural Parish Council 807.82 94245 | 1,077.09  1,211.73 | 1,481.01 | 1,750.28 | 2,019.55  2,423.46
Sellack Parish Council 813.25 948.79 | 1,084.34  1,219.88 | 1,490.97 | 1,762.05 | 2,033.13 | 2,439.76
Shobdon Parish Council 822.11 959.13 | 1,096.15  1,233.17 | 1,507.21 | 1,781.25 | 2,055.28 @ 2,466.34
St. Weonards Parish Council 817.60 953.87 | 1,090.14 @ 1,226.41 | 1,498.95 | 1,771.49 | 2,044.01  2,452.82
Stapleton Group Parish Council 825.58 963.17 | 1,100.77 @ 1,238.37 | 1,513.57 | 1,788.76 | 2,063.95  2,476.74
Staunton-on-Wye and District Group Parish Council 811.22 946.43  1,081.63 1,216.84 1,487.25 1,757.66 2,028.06 2,433.68
Stoke Edith Parish Meeting 803.39 937.29 | 1,071.19  1,205.09 | 1,472.89 | 1,740.69 | 2,008.48  2,410.18
Stoke Lacy Parish Council 823.73 961.02 | 1,098.31 @ 1,235.60  1,510.18 | 1,784.76 | 2,059.33 | 2,471.20
Stretton Grandison Group Parish Council 809.34 94424 | 1,079.13 | 1,214.02 | 1,483.80 | 1,753.59 | 2,023.36  2,428.04
Stretton Sugwas Parish Council 817.50 953.76 | 1,090.01 @ 1,226.26 | 1,498.76 | 1,771.27 | 2,043.76 @ 2,452.52
Sutton Parish Council 834.62 973.72 | 1,112.83  1,251.93 | 1,530.14 | 1,808.35 | 2,086.55  2,503.86
Tarrington Parish Council 831.39 969.96 | 1,108.52  1,247.09 | 1,524.22 | 1,801.36 | 2,078.48  2,494.18
Thornbury Group Parish Council 815.16 951.02 | 1,086.88  1,222.74 | 1,494.46 | 1,766.18 | 2,037.90  2,445.48
Titley and District Group Parish Council 814.86 950.67 | 1,086.48  1,222.29 | 1,493.91 | 1,765.53 | 2,037.15  2,444.58
Upton Bishop Parish Council 824.01 961.35 | 1,098.68 1,236.02 = 1,510.69 | 1,785.37 | 2,060.03 @ 2,472.04

40




ANNEX 1 (ii)

Council Tax for each valuation band, by Parish, without the Police & Fire precepts
PARISH | | VALUATI(‘)N BANDS

A B Cc D E F G H

6/9 719 8/9 9/9 11/9 13/9 15/9 18/9

£ £ £ £ £ £ £ £
Vowchurch & District Group Parish Council 816.15 95218  1,088.20  1,224.23 1,496.28 | 1,768.34 | 2,040.38  2,448.46
Walford Parish Council 819.42 956.00 1,092.57  1,229.14 @ 1,502.28 | 1,77543 | 2,048.56  2,458.28
Wellington Parish Council 837.24 976.79 1,116.33  1,255.87  1,534.95 | 1,814.04 | 2,093.11 2,511.74
Wellington Heath Parish Council 824.66 962.10 1,099.55 1,236.99  1,511.88 | 1,786.77 | 2,061.65 2,473.98
Welsh Newton & Llanrothal Group Parish Council 833.80 972.76  1,111.73  1,250.70  1,528.64 | 1,806.57 | 2,084.50 2,501.40
Weobley Parish Council 817.30 95351 1,089.73 1,22595  1,498.39 | 1,770.82 | 2,043.25 2,451.90
Weston Beggard Parish Council 811.22 946.43 1,081.63 1,216.84 1,487.25| 1,757.66 | 2,028.06 2,433.68
Weston-under-Penyard Parish Council 811.98 94732 1,082.65 1,217.98  1,488.64 | 1,759.31 | 2,029.96 2,435.96
Whitbourne Parish Council 821.07 957.92  1,094.76 1,231.61 1,505.30 | 1,779.00 | 2,052.68  2,463.22
Whitchurch & Ganarew Group Parish Council 814.94 950.77 1,086.59 = 1,222.42 @ 1,494.07 | 1,765.72 | 2,037.36  2,444.84
Wigmore Group Parish Council 833.60 972.54  1,111.47 1,250.41 1,528.28 | 1,806.15 | 2,084.01  2,500.82
Withington Group Parish Council 818.80 95527 | 1,091.74 122821  1,501.15 | 1,774.09 | 2,047.01 | 2,456.42
Woolhope Parish Council 818.88 95536 1,091.84 1,228.32 1,501.28 | 1,774.24 | 2,047.20 2,456.64
Wyeside Group Parish Council 812.03 947.37 1,082.71  1,218.05 1,488.73 | 1,759.41 | 2,030.08 2,436.10
Yarkhill Parish Council 822.60 959.70 1,096.80 = 1,233.90 1,508.10 | 1,782.30 | 2,056.50  2,467.80
Yarpole Group Parish Council 823.64 960.92 1,098.19 = 1,235.47 | 1,510.02 | 1,784.57 | 2,059.11  2,470.94

|1 The above table shows council tax for Herefordshire Council plus parish councils by property band

41



42



Police Authority precept requirement for each valuation band

ANNEX 1(iii)

VALUATION BANDS

A B Cc D E F G H

6/9 7/9 8/9 9/9 11/9 13/9 15/9 18/9

£ £ £ £ £ £ £ £
West Mercia Police Authority 119.15 | 139.00 | 1568.86 | 178.72 218.44 258.15 297.87 | 357.44

and 2011/12).

of dwellings shown above.

On 14th February 2012 West Mercia Police Authority set a Budget for 2012/13 of £202,898,685 resulting in a
Council Tax Requirement of £79,949,408, including a precept from Herefordshire Council of £12,864,552. The
Band D Council Tax Charge for West Mercia Police Authority amounts to £178.72 (the same as for 2010/2011

For the year 2012/2013 West Mercia Police Authority have stated the above amounts in precepts issued to the
Council, in accordance with Section 40 of the Local Government Finance Act 1992, for each of the categories

43




44



Fire Authority precept requirement for each valuation band

ANNEX 1(iv)

VALUATION BANDS

A B C D E F G H
6/9 7/9 8/9 9/9 11/9 13/9 15/9 18/9
£ £ £ £ £ £ £ £
Hereford & Worcester Fire and
Rescue Authority 4910 57.28 6546 73.64 90.01 106.38 | 122.74 147.28

On 15th February 2012 Hereford & Worcester Fire and Rescue Authority set a Budget for 2012/13 of
£33,821,000 resulting in a Council Tax Requirement of £20,867,245, including a precept from Herefordshire
Council of £5,300,894.06. The Band D Council Tax Charge for Hereford & Worcester Fire and Rescue
Authority amounts to £73.64 (the same as for 2010/2011 and 2011/2012).

For the year 2012/2013 Hereford & Worcester Fire and Rescue Authority have stated the above amounts in
precepts issued to the Council, in accordance with Section 40 of the Local Government Finance Act 1992,

for each of the categories of dwellings shown above.

45




46



ANNEX 1 (v)

Council Tax for each valuation band, by Parish, including the Police & Fire precepts
PARISH ‘ ‘ VALUATION BANDS

A B C D E F G H

6/9 7/9 8/9 9/9 11/9 13/9 15/9 18/9

£ £ £ £ £ £ £ £
Abbeydore & Bacton Group Parish Council 991.22 | 1,156.41 1,321.62 | 1,486.82 | 1,817.24  2,147.64 @ 2,478.04 2,973.64
Aconbury Parish Meeting 973.44 | 1,135.67  1,297.91 | 1,460.15  1,784.64 2,109.12 2,433.59  2,920.30
Acton Beauchamp Group Parish Council 982.12 | 1,145.80  1,309.48 | 1,473.17 | 1,800.55  2,127.93 | 2,455.29  2,946.34
Allensmore Parish Council 975.55 | 1,138.14  1,300.73 | 1,463.32 | 1,788.51  2,113.70 | 2,438.87  2,926.64
Almeley Parish Council 990.03 | 1,155.03 | 1,320.03 | 1,485.04 @ 1,815.06 @ 2,145.07 | 2,475.07  2,970.08
Ashperton Parish Council 989.10 | 1,153.94 1,318.79 | 1,483.64 | 1,813.35  2,143.05  2,472.74 2,967.28
Aston Ingham Parish Council 978.54 | 1,141.62 1,304.71 | 1,467.80 | 1,793.99  2,120.17 | 2,446.34  2,935.60
Avenbury Parish Council 99248 | 1,157.88 | 1,323.30 | 1,488.71 | 1,819.55  2,150.37  2,481.19 | 2,977.42
Aymestrey Parish Council 982.69 | 1,146.46  1,310.24 | 1,474.02 | 1,801.59  2,129.15  2,456.71 @ 2,948.04
Ballingham, Bolstone & Hentland Group 980.93 | 1,144.41  1,307.90 | 1,471.39 | 1,798.38 | 2,125.36 | 2,452.32  2,942.78
Bartestree & Lugwardine Group Parish Council 989.83 | 1,154.79  1,319.76 | 1,484.73 | 1,814.68  2,144.62 @ 2,474.56  2,969.46
Belmont Rural Parish Council 992.31 | 1,157.68  1,323.07 | 1,488.45  1,819.23 2,150.00  2,480.76  2,976.90
Birley with Upper Hill Parish Council 981.25 | 1,144.78 1,308.32 | 1,471.86 | 1,798.95  2,126.03  2,453.11 | 2,943.72
Bishop’s Frome Parish Council 1,011.48 | 1,180.05 | 1,348.63 | 1,517.21 1,854.38 | 2,191.54 | 2,528.69  3,034.42
Bishopstone Group Parish Council 985.09 | 1,149.27  1,31345 | 1,477.63 | 1,806.00  2,134.37 | 2,462.72  2,955.26
Bodenham Parish Council 985.55 | 1,149.79  1,314.05 | 1,478.31 | 1,806.84  2,135.35  2,463.86 | 2,956.62
Border Group Parish Council 987.57 | 1,152.15  1,316.75 | 1,481.34 | 1,810.54  2,139.73 | 2,468.91  2,962.68
Bosbury and Coddington Parish Council 988.65 | 1,153.41  1,318.19 | 1,482.96 @ 1,812.52 | 2,142.07 2,471.61 | 2,965.92
Brampton Abbots & Foy Group Parish Council 977.71 | 1,140.65 1,303.60 | 1,466.55  1,79246 2,118.36 @ 2,444.26  2,933.10
Bredenbury & District Group Parish Council 988.40 | 1,153.12  1,317.86 | 1,482.59 | 1,812.07 @ 2,141.53 | 2,470.99  2,965.18
Breinton Parish Council 983.33 | 1,147.21 | 1,311.10 | 1,474.99 | 1,802.78 | 2,130.56 | 2,458.32  2,949.98
Bridstow Parish Council 980.01 | 1,143.33 | 1,306.67 | 1,470.00 | 1,796.68  2,123.35 | 2,450.01 @ 2,940.00
Brilley Parish Council 993.19 | 1,158.72  1,324.25 | 1,489.78 | 1,820.85  2,151.92 248297 2,979.56
Brimfield and Little Hereford Group Parish Council 983.77 | 1,147.73  1,311.69 | 1,475.65 1,803.58  2,131.51  2,459.42 2,951.30
Brockhampton Parish Council 997.89 | 1,164.20 1,330.51 | 1,496.83 | 1,829.47 2,162.10 | 2,494.72  2,993.66
Brockhampton Group Parish Council 989.15 | 1,154.00 1,318.86 | 1,483.72 | 1,813.45  2,143.17 | 2,472.87  2,967.44
Bromyard & Winslow Town Council 1,042.83 | 1,216.63 | 1,390.43 | 1,564.24 1,911.86 | 2,259.47 | 2,607.07 3,128.48
Burghill Parish Council 981.17 | 1,144.69 1,308.22 | 1,471.75 | 1,798.82  2,125.88  2,452.92  2,943.50
Callow & Haywood Group Parish Council 989.10 | 1,153.94 1,318.79 | 1,483.64 | 1,813.35  2,143.05  2,472.74 2,967.28
Clehonger Parish Council 985.54 | 1,149.79  1,314.04 | 1,478.30 | 1,806.82  2,135.34 | 2,463.84  2,956.60
Clifford Parish Council 981.86 | 1,145.49 1,309.14 | 1,472.78 | 1,800.08 | 2,127.36 @ 2,454.64 2,945.56
Colwall Parish Council 1,022.36 | 1,192.75 | 1,363.13 | 1,633.53 1,874.32 | 2,215.12 | 2,555.89  3,067.06
Cradley Parish Council 991.60 | 1,156.86  1,322.12 | 1,487.39 | 1,817.93 | 2,148.47 247899 2,974.78
Credenhill Parish Council 98793 | 1,152.58  1,317.23 | 1,481.89 | 1,811.21  2,140.52  2,469.82  2,963.78
Cusop Parish Council 99542 | 1,161.31 | 1,327.22 | 1,493.12 | 1,824.94  2,156.74 @ 2,488.54  2,986.24
Dilwyn Parish Council 996.50 | 1,162.57  1,328.66 | 1,494.74 | 1,826.92  2,159.08 @ 2,491.24 2,989.48
Dinedor Parish Council 999.65 | 1,166.25 1,332.86 | 1,499.47 | 1,832.70 @ 2,165.92 | 2,499.12  2,998.94
Dinmore Parish Meeting 971.64 | 1,133.57 | 1,295.51 | 1,457.45  1,781.34  2,105.22  2,429.09 2,914.90
Dormington & Mordiford Group Parish Council 994.43 | 1,160.15 1,325.89 | 1,491.63 | 1,823.12  2,154.59 @ 2,486.06  2,983.26
Dorstone Parish Council 980.35 | 1,143.74 1,307.13 | 1,470.52 | 1,797.31 | 2,124.10  2,450.87 @ 2,941.04
Eardisland Parish Council 1,017.88 | 1,187.52 | 1,357.16 | 1,526.81 1,866.11 | 2,205.41 | 2,544.69 3,053.62
Eardisley Group Parish Council 981.73 | 1,145.34 1,308.96 | 1,472.58 | 1,799.83  2,127.07 | 2,454.31  2,945.16
Eastnor & Donnington Parish Council 987.86 | 1,152.49 1,317.14 | 1,481.78 | 1,811.08  2,140.36 | 2,469.64  2,963.56
Eaton Bishop Parish Council 989.13 | 1,153.98  1,318.83 | 1,483.69 | 1,813.41  2,143.12  2,472.82 2,967.38
Ewyas Harold Group Parish Council 995.76 | 1,161.71 | 1,327.67 | 1,493.63 | 1,825.56  2,157.48 @ 2,489.39  2,987.26
Fownhope Parish Council 995.76 | 1,161.71 | 1,327.67 | 1,493.63 | 1,825.56  2,157.48 @ 2,489.39  2,987.26
Foxley Group Parish Council 978.19 | 1,141.21 | 1,304.24 | 1,467.27 | 1,793.34 | 2,119.40  2,445.46 2,934.54
Garway Parish Council 989.79 | 1,154.75  1,319.71 | 1,484.68 | 1,814.62  2,144.55 247447 2,969.36
Goodrich & Welsh Bicknor Group Parish Council 985.65 | 1,149.91  1,314.19 | 1,478.46 | 1,807.02  2,135.57 | 2,464.11  2,956.92
Hampton Bishop Parish Council 1,004.61 | 1,172.04 | 1,339.47 | 1,506.91 1,841.79 | 2,176.66 | 2,511.52 3,013.82
Hampton Charles Parish Meeting 971.64 | 1,133.57  1,295.51 | 1,457.45 1,781.34 2,105.22 2,429.09 2,914.90

47




ANNEX 1 (v)

Council Tax for each valuation band, by Parish, including the Police & Fire precepts
PARISH ‘ ‘ VALUATION BANDS

A B C D E F G H

6/9 7/9 8/9 9/9 11/9 13/9 15/9 18/9

£ £ £ £ £ £ £ £
Hatfield and District Group Parish Council 979.33 | 1,142.54 1,305.76 | 1,468.98 | 1,79543  2,121.87 | 2,448.31  2,937.96
Hereford City Council 999.23 | 1,165.76 = 1,332.30 | 1,498.84 | 1,831.93  2,165.01 | 2,498.07  2,997.68
Holme Lacy Parish Council 1,009.81 | 1,178.11 | 1,346.41 | 151471  1,851.32 | 2,187.93 | 2,524.52  3,029.42
Holmer & Shelwick Parish Council 978.85 | 1,141.99 1,305.13 | 1,468.27 | 1,794.56 @ 2,120.85  2,447.12  2,936.54
Hope Mansell Parish Council 976.53 | 1,139.28  1,302.03 | 1,464.79 | 1,790.31 | 2,115.82 | 2,441.32  2,929.58
Hope under Dinmore Group Parish Council 984.78 | 1,148.90 1,313.03 | 1,477.16 | 1,80543 | 2,133.69 2,461.94 | 2,954.32
How Caple, Sollershope & Yatton Group Parish Council 992.77 | 1,158.22  1,323.68 | 1,489.14 | 1,820.07 @ 2,150.99 @ 2,481.91 2,978.28
Humber, Stoke Prior & Ford Group Parish Council 979.55 | 1,142.80 1,306.06 | 1,469.32 | 1,795.85  2,122.37 @ 2,448.87  2,938.64
Huntington Parish Council 980.22 | 1,143.58  1,306.95 | 1,470.32 | 1,797.07 | 2,123.81 | 2,450.54 @ 2,940.64
Kentchurch Parish Council 1,002.16 | 1,169.18 | 1,336.20 | 1,503.23 1,837.29 | 2,171.35 | 2,505.39  3,006.46
Kilpeck Group Parish Council 996.49 | 1,162.56 @ 1,328.64 | 1,494.72 | 1,826.89  2,159.05  2,491.21  2,989.44
Kimbolton Parish Council 987.36 | 1,151.91  1,316.47 | 1,481.03 | 1,810.16 | 2,139.28  2,468.39 @ 2,962.06
Kings Caple Parish Council 1,001.53 | 1,168.45  1,335.37 | 1,502.29 1,836.14 | 2,169.99 | 2,503.82  3,004.58
Kingsland Parish Council 985.51 | 1,149.76 = 1,314.01 | 1,478.26 | 1,806.77 | 2,135.28 @ 2,463.77 | 2,956.52
Kingstone & Thruxton Group Parish Council 983.60 | 1,147.52 1,311.46 | 1,475.39 | 1,803.27 @ 2,131.13 | 2,458.99  2,950.78
Kington Rural and Lower Harpton Group Parish Council 97753 | 1,140.44 1,303.36 | 1,466.28 | 1,792.13 | 2,117.97  2,443.81 | 2,932.56
Kington Town Council 1,010.52 | 1,178.93 | 1,347.35 | 1,515.77 1,852.62 | 2,189.46 | 2,526.29 3,031.54
Kinnersley and District Group Parish Council 979.53 | 1,142.77  1,306.03 | 1,469.28 | 1,795.80  2,122.31 | 2,448.81  2,938.56
Lea Parish Council 995.03 | 1,160.86 = 1,326.70 | 1,492.54 | 1,824.23 @ 2,155.91 | 2,487.57  2,985.08
Ledbury Town Council 1,019.65 | 1,189.58 | 1,359.52 | 1,629.46  1,869.35 | 2,209.23 | 2,549.11  3,058.92
Leintwardine Group Parish Council 993.59 | 1,159.18 @ 1,324.78 | 1,490.38 | 1,821.59 @ 2,152.79 | 2,483.97  2,980.76
Leominster Town Council 1,008.29 | 1,176.33 | 1,344.38 | 1,512.43 1,848.54 | 2,184.64 | 2,520.72  3,024.86
Linton Parish Council 980.20 | 1,143.56 @ 1,306.92 | 1,470.29 | 1,797.03 | 2,123.77 | 2,450.49 @ 2,940.58
Little Birch Parish Council 989.97 | 1,154.96  1,319.95 | 1,484.95 1,814.95 214494 247492 2,969.90
Little Dewchurch Parish Council 999.39 | 1,165.94 1,332.51 | 1,499.07 | 1,832.21  2,165.34  2,498.46  2,998.14
Llangarron Parish Council 978.64 | 1,141.74 1,304.84 | 1,467.95  1,794.17  2,120.39 | 2,446.59  2,935.90
Llanwarne & District Group Parish Council 975.03 | 1,137.52  1,300.03 | 1,462.53 | 1,787.55  2,112.56  2,437.56  2,925.06
Longtown Group Parish Council 980.43 | 1,143.83 | 1,307.23 | 1,470.64 | 1,797.46  2,124.27 | 2,451.07  2,941.28
Lower Bullingham Parish Council 982.45 | 1,146.18  1,309.92 | 1,473.66  1,801.15  2,128.63  2,456.11 | 2,947.32
Luston Group Parish Council 987.46 | 1,152.03  1,316.60 | 1,481.18 | 1,810.34  2,139.50  2,468.64  2,962.36
Lyonshall Parish Council 983.13 | 1,146.97 1,310.83 | 1,474.68 | 1,802.40 2,130.11 | 2,457.81  2,949.36
Madley Parish Council 985.20 | 1,149.39  1,313.59 | 1,477.79 | 1,806.20  2,134.60  2,462.99  2,955.58
Marden Parish Council 992.83 | 1,158.30  1,323.77 | 1,489.24 | 1,820.19 | 2,151.14  2,482.07  2,978.48
Marstow Parish Council 991.03 | 1,156.20  1,321.37 | 1,486.54 @ 1,816.89 @ 2,147.24 247757  2,973.08
Mathon Parish Council 1,017.87 | 1,187.50 | 1,357.15 | 1,526.79 1,866.09 | 2,205.37 | 2,544.66 3,053.58
Middleton-on-the-Hill and Leysters Group Parish Counc 985.01 | 1,149.17 | 1,313.34 | 1,477.51 | 1,805.86  2,134.20 2,462.52 | 2,955.02
Monkland and Stretford Parish Council 994.03 | 1,159.70 | 1,325.37 | 1,491.04 | 1,822.39 @ 2,153.74 | 2,485.07  2,982.08
Moreton on Lugg Parish Council 995.82 | 1,161.78 @ 1,327.75 | 1,493.72 | 1,825.67 @ 2,157.61  2,489.54  2,987.44
Much Birch Parish Council 981.41 | 1,144.97 1,308.54 | 1,472.11 | 1,799.26 | 2,126.40  2,453.52 | 2,944.22
Much Cowarne Group Parish Council 982.83 | 1,146.63  1,310.43 | 1,474.24 | 1,801.86  2,129.47 | 2,457.07  2,948.48
Much Dewchurch Parish Council 980.22 | 1,143.58  1,306.95 | 1,470.32 | 1,797.07 | 2,123.81 | 2,450.54 @ 2,940.64
Much Marcle Parish Council 981.89 | 1,145.52  1,309.17 | 1,472.82 | 1,800.13 | 2,127.42  2,454.71 @ 2,945.64
North Bromyard Group Parish Council 979.87 | 1,143.18  1,306.49 | 1,469.80 @ 1,796.43  2,123.06 @ 2,449.67  2,939.60
Ocle Pychard Parish Council 978.67 | 1,141.77 | 1,304.88 | 1,467.99 | 1,794.22 2,120.44  2,446.66  2,935.98
Orcop Parish Council 990.51 | 1,155.58 @ 1,320.67 | 1,485.75  1,815.93 2,146.10  2,476.26  2,971.50
Orleton Parish Council 997.77 | 1,164.05 1,330.35 | 1,496.64 @ 1,829.24  2,161.83 | 2,494.41  2,993.28
Pembridge Parish Council 997.18 | 1,163.37  1,329.56 | 1,495.76 | 1,828.16 @ 2,160.56 @ 2,492.94  2,991.52
Pencombe Group Parish Council 993.22 | 1,158.75 1,324.28 | 1,489.82 | 1,820.90  2,151.98 | 2,483.04 2,979.64
Peterchurch Parish Council 99298 | 1,158.47 1,323.96 | 1,489.46  1,820.46  2,151.46  2,482.44 2,978.92
Peterstow Parish council 983.77 | 1,147.73  1,311.69 | 1,475.65  1,803.58  2,131.51  2,459.42 2,951.30
Pipe and Lyde Parish Council 982.27 | 1,145.98 1,309.69 | 1,473.40 1,800.83  2,128.26  2,455.67  2,946.80

48




ANNEX 1 (v)

Council Tax for each valuation band, by Parish, including the Police & Fire precepts
PARISH ‘ ‘ VALUATION BANDS

A B C D E F G H

6/9 7/9 8/9 9/9 11/9 13/9 15/9 18/9

£ £ £ £ £ £ £ £
Pixley & District Parish Council 985.77 | 1,150.06 = 1,314.35| 1,478.65 1,807.25| 2,135.84 | 2,464.42 | 2,957.30
Putley Parish Council 997.79 | 1,164.07 | 1,330.37 | 1,496.67 @ 1,829.28 | 2,161.87 | 2,494.46 | 2,993.34
Pyons Group Parish Council 982.61 | 1,146.36 | 1,310.13 | 1,473.90  1,801.45| 2,128.98 | 2,456.51 | 2,947.80
Richard's Castle (Herefordshire) Parish Council 987.20 | 1,151.72 | 1,316.26 | 1,480.79 @ 1,809.87 | 2,138.93 | 2,467.99 | 2,961.58
Ross-on-Wye Town Council 1,008.19 | 1,176.22 | 1,344.25 | 1,512.28 1,848.35 | 2,184.42 2,520.47 | 3,024.56
Ross Rural Parish Council 976.07 | 1,138.73 | 1,301.41 | 1,464.09 1,789.46 | 2,114.81 | 2,440.16 | 2,928.18
Sellack Parish Council 981.50 | 1,145.07 | 1,308.66 | 1,472.24 @ 1,799.42 | 2,126.58 | 2,453.74 | 2,944.48
Shobdon Parish Council 990.36 | 1,155.41 | 1,320.47 | 1,485.53 @ 1,815.66 | 2,145.78 | 2,475.89 | 2,971.06
St. Weonards Parish Council 985.85 | 1,150.15 | 1,314.46 | 1,478.77 @ 1,807.40 | 2,136.02 | 2,464.62 | 2,957.54
Stapleton Group Parish Council 993.83 | 1,159.45  1,325.09 | 1,490.73 | 1,822.02 | 2,153.29 | 2,484.56 | 2,981.46
Staunton-on-Wye and District Group Parish Council 979.47 | 1,142.71 | 1,305.95 | 1,469.20 = 1,795.70 | 2,122.19 | 2,448.67 | 2,938.40
Stoke Edith Parish Meeting (Chairman) 971.64 | 1,133.57 | 1,29551 | 1,457.45 1,781.34 | 2,105.22 | 2,429.09 | 2,914.90
Stoke Lacy Parish Council 991.98 | 1,157.30 | 1,322.63 | 1,487.96  1,818.63 | 2,149.29 | 2,479.94 | 2,975.92
Stretton Grandison Group Parish Council 97759 | 1,140.52 | 1,303.45| 1,466.38 = 1,792.25| 2,118.12 | 2,443.97 | 2,932.76
Stretton Sugwas Parish Council 985.75 | 1,150.04 | 1,314.33 | 1,478.62  1,807.21 | 2,135.80 | 2,464.37 | 2,957.24
Sutton Parish Council 1,002.87 | 1,170.00 | 1,337.15 | 1,504.29  1,838.59 | 2,172.88 2,507.16 | 3,008.58
Tarrington Parish Council 999.64 | 1,166.24 = 1,332.84 | 1,499.45 1,832.67 | 2,165.89 | 2,499.09 | 2,998.90
Thornbury Group Parish Council 98341 | 1,147.30 | 1,311.20 | 1,475.10 @ 1,802.91 | 2,130.71 | 2,458.51 | 2,950.20
Titley and District Group Parish Council 983.11 | 1,146.95  1,310.80 | 1,474.65 1,802.36 | 2,130.06 | 2,457.76 | 2,949.30
Upton Bishop Parish Council 992.26 | 1,157.63 | 1,323.00 | 1,488.38 | 1,819.14 | 2,149.90  2,480.64 | 2,976.76
Vowchurch & District Group Parish Council 984.40 | 1,148.46 @ 1,312.52 | 1,476.59 @ 1,804.73 | 2,132.87 | 2,460.99 | 2,953.18
Walford Parish Council 987.67 | 1,152.28 = 1,316.89 | 1,481.50  1,810.73 | 2,139.96 | 2,469.17 | 2,963.00
Wellington Parish Council 1,005.49 | 1,173.07 | 1,340.65 | 1,508.23  1,843.40 | 2,178.57 2,513.72 | 3,016.46
Wellington Heath Parish Council 99291 | 1,158.38 | 1,323.87 | 1,489.35 1,820.33 | 2,151.30 | 2,482.26 | 2,978.70
Welsh Newton & Llanrothal Group Parish Council 1,002.05 | 1,169.04 | 1,336.05 | 1,503.06  1,837.09 | 2,171.10  2,505.11 | 3,006.12
Weobley Parish Council 985.55 | 1,149.79 | 1,314.05| 1,478.31 | 1,806.84 | 2,135.35  2,463.86 | 2,956.62
Weston Beggard Parish Council 979.47 | 1,142.71 | 1,305.95 | 1,469.20  1,795.70 | 2,122.19 | 2,448.67 | 2,938.40
Weston-under-Penyard Parish Council 980.23 | 1,143.60 = 1,306.97 | 1,470.34 | 1,797.09 | 2,123.84 | 2,450.57 | 2,940.68
Whitbourne Parish Council 989.32 | 1,154.20 | 1,319.08 | 1,483.97 @ 1,813.75| 2,143.53 | 2,473.29 | 2,967.94
Whitchurch & Ganarew Group Parish Council 983.19 | 1,147.05  1,310.91 | 1,47478  1,802.52 | 2,130.25 | 2,457.97 | 2,949.56
Wigmore Group Parish Council 1,001.85 | 1,168.82 | 1,335.79 | 1,502.77  1,836.73 | 2,170.68  2,504.62 | 3,005.54
Withington Group Parish Council 987.05 | 1,151.55  1,316.06 | 1,480.57 @ 1,809.60 | 2,138.62 @ 2,467.62 | 2,961.14
Woolhope Parish Council 987.13 | 1,151.64 1,316.16 | 1,480.68  1,809.73 | 2,138.77 | 2,467.81 | 2,961.36
Wyeside Group Parish Council 980.28 | 1,143.65  1,307.03 | 1,470.41  1,797.18 | 2,123.94 | 2,450.69 | 2,940.82
Yarkhill Parish Council 990.85 | 1,155.98 | 1,321.12 | 1,486.26  1,816.55 | 2,146.83 | 2,477.11 | 2,972.52
Yarpole Group Parish Council 991.89 | 1,157.20 | 1,322.51 | 1,487.83 | 1,818.47 | 2,149.10 | 2,479.72 | 2,975.66
| | The above tables shows the total council tax by property band, including parishes, police and fire authority precepts o

49



50



AGENDA ITEM 11

Herefordshire

Council
MEETING: COUNCIL
DATE: 02 MARCH 2012

TITLE OF REPORT: | ELECTORAL REVIEW OF HEREFORDSHIRE:

COUNCIL SIZE SUBMISSION

REPORT BY: HEAD OF GOVERNANCE

CLASSIFICATION: Open
Wards Affected

County-wide

Purpose

To consider and approve the proposed submission to the Local Government Boundary Commission,
in respect of council size.

Recommendations

THAT: the attached submission to the Local government Boundary Commission in
respect of Council size be approved.

Key Points Summary

The Local Government Boundary Commission (LGBC) confirmed in May 2011, that it would
undertake a formal electoral review of Herefordshire, beginning in March 2012.

The purpose of the LGBC review is to ensure electoral equality as far as possible. Achieving
electoral equality means ensuring that there are an equal number of electorate per local ward
councillor for every Council ward in Herefordshire.

A cross-party Members’ Electoral Review Working Group, and a supporting Electoral Review
Officers’ Project Team, were formed in November 2011 in order to assist with the review. Both
groups have met a number of times in preparation for the review, and they will continue meet
throughout the review period in order to be consulted on aspects of the review including the
information/evidence to be provided to the LGBC as part of the Council’'s submission. In
addition, Mr Mike Flynn has been appointed as the Council’s Electoral Review Officer for the
duration of the review, and he will guide both groups through the process and prepare all of the
Council’'s submission paperwork.

Before the formal review commences, the Council is required to indicate its preference on
Council size (i.e. the total number of local authority councillors) to the LGBC. Council may also
choose to give an indication of its preference for single- or multi-Member wards. The LGBC wiill
then decide whether it is minded to accept the Council’'s preference, and this decision will
dictate what type of review the LGBC conducts.

Further information on the subject of this report is available from
John Jones, Head of Governance on (01432) 260200

51



o The submission on Council size has been prepared by the electoral Review Officer using
feedback and information from both Electoral Review groups, and is attached as Appendix A.
Members are asked to note that the submission is still in draft at this stage. This is because, at
the time that the Council agenda went to print, the Members’ Electoral Review Working Group
was still waiting to meet with representatives from the LGBC to receive feedback on the draft
submission and note any areas where further information might still be required. This meeting
will have taken place before Council on 02 March 2012, and if any further updates are needed
to the submission, they will be circulated to members as soon as possible, or tabled at Council
with this report.

o The preference for Council size is indicated in the submission as 54. The attached submission
contains the reasoning behind this preference and sets out the case for reducing the number of
councillors from the current 58 to the proposed figure of 54.

o The report also sets out the Council’'s general preference for single member wards wherever

possible, particularly in the rural areas, provided it can be achieved without detriment to local
communities.

Alternative Options

1 Council can approve an alternative Council size if it wishes, but in doing so must evidence that
there would be sufficient capacity to enable Councillors to discharge all aspects of their roles
and run the Council effectively.

Reasons for Recommendations

2 The electoral review will begin formally in March 2012, and the Council’s initial submission on
size is required beforehand in order to inform the LGBC on what type of review should be
conducted.

Introduction and Background

3 The electoral review is necessary because 30% of wards in the county have an electoral
variance in excess of 10% from the average figure of electors per councillor in the Authority.
In particular, Hollington Ward has a variance of 34%.

4 Once agreement is reached on the number of councillors, the requirements of the review
become clearer. The LGBC has issued technical guidance to help local authorities,
organisations and members of the public, and in this it lists three options for reviews as
follows:

Type A — applicable where there is no need or case for a change in Council size. Typically
such a review is triggered mainly by electoral imbalances, or if there has been a review within
the past ten years and there are no new arguments for change This type of review takes
about 26 to 30 weeks to complete before the LGBC makes a final recommendation.

Type B — applicable where a small change in the number of Councillors is proposed which
normally means an increase or decrease of up to three Councillors and the LGBC is minded to
accept the Council’s preference on size. This review gathers views and information from the
public on community identities, the impact of new ward boundaries and possible warding
arrangements. The Council would make a submission on warding arrangements at this stage
which helps the Commission to formulate Draft Recommendations which are then subject to
formal public consultations. This type of review is estimated to take between 42 to 50 weeks to
complete.

52



Type C — applicable where the Authority makes a case for a substantial change of number of
councillors which normally involves more than three Councillors In this instance the LGBC
conducts an initial formal public consultation on Council size, following which a minded to
recommend notice is issued and views/information are sought from the public on warding
arrangements and related issues. This then leads to the second stage of public consultation
on the Commission’s Draft Recommendations. This review can take between 52 and 62
weeks to complete.

In March 2012, the LGBC will make its decision about which review it will undertake for
Herefordshire Council.

Key Considerations

6.

10.

Appendix A to this report deals only with the issue of Council size, because this initial
requirement is the Council’s responsibility and must be dealt with first. Once the review type is
chosen and starts formally, detailed research will be undertaken on all other aspects of the
review, such as warding arrangements, mapping proposals, community identity and effective
working arrangements for members. Any organisation, group, political party or individual will
also be able to contribute to the review and the LGBC will give equal weight to all information it
receives. In all instances, information must be supported by evidence.

Section 4.2 of Appendix A refers to the LGBC’s technical guidance in respect of the criteria for
Council size. The submission must demonstrate that it meets all four points listed.

Section 18 of the report provides detailed reasoning that a Council size of 54 is viable. It
demonstrates the extent of member’s workloads and how the work is distributed between
them, and gives the current number of places allocated to members on committees, sub-
committees and outside bodies. It also lists their other responsibilities to schools,
communities and parish and town councils. It argues a case for members spending more time
working within given localities, and less time corporately.

Paragraph 19.1 outlines the Council’'s case for warding arrangements. This will require
further, much more detailed work in several stages during the formal review, and will result in
consideration of several different options.

The cross-party Member Electoral Review Working Group has met to consider the Councils
draft submission on Council size, which is a statement of the current working arrangements of
members. However, not all Members agreed with the full content of the document. In
particular there was a range of options put forward concerning the future size of the Council
and the fact that the current Overview and Scrutiny arrangements were not fully supported by
all Groups.

Community Impact

11.

It should be noted that any new warding arrangements could have implications on the
Council’s current localities, however it could be possible to set criteria for the warding exercise
that aims not to cut across two localities.

Financial Implications

12.

Costs have been incurred in the preparation of the Council’s submission which can be met
from current budgetary provision and there will be additional costs involved in undertaking any
re-warding exercise that will follow the Commission’s decision.

53



Legal Implications
13 The review is being undertaken in accordance with the Local Democracy, Economic

Development and Construction Act 2009 and the Secretary of State’s statutory guidance. The
Council has a duty to comply with the review.

Risk Management

14 The need to undertake a re-warding exercise may clash with the organisation of the Police
and Crime Commissioner elections and the Annual canvass, which will place considerable
strain on existing resources.

Consultees

15 A detailed communication exercise will be undertaken as part of the review.

Appendices

Appendix A — Draft submission on Council Size

Background Papers

None

54



DRAFT COUNCIL SIZE SUBMISSION

11

1.2

1.3

2.1

2.2

2.3

2.4

Introduction

In May 2011 the Local Government Boundary Commission for England (“the Commission”)
confirmed that a Further Electoral Review of Herefordshire would be undertaken beginning
formally in March 2012. The Review is needed because 30% of Wards in the County have an
electoral variance in excess of 10% from the average figure for electors per Councillor in the
Authority. In addition the Hollington Ward has a variance of 34%.

An all-Party Members’ Working Group has been appointed to oversee the Review process,
and to develop the responses and submissions which will be required as a result of the
Commission’s consultations and proposals. This work is undertaken on behalf of the full
Council, which will consider and determine the Authority’s position at each stage of the
Review.

This initial Submission, prepared by the Working Group and approved by the full Council on
2 March 2012, presents the case for a Council of 54 Councillors.

Context — Key Characteristics of the County

Herefordshire is a predominantly rural county, with the 4™ Jowest population density in
England. It is situated in the south-west of the West Midlands region bordering Wales. The
city of Hereford, in the middle of the county, is the centre for most facilities; other principal
locations are the five market towns of Leominster, Ross-on-Wye, Ledbury, Bromyard and
Kington.

Herefordshire has beautiful unspoilt countryside; distinctive heritage; remote valleys and
rivers. The River Wye divides the county, flowing east from the Welsh border through
Hereford city before turning south into the Wye Valley Area of Outstanding Natural Beauty.
The Malvern Hills, rising to 400m, border the east of county, and the south-west is
dominated by the western reaches of the Black Mountains with altitudes of more than
600m.

Unlike other rural counties, which have large areas with no residents, Herefordshire’s
179,300 residents are scattered across its 842 square miles — which poses a particular
challenge for service delivery and access. Almost all of the land area falls within the 25%
most deprived in England in terms of geographical barriers to services; the Golden Valley in
the south-west and the Mortimer locality in the north-west are particularly affected.
Compounding the physical access issue, access to broadband, mobile phone services and
other service infrastructure is an issue for some residents and businesses in rural areas.

With only four railway stations, the transport network is mainly comprised of rural ‘C’ or
unclassified roads leading off single carriageway ‘A’ roads. The main road links, which all
pass through Hereford, are the A49 trunk road (running from north to south), the A438 (east

55



2.5

2.6

2.7

2.8

2.9

2.10

to west), the A4103 towards Worcester and the A465 towards Abergavenny and South
Wales.

Herefordshire has a relatively old population structure, and numbers of older people are
expected to continue to increase disproportionately to the rest of the population.
Population growth is driven by net in-migration of people of all ages, mainly from other
parts of the UK — although immigration levels have increased substantially since the
expansion of the European Union in 2004. Although current evidence suggests that the
majority of eastern European migrants are short-term seasonal workers, over half of the
3,700 non-UK citizens registered to vote in Herefordshire in 2010 were from the new
member states.

Although the county as a whole has relatively low levels of overall, multiple deprivation,
several areas of south Hereford and Leominster are persistently amongst the most
deprived in England, and are becoming more deprived relative to other parts of the
country. Latest figures show that an area of Ross-on-Wye is also amongst the most
deprived nationally. There are also small pockets of rural deprivation.

Overall people in Herefordshire are healthy, live longer compared with national life
expectancy, and have positive experiences of the things that affect their lives and well-being.
However, there are significant health inequalities between those living in the most and least
deprived areas.

In general the county has a relatively large proportion of employment in sectors that tend to
attract lower wages such as ‘wholesale and retail’ and ‘agriculture’, which affects the overall
productivity of the county. Self-employment is more common than nationally, particularly in
‘agriculture’, ‘arts, entertainment and recreation, and other service activities’ and
‘construction’.  Unemployment is higher than prior to the recession, but remains low
compared to regional and national levels. Low wages and relatively high house prices mean
that the affordability of housing is a key issue for the county — both to buy and rent, so there
is consistently high demand for social housing.

The emerging planning strategy for the County includes the provision of 16,500 new homes
in the period up to 2031 with supporting infrastructure. Around 40% of the new homes will
be built in and around the main urban area of Hereford, with the remaining developments
being dispersed to the market towns and rural area.

Herefordshire Council is a Unitary Authority and has responsibility for more than 5000
people who are engaged in different ways in the delivery of the Council’s services, including
staff employed in schools. Some of these staff (1336) deliver integrated services on behalf
of NHS Herefordshire, with whom the Council has joint working arrangements through
Herefordshire Public Services for service provision throughout the County. In addition, there
are other staff who work in services which have been outsourced by the Council. The
Council’s net budget for 2012/2013 amounts to £143.359 million.

56



3. The Council’s Vision
3.1 Herefordshire Council, with its NHS partners, has a shared vision: ‘Working together to
deliver efficient excellent services and improve outcomes for the people of Herefordshire’
3.2 The following core principles set out what the council stands for, and what residents can
expect of it.
PRINCIPLE IMPACT
Valued Services Focusing on our priorities & what matters to
people, stopping things we don’t need to
do
Reducing Bureaucracy Less regulation and red tape, smaller local
government; right first time delivery
Supporting the Vulnerable Targeting resources on individuals, families,
communities at risk or disadvantaged;
early intervention & prevention; a shift in
social care provision
Value for Money Reducing the pay bill; third party spend savings;
smarter delivery; cutting costs
Local Delivery Devolution to parishes and the VCS, local
decision making; working through 9
localities
Personal Responsibility Self reliance, people and communities helping
themselves, behavioural change;
increase in personalisation
3.3 Through the local government boundary review the council is seeking to demonstrate, in
particular, three of the above principles: reducing bureaucracy and securing value for money
by ensuring that the number of wards in the county, and the number of members
representing each ward is proportionate and appropriate to meet the needs of the county
and its residents; and local delivery by ensuring that configuration of ward boundaries has
regard to the locality working arrangements being established.
4. Council Size
4.1 The first issue to be addressed in the Review is that of Council size, that is the number of

Councillors to be elected to the Authority. Once identified, this will determine the average
number of electors per Councillor in all wards across the County. This electoral equality
figure is reached by dividing the electorate by the proposed number of Councillors. The
Councillor/Electorate ratio figure then becomes the target as working arrangements are

57




4.2

4.3

5.1

5.2

53

prepared in the following stages of the Review. The current Herefordshire electorate is
142,026.

The Technical Guidance from the Commission indicates that the factors which influence
Council size can be grouped under four broad elements relating to the Council’s political
management arrangements:

e The decision making process — what decisions, taken where and how is it managed?

e Quasi-judicial process — planning and licensing — what is the workload and how is it
managed?

e The scrutiny process -= what is scrutinised and how is the total scrutiny workload
managed?

e The representative work of the elected members — in the community, in partnerships
and sitting on outside bodies.

The Commission will want to be satisfied that the number of Councillors available to cover
all of this activity (and related less formal but essential processes) will enable these roles to
be discharged effectively. The Commission will consider whether the proposed number
creates sufficient capacity at Member level for the effective running of the Council.

Governance Model

The Council operates a Leader and Cabinet model of governance under the provisions of the
Local Government Act 2000. The full Council (currently 58 elected members) elects the
Leader, who then appoints members to the Cabinet, and decides on their portfolios. The
Cabinet exercises most functions of the Authority and makes decisions for matters which are
not allocated elsewhere in the political structures. There are currently 7 Cabinet Members
(including the Leader) all of whom hold a portfolio. The Cabinet is supported directly by 6
other members, each of whom is assigned support responsibility within a specific portfolio.

The full Council decides the overall budget and policy framework and agrees the annual
budget to which the Cabinet and Committees of the Council must operate.

The Leader and Cabinet are held to account by a single Overview and Scrutiny Committee,
formed from Councillors who are not members of the Cabinet (non-executive members).
The Committee also has a role in policy development, and can appoint “task and finish”
Groups of Members to carry out specific service reviews. The Overview and Scrutiny
Committee exercises the Council’s statutory responsibilities for “external” scrutiny —
including Crime and Disorder and the National Health Service. Although it is not a decision
making body, the Committee can make recommendations for action to the Cabinet and
Council Meeting, and to external bodies as appropriate.

58



5.4

5.5

6.1

6.2

The Council appoints a number of other Committees, which exercise delegated decision
making powers on the Council’s behalf. These are the Regulatory Committee, Planning
Committee, Audit and Governance Committee and the Standards Committee. The quasi-
judicial functions are exercised by the Planning and Regulatory Committees, with the latter
carrying out a wide range of regulatory powers and duties, including licensing and
registration. The Council also appoints an Employment Panel and an Employment Appeals
Panel to deal with the defined roles which Councillors have concerning staffing matters. The
Council may also set up Informal Advisory Bodies and Working Parties which are not decision
making but can offer advice and assistance across the political management structures.

The political management arrangements were reviewed following the last election in May
2011. The key changes were

e a reduction in the number of Cabinet Members including the Leader from 9 to 6,
although the number was subsequently increased back to 7, and 6 Cabinet Support
Members were also appointed

e a reduction in the number of Scrutiny Committees from 6 to 1. Previously there had
been an Overview and Scrutiny Committee, supported by 5 themed Scrutiny
Committees. Those themed Committees were discontinued leaving only the Overview
and Scrutiny Committee, with power to set up “task and finish” groups, drawn from all
non-executive members of the Council (including co-opted Members)

o further changes to the scheme of delegation to officers, with particular regard to
Planning and Regulatory functions, so that officers have more responsibility for
decisions, and less work is channelled through Committees and therefore through
councillors.

Council

The full Council at present consists of 58 Members with “all out” elections every 4 years.
The Council is a Unitary District authority (single tier) and is therefore responsible overall for
the delivery or commissioning of the full range of local government services in the area. The
large majority of these functions are overseen at political level through the Cabinet.
Herefordshire Council works very closely with other service providers in the County, and in
particular has a formal partnership with NHS Herefordshire, with the two organisations
sharing a range of integrated management arrangements. Both bodies are also members of
the wider Herefordshire Partnership, which includes all major organisations working in the
County, and sets the overall policies and priorities through the Herefordshire Sustainable
Community Strategy.

The full Council meets at least 5 times per year, to exercise the functions reserved to it
under the Constitution, and in particular to adopt the Policy Framework and Budget. The
meetings are held during the day, rather than in the evening.

59



7.1

7.2

7.3

7.4

8.1

Cabinet

The Cabinet consists of 7 portfolios as follows:-

e Corporate Strategy and Finance (Leader)

e Health and Wellbeing [with 2 Support Members for Children and Adult Social Care]

e Corporate Services and Education [with 1 Support Member for Finance and Commercial
Services]

e Enterprise & Culture [with 1 Support Member for Broadband, Business and Tourism]
e Environment, Housing and Planning [with 1 Support Member for Planning]

e Highways, Transportation and Waste/Sustainability [with 1 Support Member for
Waste/Sustainability]

e Major Contracts

Although the Cabinet Support Members are allocated specific responsibilities, in practice
they can assist the portfolio holders with other aspects of the business.

Accordingly, including the Support Members there are 13 Councillors directly involved in the
discharge of the Cabinet’s business. 7 of these members meet collectively as the Cabinet
once per month to carry out their formal decision making responsibilities. These 12
meetings per year are held during the daytime.

The Constitution provides that individual Cabinet Members may also take separate decisions
which concern their portfolio, and also that a Cabinet Committee of 3 or more can be
constituted to take decisions if required. Since May 2011, 13 decisions have been taken on
an individual portfolio basis, in addition to the usual collective process of the full Cabinet.

Overview and Scrutiny

The Overview and Scrutiny Committee comprises 17 non-Executive Councillors plus 5
statutory voting Co-opted Members. In addition to the Chairman, there are 6 Vice Chairmen
each with a lead responsibility for scrutiny based on 6 of the designated Cabinet portfolios.
The Committee has responsibility for all overview and scrutiny functions on behalf of the
Council, and its terms of reference are therefore extensive. The key powers are:-

e advise the Cabinet on policy development and review of existing policies

e review and scrutiny of collective and individual Cabinet decisions, including the exercise
of “call in” procedures when necessary

e establish time limited and task focused Task and Finish Groups to carry out in depth
reviews and scrutiny of policy and services

e review the performance of the Council, Cabinet and partners

60



8.2

8.3

9.1

9.2

9.3

e act as the Council’s statutory Crime and Disorder Committee including the review of
partner agencies

e discharge the Council’s statutory powers to scrutinise and review the planning, provision
and operation of health services affecting the area

The Committee is scheduled to meet 12 times per year, again during the day. However, this
is the minimum figure and additional meetings are required to conduct “ad hoc” business,
such as dealing with a “call in” notice. Currently 6 themed Task and Finish Groups have been
appointed, with membership numbers varying between 5 — 8 councillors. Members of Task
and Finish Groups may be appointed from all non — Executive councillors and are required to
undertake Scrutiny Training before they can participate. The reviews themselves are
demanding of Members’ time and commitment to deliver reports in a timely manner, taking
on average up to 8 two — hour meetings to complete their work. Additional one — day
“quick” reviews are to be built in to the programme in the future. It is expected that the Vice
Chairs will lead the Task and Finish Reviews in their area of responsibility.

Prior to the changes in May 2011, there were 38 meetings of Scrutiny Committees during
the year. The reduction to 1 standing Scrutiny Committee was intended to manage the
overview and scrutiny business more efficiently, but it should be assumed that further
meetings of the Overview and Scrutiny Committee will be needed each year, together with
significant Task and Finish activity in order to discharge the role effectively. Overall however
it is intended that there will be somewhat less impact on Members’ time in this area of
work.

Planning and Regulatory Committees

Prior to January 2010 the Council operated a system of 3 Area Planning Sub Committees
meeting monthly with all Members taking a place on the one appropriate to their ward
location. In addition, there was a Planning Committee which consisted of 21 members,
which met every 6 weeks with additional meetings as required for major applications or
issues.

These arrangements were reduced from January 2010 to a single Planning Committee with
meetings based on a 3 week cycle, with increasing levels of delegation of decisions to
officers, and this has continued since May 2011. Accordingly there are 16 scheduled
meetings of the Committee each year, which will decide 80 planning matters at Member
level in the current municipal year. The meetings take place during daytime, and tend to last
approximately 3 hours on each occasion. There are 19 Members on the Committee, and
Ward Members are also entitled to attend to speak on applications within their area.

The Committee also hold site inspections in relation to some of the applications, averaging 9
per year involving a commitment for Members of 2 hours each time. Councillors as a whole
are significantly involved in planning business, as all Members are consulted on all
applications within their Ward. This will include Councillors liaising with interested parties
and Parish Councils to ascertain their views prior to responding to the Planning Officers. As
such, this represents a distinct element of Member workload.

61



9.4

9.5

9.6

9.7

9.8

10.

10.1

10.2

The Regulatory Committee is responsible for a very wide range of regulatory functions,
including statutory obligations and the quasi-judicial processes of licensing and registration,
and dealing with appeals from officer decisions. The operation of this Committee also
underwent change in 2011, as prior to February the Committee met monthly, with a Sub-
Committee (of 3 Members drawn from the main Committee on a rota basis) appointed to
deal with licensing work. The Sub-Committee needed to meet every 3 — 4 weeks to cover
the business.

The current practice is for the full Regulatory Committee to meet every three months, to
oversee the process, review and updating of policies previously approved by the Cabinet and
receive performance information. More of the business has been delegated to an Officer
Panel, with the remainder — primarily Licensing Appeals and other regulatory matters —
being dealt with by the Regulatory Sub-Committee, which meets at least fortnightly, and is
projected to meet 30 times in the current year, to determine 75 substantive cases.

10 Councillors are appointed to the Regulatory Committee, with 3 of these Members
forming the Sub-Committee each time on a rotating basis. Meetings of both bodies are held
during the day, with the Sub-Committee in particular lasting over 3 hours at times.

As with Planning, all Councillors are consulted about Licensing and certain regulatory
matters (e.g. footpath diversions) affecting their Ward, may need to “take soundings” locally
and can attend Regulatory meetings to give their views.

Given the nature of this work, Members of both the Planning and Regulatory Committees
are required to undertake training on roles and responsibilities, and the conduct of the
Committee’s business. Two planning events were held in 2011, together with one
Regulatory session. In addition, Regulatory Committee Members were involved in 4
additional sessions as part of the changes introduced earlier in 2011. Members also have ad
hoc “one-to-one” training sessions when appropriate, in relation to Planning issues. An
example of this would be training for a member who is substituting for a Planning
Committee member for the first time.

Other Committees

The Audit and Governance Committee exercises the Council’s responsibilities with regard to
risk management, internal and external audit and governance and approval of the Council’s
statements of accounts. This has recently been extended to include a review and updating
of the Constitution. It consists of 10 Councillors and meets 6 times per year.

The Standards Committee comprises 2 Herefordshire Councillors and 2 nominated
substitutes, 3 Independent Members (non-Councillors) and 2 representatives of Town and
Parish Councils and 2 nominated substitutes. Its role is to promote high standards of
conduct by Members of the Council, and to deal with complaints where a person thinks that
a Councillor (including Parish Councillors) has not complied with the National Code of
Conduct. The Committee meets quarterly, and has appointed 4 Sub-Committees
(Assessment, Review, Consideration and Hearing) which meet as required to deal with the
various stages of complaints. Last year the various sub-committees met a total of 10 times,

62



10.3

11.

111

11.2

11.3

12.

12.1

and dealt with 64 complaints about local authority, parish or town councillors. The role of
this committee is under review because of changes in the regime for dealing with complaints
about Members, brought about by the Localism Act. Some responsibilities may transfer to
the Audit and Governance Committee.

The Council has also appointed an Employment Panel and an Employment Appeals Panel,
consisting of 5 members, and 3 Members chosen from a pool, respectively, to fulfil the
Council’s responsibilities under Staff Employment Rules and the authority’s Employment
Policies and Procedures. It may be anticipated that the workload of both bodies will reduce,
to reflect the lower number of direct employees in the Council. The Panels meet as and
when required.

Advisory and Other Bodies

The Council, Cabinet and the Overview and Scrutiny Committee may appoint Working
Parties or Advisory Groups which include in their membership Councillors and
representatives from partner organisations or the local community. These bodies have no
decision making powers, but may provide advice and support within the political
management structure. At present the following have been established:

Rural Forum (All councillors can attend))

Locality Meetings (covering Hereford City, the 5 market towns, plus 3 rural localities) (All
councillors)

Electoral Review Working Group (10 councillors)
Member Development and Training Group (4 councillors)

The Council has constituted a Shadow Health and Wellbeing Board (under the provisions of
the Health and Social Care Bill). It consists of a wide range of partner organisations, and is
chaired by the Council’s representative (member of the Cabinet). The Board meets monthly
and its role, including membership, will be developed significantly in future as the Bill
becomes law.

The Leaders of each of the Party Groups meet on a monthly basis under the Chairmanship of
the Leader of the Council. These meetings although informal fulfil an important role in the
overall political management of the Council. In addition, each Party Group holds broadly
monthly meetings which involve associated time commitments from all Members. These
meetings are also important as they enable Groups to decide their policies and approach to
the business being dealt with through the formal political management system.

Councillors’ Representational Roles

The Council makes appointments for Members to sit on a wide range of outside bodies with
national, regional and local remits, including Joint Boards, Partnerships, Charitable Trusts
and Community Organisations. The full list of these bodies is attached, involving 118 places
to be taken by Councillors. On average therefore each Member currently needs in theory to
sit on 2 outside bodies, whose meeting arrangements will vary but will include evening

63



12.2

13.

13.1

13.2

133

13.4

13.5

13.6

meetings. However, in practice a significantly higher number of places than the average are
taken by certain councillors, particularly the Cabinet and other office holders, which is a
reflection of the roles undertaken by these Members and the requirement for them to take
up places on external bodies related to their work.

In addition there are 167 local authority places to be taken on Herefordshire School
Governing Bodies of which 31 are currently filled by Councillors, with the large majority
being a Governor for just 1 school. Governing Bodies tend to meet twice a term at late
afternoon or evening meetings of no longer than 2 hours duration, resulting in a regular time
and preparation commitment for the Members concerned.

Engagement with Town and Parish Councils

Herefordshire is 100% parished. There are 245 parishes in the county grouped into 134
parish councils and 4 parish meetings. There are 1200 parish councillors across the County.
The relationship between parish councils and the unitary authority has been agreed and
published as “The New Charter 2011” (attached).

Ward Members are the key contacts between the unitary authority and parish councils.
With the emphasis on localism and the passing of the Localism Act, this relationship is even
more important. It can also be quite complex — the Hereford City Parish area covers 7
different Unitary wards and a total of 17 Herefordshire councillors.

Whilst Ward Members in the City and Market Towns only have one parish council with
which to relate, rural ward members have up to 8 parish councils with which to work. It is
the very nature of the rural county that these parish councils are spread out over a
considerable area with travelling time an important aspect of the work of the rural ward
member.

The Authority is actively trying to encourage the working relationship between the Ward
Members and the parish councils in their wards. Ward Members are expected to attend all
parish council meetings, hold surgeries in the parishes, work with parishes on their parish
plans and increasingly work to improve service delivery at local level (see New Charter
2011).

An emerging issue following the enactment of the Localism Act is Neighbourhood Planning.
Closely connected to Community-led planning, this is a statutory process to enable parish
councils to plan the land use in their areas. Parish councils can work alone or work together
on the production of the neighbourhood plan. The role of the Ward Councillor is to advise
and support the parish councils in their ward when or if those parish councils wish to
develop a plan.

In addition, the Herefordshire Council is increasingly engaging with its local communities
across all directorates. This engagement often takes the form of consultations which involve
full briefings of Ward members who then go on to lead the consultation at community and
parish council level (evidence the latest Local Development Framework consultation). This
process, whilst very rewarding, is time consuming and resource intensive. In all these ways
the role of the Ward member as a community leader is being enhanced.

64



14.

14.1

14.2

14.3

14.4

14.5

14.6

Locality Strategy

Over the past eighteen months, Herefordshire Public Services (Herefordshire Council and
NHS Herefordshire) has been working with its partners to develop an improved approach to
meeting the needs of local communities. Locality working is about working with
communities, so that they have real influence on what services are delivered and how in
their area. HPS will work closely with communities to have a better understanding of what
issues are important to them and how all parties can work together to achieve better
outcomes for people and places.

By working together, HPS aims to achieve:

. Strengthened community leadership - working together for the benefit of the local
area
. Services meeting the needs of communities - designed and delivered with the

customer in mind
. Joined up local services - sharing of resources and integrating services

. Working in partnership with empowered communities - local people involved in
local decisions and given more control over local issues.

In early 2010, nine localities were identified to help deliver services closer to communities
and address local needs. These localities are: Hereford City, five market towns (Leominster,
Bromyard, Ross-on-Wye, Ledbury and Kington) and three rural areas (Weobley, Golden
Valley and Mortimer).The areas provide the basis for a joined up approach to delivering
services and ensure that HPS is able to maintain as many valued local services as possible.

The localities approach will bring together HPS, parish councils, delivery partners and
community representatives to discuss and agree local priorities. An approach tailored to
each area will be developed, reflecting the different needs of each locality, building on what
currently works and connecting to existing mechanisms that reach the more vulnerable or
hard to reach members of the community.

The development of the Locality Strategy will build on joint arrangements which already
work well in practice. A good example is the liaison with West Mercia Police, whose Area
Policing Teams have been set up using the Council’s ward boundaries, thereby enhancing
local community identity. Another example is the South Wye Regeneration Partnership.
which is bringing significant benefits to the area.

The role of the Ward Councillor is key to the delivery of the Locality Strategy. This new way
of working will be supported through existing staff and resources and each of the Localities
will be supported by a senior manager from the public sector.

65



15.

15.1

15.2

15.3

16.

16.1

16.2

17.

17.1

17.2

Councillors as Elected Representatives

A significant element of Councillors’ workloads arises from their position as elected
representatives of the local community. This includes dealing with electors’ individual issues
and complaints (‘caseload’), holding “surgeries” for electors and possibly home visits.
Although this activity is difficult to quantify and will vary from one Member to another, it has
to be taken into account as it can impact on Member capacity and effectiveness.

Some officer support is available to Members towards helping with correspondence, and
through the provision of newsletters and briefing notes. There are 5 dedicated staff in the
current structure, allocated as follows: 3 general members’ support officers, 1 cabinet
support secretary, and 1 personal assistant to both the Leader and the Chairman. However
there is no direct support available to assist with Member caseloads, and this is expected to
remain the position at least in the short term.

Increasingly members deal with information by electronic means. They receive weekly
updates electronically, and meeting papers and agendas. They are also using email
extensively as a means of contacting officers and their constituents.

Member Development

Member development is an essential means of enabling all Councillors to develop their
knowledge and personal skills, helping them to carry out their varied roles in an effective
manner. The Council provides an annual programme of (internal and external) events and
other personal development opportunities. There is an expectation that Councillors will
participate — indeed training is a pre-requisite for certain areas of work, e.g. both Planning
and Regulatory Committees. The programme provides events on a weekly basis which are
open to all councillors and are generally well attended. Preparation for and attendance at
Development Events requires all Councillors to set aside the necessary time, and it is
intended that this level of programme will continue. This activity is overseen by a Member
Development and Training Group comprising 4 Councillors and 4 nominated substitutes,
which meets on a quarterly basis.

The Members’ Handbook is an excellent resource which is widely used by all councillors.

Briefing Arrangements for Councillors

Briefings are held for Cabinet members before each Cabinet meeting. There are also pre-
meeting briefings for the Chairman and Vice-Chairman before every Committee and Sub-
Committee.

2 dates are set aside every month for additional briefings that members might require on
anything. These are built into the calendar so that members know that there is always some
time set aside for them on a reliable basis, and this helps them to plan accordingly.
Councillors also receive a weekly newsletter.

66



18.

18.1

18.2

18.3

18.4

18.5

Conclusions

The changes made by the Council to the Member — level governance arrangements in 2011
were intended partly to allow councillors further to develop their community and
representational roles. The Council continues to recognise the importance of effective
corporate decision making and scrutiny arrangements, but wishes to change the balance of
councillors’ overall activities to provide more capacity for working with communities, in line
with the Locality Strategy. The reduction in the formal Committee structure recognised that
Members would continue to participate in “Task and Finish” Scrutiny and Advisory groups as
part of their corporate roles. The Council is of the view that a total of 54 councillors would
have capacity to carry out their varying responsibilities effectively, for the reasons set out
below.

It is generally recognised that in Authorities operating the “Leader and Cabinet” governance
model, Cabinet Members and those involved directly with them as Cabinet Support
Members (the Executive) carry a high level workload on behalf of the Council. These
councillors are responsible for the majority of the Authority’s decision making and
associated activities, including regular formal meetings, weekly briefings, and close
engagement with officers and partner organisations. The Cabinet leads policy development
at the political level and is accountable for effective delivery and performance. Accordingly,
councillors in Cabinet positions tend to work full time on these activities, and are not
normally able to take up places on other Committees. There are currently 7 Cabinet
Members plus 6 Cabinet Support Members in Herefordshire, and there are no plans at the
present time to alter these arrangements. In terms of the overall allocation of Committee
places to councillors, the 13 Cabinet Members would be discounted, due to the demands
placed upon them collectively and individually as the Executive. Having said this, there is at
present a need for the Support Members to act as substitutes on certain Committees, in
order to ensure compliance with the political proportionality rules for those Committees.
This aspect will have to be kept under review by the Council following the next elections.

Similar considerations apply to the Chairman of the Council, who as the Authority’s “civic
head” is not able to take up any significant Committee workload, because of his/her civic
programme and related responsibilities. The role of the Vice Chairman would also have to be
assessed depending on the civic workload expected of that Office.

Taking the 7 Cabinet Members and their 6 Support councillors and the Council Chairman out

I/I

of the “pool” for the allocation of seats on Committees and other member — level groups

would leave 40 councillors available from the overall Council size of 54.

In addition to the Cabinet, the other areas where Member workloads are particularly high
relate to the “statutory” Committees — Planning, Regulatory and Overview and Scrutiny. As
indicated in the detailed analysis above, meeting frequencies especially for Planning and
Regulatory are high. Planning Committee (19 Members) operates on a 3-week cycle, with a
great deal of ancillary activity. The 10 Members of the Regulatory Committee are required to
meet at least every 2 weeks as the Regulatory Sub Committee, in addition to the quarterly
meetings of the Committee itself, which represents a substantial commitment. Given the

67



18.6

18.7

18.8

18.9

18.10

workloads involved, the majority of councillors would only be able to take a place on one of
these Committees, with the heaviest burdens falling on the Committee and Sub Committee
Chairs.

The change to one formal Overview and Scrutiny Committee has reduced the total number
of standing scrutiny Committees in the structure, and accordingly the number of places
available. The Council intends to operate with this more streamlined structure in the future,
but other factors must be taken into account. The 17 councillors on this Committee will
continue to carry significant responsibilities for holding the Cabinet to account, contributing
to policy review, and scrutiny of specific decisions. In addition to the Chair, 6 other Members
of the Committee are appointed as Vice Chairs, with direct responsibility for scrutiny and
review of designated Cabinet portfolios. Committee Members will also participate in “Task
and Finish” scrutiny reviews in addition to the programmed minimum of 12 regular meetings
of the Committee per year.

At present, a total of 46 seats is available on the 3 statutory Committees, which would
ensure that all of the 40 “eligible” councillors would be able to take a place on one of these
bodies, with 6 having to sit on two under the current arrangements. The Council would
review the composition of each Committee (in accordance with the “political
proportionality” rules), once the Council size figure is established, to ensure following the
elections that the best “fit” is achieved.

The remaining decision making bodies of the Council meet less frequently — between 4 and 6
times a year. Their workloads are lower, with proportionately less time commitment
required of Members. Audit and Governance Committee comprises 10 councillors, and
Standards Committee includes just 2 Unitary Councillors. In addition, the Employment Panel
and the Employment Appeals Panel involve 8 Member places in total. As a result, only half of
the available 40 councillors would have to take places on these bodies, so these activities
can readily be combined with other work.

The Council intends to continue and develop the current arrangements for Members to
engage in Advisory and other “ad hoc” Working Groups, which make an important
contribution to the governance arrangements overall. At present 4 such bodies have been
appointed, and it is assumed that this pattern will continue and develop, with an average of
6 Groups being constituted each year. With 6/7 councillors on each, the estimated number
of places available per year would total around 40, which equates to 1 place for each
councillor — bearing in mind that these appointments would be based on Members’
individual expertise and particular areas of interest.

With regard to Overview and Scrutiny, it is envisaged that around 14 - 18 “Task and Finish”
Scrutiny Review Panels would be appointed annually comprising both themed Task and
Finish groups and the “quick” one day reviews. Although these may all vary in size, and
include Co-opted Members, 5/6 councillor places on each would be the norm. Membership
of these Panels will be open to all (non Cabinet) Members of the Council and not just the
Overview and Scrutiny Committee. Assuming that between 7 — 9 of the Panels will be based
on themed groups, approximately 45 places would be available each year, broadly equal to
one place for each eligible Member of the Council. The remaining one day reviews would

68



18.11

18.12

18.13

18.14

represent a more intermittent call on Members’ time, and could generally be
accommodated within the councillors’ overall workloads.

On the foregoing basis, the number of seats required for the effective political management
of the Council is:

Statutory Committees - 46

Ordinary Committees — 20

Advisory/Working Groups — 40

Scrutiny Themed Task and Finish Groups — 45
Total Places — 151

The 40 available councillors would therefore take on average around 3.75 places each, being
a combination of a high workload statutory Committee; a medium workload ordinary
Committee; and the more ad hoc themed Scrutiny and Advisory Groups.

The additional requirements associated with the formal structures and meetings for
councillors to attend briefings, undertake preparatory work, and participate in appropriate
Member Development activities relevant to their roles (as described above) have also been
taken into account in assessing councillor capacity. The Council has also noted that there has
been a recent small increase in the proportion of the current councillors holding full or part
time jobs in addition to their council work. As the majority of the Committee meetings are
currently held in the daytime, the Council has been careful to propose the number of
Councillors at a level which will reflect the availability of Members overall to participate in
the Committee business. The Council would also wish to make the role of a councillor
attractive to as many people as possible, and to encourage a widely representative cross
section of the public to stand for election. This means that the Council’'s meeting
arrangements should be compatible with councillors in employment, and allow sufficient
capacity and flexibility in the system for individuals to carry out both roles. These trends
would be reassessed following the election of the new Council, and the arrangements for
meetings kept under review. The Council is however satisfied that an average of 3.75 places
per councillor will result in manageable individual workloads enabling all Members to make
an effective contribution.

In summary, this analysis results in each of the non — Cabinet related Members in a Council
of 54 (and not including the Chairman of the Council) broadly occupying 1 place on a
Committee with a high workload and commitment level; together with 1 seat on both a
“Task and Finish” Group and an Advisory/Working Group; and with half (20) of the
councillors being appointed to a Committee/Panel with a “medium” rather than a high
workload. All Members would, of course, attend the full Council Meeting at least 5 times per
year. Overall, it is considered that this represents a balanced and varied workload for the 54
councillors, with capacity to deliver convenient and effective governance at the corporate
level.

69



18.15

18.16

18.17

18.18

18.19

19.

19.1

These conclusions are supported by the outcomes from the most recent (2010) National
Census of Local Authority Councillors, which indicated that “on average, councillors were
members of 3.6 committees or sub — committees, which was a similar average to 2008
(3.7).”

With regard to councillors’ representational roles, as mentioned previously, the 54 Members
will be required to represent the Council on a theoretical average of 2 outside organisations
(recognising that leading councillors will take a higher proportion of these places), plus 31
places currently taken by councillors on school governing bodies . Although the meeting
arrangements and frequencies for these bodies will vary, many will take place in the
evening, and will place demands on Members’ time for briefing, preparation and travel in
addition to the actual meetings themselves.

Of particular significance is the Council’s commitment to working closely with Parish
Councils, and to develop this activity further as part of the Locality Strategy. As described
above, this policy impacts directly on each Member of the Council, as all councillors are
expected to undertake a personal leadership role, working closely with the Parish Councils in
their Ward. Bearing in mind that Herefordshire is a wholly parished Authority, and the
predominantly rural nature of the county, liaison with Parish Councils will continue to make
significant demands on Members’ time. Currently, 34 out of the 58 unitary councillors are
also elected members of Parish Councils, so a good platform is already in place further to
develop these working relationships. It is envisaged that the proposed Council size of 54
would be sufficient to provide the capacity for the ongoing development of the Locality
Strategy, particularly as other corporate commitments will progressively become a little less
for the majority of councillors. These arrangements will contribute directly to effective local
governance across the whole County area.

This proposal for a Council size of 54 has addressed the four broad elements identified by
the Commission with regard to convenient and effective local governance. The Authority is
satisfied that this number would provide sufficient capacity to enable councillors to
discharge all aspects of their roles and to run the Council effectively.

Using the current electorate figures, 54 councillors would represent an electorate of 142026,
giving a target electoral equality figure of 2630 electors per councillor. Given the largely
rural characteristics of the County, and the substantially dispersed population, this is
considered to be an appropriate ratio enabling the councillors to relate effectively to the
interests of electors in their Wards.

Number of Councillors per Ward

The Council’s approach is based on a general presumption for single Member Wards, where
this can be achieved without detriment to local communities. It is expected that single
Member Ward arrangements will apply particularly in the rural localities. In order to protect
community interests, avoid splitting communities and to retain local community identities as
far as possible, flexibility will be provided to allow 2 Member Wards where needed, and in
exceptional cases to enable the possibility of one or more 3 Member Wards. It is envisaged
that any multi Member Wards will be located primarily in the more urban areas. Any

70



proposals in due course for multi Member Wards will be based on evidence that the three
statutory criteria will be best satisfied with such a configuration in the areas concerned.

71



72



NEW CHARTER 2011.

A Shared Community
Working relationships in Local Government in
Herefordshire.

October 2011 (FINAL APPROVED)

73



Contents/Index

Page
Introduction 3
The Local Context 4
The National Context 5
The New Charter 5
Working in Partnership 5
Local Democracy 6
Clustering of Local Councils and Cross
Border Issues 7
Consultation 7
Communication 8
Service Delivery 8
Delegation, Devolution and Adoption of Services 8
Service Changes by Herefordshire Council 9
Asset Transfer and/or Sharing of Assets 9
Operational Arrangements 10
Quality Status and Power of Well-Being 10
Emergency Planning 10
Community Resilience 10
Training and Development 10
Compliments, Comments, Complaints and Disputes 11
Social and economic Sustainability 11
Equality of Opportunity 11
Funding 11
Monitoring, further work and Review 12

74



NEW CHARTER 2011.
THE WORKING PARTNERSHIP BETWEEN
THE COUNCILS IN HEREFORDSHIRE

Definition
In this document:

Local Councils means all Parish, Town and City Councils.
Councils means Local Councils and Herefordshire Council

Introduction

Herefordshire Council is the unitary authority for the County of
Herefordshire. There are 58 Ward Councillors (Members) in 40 wards.
The County is 100% parished with 1200 parish councillors in 134 parish
and town/City Councils and 4 parish meetings.

Herefordshire Council and Local Councils within Herefordshire have
agreed to publish a Charter which sets out how they aim to work together.
This Charter is the result of discussions locally and across Herefordshire
to confirm existing good practice and to establish some new and
enhanced ways of working.

The Councils jointly represent all levels of democratic local government,
to whose principles they are all committed. They are keen to see
continued efforts made to improve our system of local democracy and to
see greater public participation in and appreciation of the system.

In Herefordshire, individual town and parish Councils can become
members of its county association of Local Councils, Herefordshire
Association of Local Councils (HALC). HALC is the representative
body for Local Councils and supports its members by providing an
advisory service, including legal advice supported by their national
organisation, the National Association of Local Councils.

Herefordshire Council employs a Parish Liaison Officer to further the

interests of this Charter and to work with Local Councils in their dealings
with Herefordshire Council.

75



This 2011 Charter updates and replaces the Charter for Herefordshire
Councils agreed and published in October 2002.

The Local Context

Herefordshire is establishing its approach to locality working, which is
about working in partnership with communities and the efficient delivery
of services locally.

A tiered approach to devolving services or budgets through a corporate
and partnership policy framework will be a key plank of Herefordshire’s
locality strategy and to achieving its aims and objectives. Taking a
partnership approach to decisions being made at the closest possible point
to communities will be instrumental in gaining an understanding of how
devolution (of decisions, budgets or services) could work and what this
means in relation to local people and communities having a say about
services that matter most to them.

Local Councils are the grass-roots level of local government. They have
an increasingly valuable role to play in local democracy and service
provision. By working with them and HALC, Herefordshire Council
aims to act in partnership with local communities, whilst balancing the
needs of the wider locality.

In their role as democratically accountable bodies, Local Councils offer a
means of shaping the decisions that affect their communities. They offer
a means of decentralising the provision of certain services and of
revitalising local communities. In turn, Herefordshire Council has a
strategic role in ensuring the equitable distribution of services which they
have to achieve.

This 1is consistent with the Sustainable Community Strategy for
Herefordshire which states that across Herefordshire: “We will develop
stronger, vibrant, more inclusive communities in which people enjoy a
good quality of life and feel they have influence over decisions that affect
them”.

A strong community is one that feels empowered, confident and accepted.
In order to achieve this there should be respect for each other and groups.
Individuals from all backgrounds need to be informed and have the
opportunity to get involved in making decisions which affect their
communities.

76



The National Context

The Big Society aims to put the community at the heart of taking action
in their area by encouraging volunteering and involvement in social
action, giving communities a greater say over local planning and
delivering local services.

The current Localism bill sets out a radical shift of power from central
government to local communities helping to create the Big Society.

More decisions will be taken within communities about how public
money is raised and spent. This will give people more choice and a better
standard of service. Local government will be held more accountable to
its communities giving local people opportunities to take control of the
process of decentralisation.

THE NEW CHARTER

This New Charter sets out the broad framework on how the Councils will
work together. Councils agree that an action plan will be developed,
adding more details about how the relationship will work locally across
the County.

Strong working relationships, that have already been developed and that

can be further built upon, are key to the delivery of better and more
effective services for our communities.

Working in Partnership

1. Herefordshire Council will seek to involve Local Councils in its
governance arrangements and liaise in the following ways:

a) Local Councils will invite appropriate Members and Officers of
Herefordshire Council to their meetings.

b) Members and officers of Herefordshire Council invited to
attend local council meetings will use their best endeavours to

attend such meetings

c) Herefordshire Council will maintain its close working
relationship with HALC through

77



e the regular attendance of the Parish Liaison Officer at its
meetings

e informal quarterly meetings between senior Council
Members and Officers of Herefordshire Council and HALC.

Local Democracy

2.

Herefordshire Council will work with Local Councils and HALC
to promote and to develop the public’s interest in local government
and to strive to improve a broad community involvement in local
democracy, specifically through attendance at local council
meetings, participation in parish council working groups and/or
standing as parish/town councillors.

Local Councils will:-

e Encourage the public to attend their meetings and give an
opportunity to ask questions and make comments.

e seck to encourage the talent available in communities to
participate in local council business

e Make available to the public a wide range of information
making effective use of ICT.

e Work with their Herefordshire Council Ward Members to
carry out their ward responsibilities.

e Advise Herefordshire Council Ward Members of their
meeting dates and agenda.

e Promote interest in local council elections

e Encourage a diverse and representative membership of their
council.

Herefordshire Council will:-

e Encourage their Members to work closely with their Local
Councils by regularly attending parish/town council
meetings and holding surgeries.

e Encourage their Members and officers to attend training
courses on “working with Local Councils”.

78



Clustering of Local Councils and Cross Border Issues

3.

It is recognised that some Local Councils may decide that there are
advantages in “clustering” together to deliver a service and this
may benefit the business case.

It is recognised that Local Councils may wish to cluster with
Councils across county borders or with Councils in Wales.
Councils agree to promote cross-border cooperation, taking into
account legal and funding constraints.

Consultation

Herefordshire Council will seek to give Local Councils and HALC
the opportunity to comment before making decisions that affect
their local area. The subject areas will include formulation of
policy, planning issues and the delivery of services and functions at
local level.

In consulting with them, Herefordshire Council will provide Local
Councils with sufficient information to enable them to reach an
informed view on the matter under consideration and give adequate
time to respond in accordance with Herefordshire Council’s
standard and with any statutory requirements where applicable.
Consultations will make full use of information technology.

Local Councils will take the lead in actively encouraging their
local communities to produce community-led plans that will not
only inform those Local Councils’ business plans but also feed into
Herefordshire Council’s service plans. The aim is to achieve 100%
community-led plan coverage within five years. Local Councils
will also ensure that the plans are reviewed at least annually and
updated every 5 years.

Local Councils will ensure there is a mechanism in place to engage
with their communities with regard to understanding and
responding effectively to day-to-day issues as they arise.

Local Councils will involve their communities in the annual

budgeting process and promote participatory budgeting as a means
of meeting the needs of their communities.

79



Communication

10.

11.

12.

All Local Councils should make use of ICT wherever possible for
the exchange of information, consultation documents, planning
applications, committee papers and general correspondence. It is
anticipated that this will be the preferred means of communication
in the future ensuring that effective and efficient communication is
achieved between the two tiers of local government.

Furthermore, all Councils will be encouraged to set up and
maintain websites for their communities and to link into partner
websites.

In order to optimise the ICT opportunity Herefordshire Council
will endeavour to promote the development of superfast broadband
as an efficient means of delivering 21* Century services.

Service Delivery

Delegation, Devolution and adoption of Services

13.

14.

15.

Local Councils will work with the Herefordshire Council and
consider any delegated responsibility in detail, taking into
consideration the cost, quality, local preferences and practicability
at all times.

Where a request for delegation or devolution is made, Local
Councils will produce a costed business case in support of the
request and provide evidence of local need for the service. A
mechanism for the transfer of services between Councils will be
developed following the adoption of this New Charter.

Any application should be accompanied by the Local Council
demonstrating how they will achieve Quality Status standards.

Service changes by Herefordshire Council

16.

Where Herefordshire Council decides to end a particular service,
Local Councils will be given the choice of delivering the service at
their cost by either funding Herefordshire Council or its partners to
deliver the service or by providing the service themselves.

80



Asset Transfer and/or Sharing of Assets

17.

18.

19.

20.

21.

Asset transfers will be considered by Herefordshire Council,
subject to the demonstration of community need and in accordance
with the Council’s Community Asset Transfer policy.

Critical to the success of any transfer is having a clear rationale
backed by a robust business-case demonstrating the sustainability
of the proposal, and the ability of the recipient to manage the asset
effectively, including an assessment of the financial and
organisational capacity of the council.

Local Councils will work with the Herefordshire Council to
identify public assets that can be re-modelled or shared to improve
service delivery at the locality level.

It is recognised that asset transfer is a two-way process and Local
Councils may wish to discuss with Herefordshire Council,
transferring assets currently owned by them.

All cases of service transfer to and from Local Councils under this
New Charter will be reported annually to Herefordshire Council
and by the Herefordshire Association of Local Councils to all
Councils, including a nil return if applicable and published in the
public domain.

Operational Arrangements

Quality Status and Power of Well-Being.

22.

23.

Herefordshire Council will work with Local Councils and HALC
to promote the take—up by Local Councils of the Quality Parish
Council Scheme (QPS) as a basic benchmark of good practice,
embracing aspects of legal compliance, public accountability and
community engagement.

Local Councils are encouraged to adopt the Power of Well Being

that will offer them more powers to benefit their communities’
social, economic and environmental well-being.

81



Emergency Planning

24.

25.

Local Councils will undertake to co-operate with the Herefordshire
Council’s Emergency Planning procedures.

Local Councils will be provided with e-mail alerts regarding
emergency information, as appropriate.

Community Resilience

26.

Councils will work together to encourage the development of a
community resilience information file for each Local Council.

Training and Development

27.

28.

29.

30.

Local Councils, clerks and councillors will be encouraged to attend
training and information sharing events whenever possible.

Local Councils will encourage all their clerks to become qualified
with the aim that all clerks in the County should hold the CiLCA
qualification.

Herefordshire Council will assist in identifying and helping to meet
the training needs of Local Councils and participate in training
events organised by HALC subject to staff availability.

Herefordshire Council will include the topic “working with your
parish/town Councils” in the new ward members’ induction
programme.

Compliments, Comments, Complaints and disputes

31.

32.

Any concerns about the operation of this New Charter will be
resolved by early dialogue between Local Councils firstly by the
clerk of the concerned council and the lead officer of Herefordshire
Council and secondly by the Chair of the Local Council and the
Lead Member of Herefordshire Council with officer support.

Where practical and possible the Herefordshire Council will offer
Local Councils access to support services to enable them to take
advantage of facilities such as printing, ICT procurement and other
services.

82

10



33.

Herefordshire Council will explore the provision of training and
support on issues such as business planning and risk assessments.

Social and Economic Sustainability.

34.

Councils agree to work in ways that are sustainable, reconciling the
long-term needs with those of the present and protecting and
improving the quality of life of current generations without
compromising the quality of life of future generations.

Equality of Opportunity

35.

36.

Herefordshire Council embraces equality and diversity in all its
work and is committed to serving the diverse needs of our
communities, recognising that people have different needs,
cultures, experiences and expectations.

Local Councils will make the same commitments to eliminate
discrimination in all its forms, providing equality of opportunity to
all the communities we serve. Wherever practicable they will
endeavour to base local decisions on a broad community mandate,
whilst taking into account the needs of the most vulnerable.

Funding

37.

38.

Innovative ways to make the best use of limited resources will need
to be identified, to reduce wastage wherever possible and to deliver
services in the most cost effective way.

All Councils will seek to include the principles of participatory
budgeting in their future budgeting processes.

Monitoring, Further work and Review

39.

This 2011 Charter is a living document and will be formally
reviewed and evaluated regularly (at least annually) by the
“Charter Group”, made up of representatives of Local Councils,
HALC, the Market Towns Forum and Herefordshire Council. The
first review is planned to be at the end of 2011 following the
enactment of the Localism Bill and other relevant legislation.

83

11



40. Following the adoption of the New Charter 2011 a mechanism for
the transfer of services between Councils will be agreed and
published.

October 2011.

84

12



B
AN2aXg

)

31 J0 JusWdO[aASP DILIOUOST

aAINdaX3 siner P11
ON Ja1yD| [ Joytdunod PsTlo) z N SaYsnH 44089 Auedwo) v| sanming piojaiay
Meysyoeig M “Anisnpul Jspio sy} pue Jspid
WrV eysyoe|g| sejoyoiN Jo uononpoud pue abpsjmouy IsnJ| wnasny
ON JoNuno) | WY 10 1S auo A A 2y} u uojeanpa sjowoid o] Auey) ) 43p1) pu0jaIaH
smalpuy
vd
‘10jfe
oa
‘spem
rd
‘3@
sauop
q -
MOUBID
sakeHq Mma fuoyiny andsay
seM d| Joikel Da|  smaynew! -phoITw 39D sauor MOU33I9 | uimpoos) apm 30INIBS pue 2414 J9IS3DIOM|
ON JO1)12UN0)| JOY)I2UNOD) | g JOYIIDUN0D|  JOJ1IDUNOD d JOIDUN0D| @ JOIDUN0D| MHP 1D -Aunod 9 A anasay pue aild ay) sbeuew o Apog dnqnd V| pue pJojaiaH
SHEM
rd*
yiL| Jequsdaq ‘Y SHEM! UOSUBIV| uopjools 3PIM!
Jaquisydas ‘yigl Aew ‘1|z Auenigad - sSurjesw pieog ON d Joqouno)i v Ionouno); Ay 41D} -Auno) z A Joypaly alinsia) jo uoisinoid sbeuew o) Auedwo) q pajiwi ojey
adwuy *SUY 3y} Jo} a5ua) piehuno) ayy
-dreduLs: YdIpRUSN | uimpoos apm Buibeuew jsni] sy} Jo si0}p3iQ Auedwo) pieog
ON d JoN)1ouno)| N Joniouno) 9! -fAunony 4 N 191104 19W 1O pIeOg dU} UO SAISS O] B pJeog Isnil q IsnJ| paekyno)
sawep
sdinyd| smaylew g siater sawer Vo1 sHomIaN
SAA ¥ JoNIdUN0)  JONIdUNO) [ JONIdUNOD| | JONIDUNOD| Y 1D ¥ 0ydn N ay} uypm dnolg jsasjul [eads . dysiauleq V| s|1ouno) Ajuno)
saajndap
79
dn julodde
03 uonndo “aul| diysiauyieq
meysyoelg  xooIip apm 3y} pue KRemjies pjomsioD ayy Bunosye odsues] susaAjew
SAA v Jonounod ggup! -Aunoy;  9oeid suo N salneq wip swajqoud ayj ssaippe o] dwysiaunreq ) pue pjoms1o)
13NIO
1v A pleog
pJeqgny uplnNg; sjquinio apim 23)sn4] - xneaing
ON W Jonuno)| g Jonounod; ) syl -Aunoy 4 J9A)LS eljeIeN uonesiueBiQ [euoneN IsnuL q DIAPY SUSZID
‘sjelueq
vdS “uonelado ssjuedwod
‘ 8y} uo paseq Buisue senss| dnoug
S1OYdIN D SABYD| SMIIPUY Vd! smalpuy sw|3 Juowimim Aue Jano sjuspisal pue Auedwo) dnouig uosier syuaplsay
ON 10111UN0) 7 JONIDUNO)|  JOYIDUNOD | Yd ‘SIID| @31yl € JueW! 2y} USaMI3G WINIO} UOSIEl] sjuapisay ) sjea |)181e)
sawer ||
‘ (sBuiproy '$30104 I Jo Areyip
SwelI news ‘[eABN 8y} JO AUB Ul SBSSISA0
"Isnd] 3y3 JO Jjeysq uo 3oe |1duUno) ar BuLiar0d 10 B3S Je PaAISs aABY Oym uaw
ay3/pajesado Ajua.Lind st Isni) dY) pUe SIBDLYQ 11DUN0) sauor d uosuyor sawer | splemp3 dUd| ‘Jswelg ‘puz WD Yyatym uosduioy] 10 9ejs3 ey} uo aunynoube ul
Aq panied st 1ey) Sulsaw e st 31 se J)qewied st 3| LL°0L 8L SaA J0))12UNO0D)| | JOY)IDUNOD | IOYIIDUNOD 4 JOIDUNO)| d JONduno)| Hsiiy  adoH 40 3U0) § 981099 JuswAojdwa Jo JUSWSNSS By} o4 IsnuL IsnJ) ueueyong
JoUOWIWo?) Sy Jo SISSISiUl
193537 Pplojuims uny uosduioy] pue SMaIA 8y} Jussaidal pue 3INo) |eLiouey|
ON  Jonouno) Jonwunod AAL 1D Asbuug z01dn N 951099 uowwo) Aysbuug sbeuew o] umouyun 2| uowwo) A3sBunig
“IOM S|qEIIEYD JSY10 Kueyd
uoAusyl|  Buyjjepn (uorsstwwod pue snoibija1 JO JusWSoUBAPE Jooyds jeodan|g
ON  Joynouno) 110! Asisdny auo fueyd) A pue uoneonp3 jo uolowold fuey) 2| paojaisy jo doysig
paem/ansst
ds=0
EN/A| anL anL an 3ALL| ENN) EN (o) acct T 1¥0ddns| uw_huu«.”“ u:muu_w_u:un_mun
SINIWWOD| - ITGVWIVTD| V. 1 Vi Vi vl 1LVl .”“MNuMlo_n :OW«MH” s. ._.zuud_sw.u_d% n”ﬂ zc“.h” hu_..__._wuzuw W. h”m_mv.n_._.uw ¥3D1440| sajun j1oUNo) jo zo_.up“wu_uﬂwﬂm 18213L1D=V| ‘Adod 3aIsLno
S3ISNIdXT yL w9 Hl¥ aue anz ist e e S| TIDNNOD| wia1 - AQOE NO - ALIMOHLNY|
301440 40 WL HLIM
dIHSNOILYT3d
3s0d¥nd

85



JISIA O} S})S1ino} abeinodus pue
sawer Wi sswer umol Bale 3y} UIYyym WSLINO} Ul }salajul dnoiy
ON JONIDUNOD | L D] uolBury auo A sjejnwis pue a6eInodus o umousun o) ISLIN0 | UojBULY
dysisuyieq
sswer Wi sswep umo] | ‘eaJe Bupunouns uonjeauaday
ON JONIDUNOD | L D] uolBury auo A pue uojbury Jo uonessusbay umousun q ealy uojsuLy
Jgw 0} @ouaispaid yum Aunod syy
adoH Mr adoy ul Jspun pue Gz pabe suosiad o} uonepunoj
ON AON1dUN0) | M D 3psed auo 0B} |euoljednps Uﬁ_>nﬁﬁ ol >ur_mr_u D| Jeuoljednp3 siAder
Wry ‘pods
‘u INOGE UOIJeuLIo}ul PUE O} SDI0A
uosyiaqoy sdiiyd ospsqoy apm 3A1}09]|02 apinoid ‘pods o) sssooe 11ouno) syods
ON S JoNiduNo)| Y JONIdUNO) | S sAID| -Auno) [4 3714 335 Jo} sepunpoddo dojeasp o) umouyun o) 2J1yspJojaisH
S3A youai4 SW/D JueAs1ay “uonesijeal sjauaq diysiauyreqd V| dnoig
dr Jo ssaiboud jo Buuojuow pue Buleas (SdH)
nauleg ‘allyspiojaIaH Ul s301AI8s dljgnd $921A195 d1qnd
o1 Jo uoneiBajul Y} 1o} uoROBIIP 2J1yspJojaisH
‘sdijiiyd oI6sjexs Jo UoISSNosIp 3y}
rrao 10} wnoy [ewoul ue apiroid oL
TBAO SI6U SPISAIUNGS SUJ SYel 6]
1V MOY UO [I0UN0D 3UIYSPIOaISH 3y}
ytws ‘adoH r ¢ pue Aousby spisAiuno) ayj o}
adoy  -uoydwaH SpJemp3| spiemp3 spim 2ouepInG pue ao1Ape spiroid im Apog Alosiapy wnJo4 ssa20V |0
S3A [ Joniduno) v Joiduno) | rd JONIPUNGY| rd SHID; -Aunod € 3 _"wnio4 Kosinpy Aiojniels v AKioymeng 2 3dlyspJojaisH
*3j00}s Buisnoy Jawioy
auoy uoo] | apm 0107 3das s,|louno) alyspiojsisH buibeuew pajywy Suisnoy
ON dJonwuno) v 4IQ| -Aunod| yatmamd | plojpue] [e1oog paisisibay Auedwo) q 2J1yspJojaisH
dysisuyieq
X0JIIM. siner 3PIM! -Apoq juswuoiiaug Apog juswuoJiauy
ON g J07)1ouno) a0 -fAunoy auo awosxo\g g diysiauped a.yspIojeIoH A0D @307 q 11yspJoaIsH
swey
U0lS| g ‘suols 391005 Jeuoryeonp3y
ON Swemim gr| r4onwunod|  siio z £K11aysow yeuuey Ayueyy b 241yspJoja.aH
saiolod [eUONEU JUBAS|SI
ulyIm pue ‘soinieg sajdoad
BuUnoA pue s,usip|iyD ay) Joy
Jod s,/0UN0Y aIIYspIo}RISH
sy} ulyym uoisinold SIS
papusixa pue sieak Aues
MaIABI 0} pUE UolEeaNpa sieak wnlo4
u Aes pue aieo) (S3A3) sad1Alag
usmog ospaqoy apIm AaymL 12UN0) “jqisssode ‘Ayjenb poob urejurew P3pualxX3 B sieap
sasuadxa Sulked 210J219Y3 SANSSL SDURLISAOD YILM SHULT SaA SJonwounod;  ps 0| -Aunoy auQ| (8007) SPA A uekig Jowis] pue ‘dojansp ‘sjowoid o wniog 4| Aj4e3 aayspiosalsy
uonoalIp Jo
asuss pue uonisodwod ‘ssodind
S}1 JSPISUOD [|IM WNILIOSUOD 3y}
uopjes v d Jey) Je pue Jesjo swodaq
‘M diysiauped a11yspIojaIsH ay}
adwuy eysyoe|g 0} sabueyd Bulwooypoy Aue pun wniosuo)
-drepuls sdimyd WrY apm 112UN0)| pjoy uo AjusLIND SJE WNILOSUOD jeanyjn)
ON d JO1)12UN0) | Y Joniduno) sq0! -fAunon 4 N uosew alqqy Jowis] [einynD 3y} JO SAANOE YL umouyjun q 11YspJoaIaH
(asnuL sua.piyd
A1awiog) o4
dIHSYIN LYV
$37d03d ONNOA
SPAH|  opAH ANV N3YQTIHD
sasuadxa Sulked 210J919Y] SSNSSL SOUBUISAOD YILM SHULT S3A V[ Joniduno) ra0 auo diysiauyied v|  JMIHSA¥O43¥IH
Aunog sy ul Juspisal suosiad pung
N9MOd VO|  XO9|IM; apim payybis Ajleiued pue puig Y3 10} UOLIRIDOSSY
ON juedep|  Jonwunod| ggdn; -Aunod z01dn A 3y} Jo aueyam sy sjowoid o fueyo o) 341YyspJoaIsH
WS § wnuo4 jJuswaseueyy
‘sinep 324Nn0say 21seM)|
re 10B1)U0D 3)SEM JUIof sJaquiaw Jutor|
MeYs)IR|g| spiemp] apm 3y} 985130 0} [1oUno) AuUnod Apog 9I1Ys133s32I0M
SIA v JON1dUN0)| pd SAI0| -Aunoy ] 10309] Apuy B11YSI9}S22UOM Yim Apoq juiof A0 1B207 4| pue ausyspiojaioy

86



731

ysdoiys ‘sawoy Ayfenb s|qepioye
JUny Oy wunH /aays 3apinoid o} Auoyiny [ed0T Ym. Pa3iwi] uoljeldossy
ON Joouno); oY 41| piojsIsH auo 3om 0} — uoperossy buisnoH Auedwo) BuisnoH sayosey
ay) 0} pajejal sispew
uosuyor uo saiijod pajeulpio-0o pue daNov
MY AingpsT jus)sisuod Buunoss jo ssodind 9y} Joj e3apiwwo)
uosuyor| uojduIRg! ‘Jadoo) ‘pug 3y} Joj sanuoyIny [E00T JUBAS|SI AuosiApy
SAA 1 Jonouno)| dJonounod; psg0l edoy 4 0} suollepuswWwWooal ajew o] Apog AIosiApy JuLor S|jIH UJaAleW
spem
d ‘| fungps7
SHEM POOMNIY| uoppools ‘pug 110Z 30 “S|IIH WiaAle|\ Apog $J0jeAISSUOD)
S3aA d Jonouno); D Jojdunod; AY SO adoH z L€ 03 sieak i ay} Jo Ayuswe ay) snesaid o] Kioyness S]|IH ulaAjey
2 'yinos UINOWUO o} Juowag ay) ul
yws y falle $95IN0O I3)EM SNOLIBA) B3JE 3Y) Ul
131ND|  ‘Jepn)d | AUSPIOD $951N00 Jajem jo soueusjulew ayy  Apog Aouassy pJeog aeuteiq
S3A JUBDRA| d JOY)IDUNOD|  d SO ‘SWI|IBA 4 BUILIZOUOD SONSS] SUIWEXS O] JUSWUOIIAUT Jeusaju| 9ApM Jomo]
*sBUII9aW puS)Ie 0] SIDUBMOYE JaquIaW
ay3 Aed nim Ajuioyine 1ed0) ay3 Jeyy AjLioyine 1edo) ay3 Aq
jou "2°1 Y9 Y3 Aq pajulodde st saquisy B ysnoyy usas dnoun adueury
3843 YO SY3 J0 UOIAAXS AU st 1 10Z J9quiaydas pue A8a3ens
UoNIPPY “JUSWSBUELIE |RUISIUL SYDT JO SNUIA uop|as ueyy’ Apog Aousy uoleIossy
e Inq A&juoyine siy) Aq pajutodde J0u UOP)aS J0)1OUNOD S3A J07)15UNno)). JuaWUoIIAUT JUSWUIAA0D |07
(auysia
1s39n0|9
O}
Buipes|
uopea
Iy
101us *s3sIN0OISjEM
wyoe)) pajeubisap Jo souBUJUIBW BIA pleog
poomny SN ealy eale s,pieog sy} uiyym Buipooyy  Apog Aoussy a8euresq Jeusayu
SaA Jdonounodl Yy 0! Angpan auo I9)eM SOBUNS SJRIAS|[E O] JUSWUOIIAUT UJISASS JaMmoT
Namod m uolssiwwo)
oudYysy weyeio eysyoelg spim Vol Apog Jeany - uoljeldossy|
SaA MaIpUY|  JOYIDUNOD| WPV 1D -Aunod 4 ay} uo dnolg jsasaul [erads 0D @207 JUSWUISA0D |0
sawep
L
‘s
maunen
aoud  sdydy  smaymew siater apim Apog uoerd0ssy
S3A d JO))IdDUN0) | JOY)IdUNO) | g JOYIDUNOD | [ JONIDUN0D| Py SID -Ajunod 14 Apog [euoneN A0D 18207 JUSWUISA0D |0
uoo] Y Pary qoy *Aunog ayy ul sjuswabuey
uosuyor uosyiaqoy ‘adoH 3PpIM! 10 ueunjdelg UoISSILUPY [00YdS Jo spoadse  Apog AIoSIApY wnio4
sasuadxa Sulked 210J919Y] SSNSSL SOUBUISAOD YILm SHULT S3A 1 Joiduno)| S JoNdunod| AAF S| -Aunod € Mmaupuy SNOLIEA JOJUOW PUE ISPISUOD Kioinyeys V 12207
ynos 1o
suo)g Jsulwos
r‘3go pue; “sjooyas Ayuey) jeuonyesnpy
BU03lS|  3GD SAUOf|  ssuopr, YUON J9| |e90] JO Jaqunu e 10} SaNI|Ioe} Jeuonjeulwouspun
ON [ JONIDUNOD| d JOYIDUNO)|  d SH|D Jsulwoa] z pue sa0IAISS ‘swa)l apiroid o1 Ayeyd 19)5UIW037
ynos 1o
Jsulwos
ago pue; 93)1wwo)
39D ssuor S3UOf| YUON 19! ‘wnasnw wnasny
ON d Joyuno) d 11D 1suiwos] auo ay} dinbs pue redai ‘sroudwi o umouyun Ja)sulwoa]
wnog 15 paywr]
Jsulwos Jusawdojaraq
JunH oY pue; JuswAojdwa Buipuy ul jsisse pue Auedwo)
JUNH D¥| 39D SAUOl|  ‘sauor| YUON I Kasuty BaJR BY) Ul SjUSpISal Joj Buuresy Auedwo) uonelaussay
SAA 10))12UN0D)| d JOYIDUN0) |  d SJID | Isulwoa] 4 autpeN 10 UOEINPS 3IN03S o dpiAoid 01 B Aueyy BalY 19)SUIW0ST]
IsnJL a1ua)
sawer Wi  sswep umo] a.nsia Ajunwwo)
ON Jo)DUNoD| WL D] uoybury auo 1snu] 2y} Jo uswabeuely umouyun supjmey Ape

87



ON sdiyd ueadoin3 e si yoiym ‘swweifoid 19 uoljoe 1ed0) o)
¥ Jon1duno). M +430V37 Sienly auyspioesoH
eysyoe|g ay} Joy dnoug Buussls dnous y3aval
Y 4110 M-Aunog U st dnoig uonoy 8907 Sy L P40J213H TV.LIA
(Ano =y
M| U] 3010) P37 uoljerdossy
sdimyd eysyoelg apm “[eAlsa) olsnw |eAl3say
ON ¥ Jonounod| ey 10| -Aunod auo Y/N Sy} 0} Uoijejal Ul Uosiel| [BIaUsD) Auedwo) o) satoy) 934y |
UT GIYSIOAN SAIRSIIOD
auols pue uoeonp3 snolbiiey
r‘3go Jo uoisinoid ay} ‘jo Buloyuow ay} (340VS)
sauor 4 PUE ‘YlM PaUISOUOD SISjew uo uolednp3 snols1ay
3auols 3ARYD POOMNIY! ‘plaumy SPIM| (v31) Auoyny uopeonpg [eoo Apog Alosiapy Jo4 1uno)
sasuadxa Sulked 20§29y SSNSSI SOURLISAOD LM SHULT SAA { JOY)12UN0) 7 JONIDUNOD | D JONIdUNO) | N SIID| -AlUnoD € ay) asiApe 0} Apoq Jusuewsad v Kioinyess 2| Aosipy Buipueis
S| Buipusye sie (¢) pue ‘aouejsisse
ua1piiyd leroueuy Jo paau ul ale (z) pue
Apswioy) ‘g1 Jo abe ay} Jepun ase (|) :oym
Aeunpy 4 suosiad 0} salpnjs [einw eixe Kueyd
0Ld ‘opAH opIm pue yJompjaly 10} sjuelb jo Bupjew - Jeuolyeonp3l
ON NaMa4 Wil | dJonpdunodl  p o) -Aunod z sy} Aq uoneonpa sjowoud o Ayueyd b) 10ys elAlAs
uojuIH S H 10 ANy
2 3y} Jo eale akp\ Ynos ayy
namod supep 1o uonessusbai Jo Jeusq olgnd diysiauyreq
auoy BpUSD | |loddeyd 1S Joy uonjowoud 8y} s pieog s pue uonelaussay
ON d JOY)IDUN0) | JONIdUN0D | YO 4D | ‘Juowjeg z diysisuped ayj jo ssodind ay | Ayeyd q kM yanos
T 1 pu i 1P
pue Aq 1s)sulwoa ul suosiad
JUnH >y Juny; YuoN J3 pajgesip Jo souspuadapul Anq Y
ON JON)IDUN0) | DY 4D ISuIWoa] auo A pue aiejyam ay) sjowoid o) Ayeyy o) 193sULWO03]
juswdinbs pue
inoud Aq suosied dnoug
s38pUg.  emod,  SPIEA ypomday pajgesip jo souspuadspul uosterq plojaisH
ON v Jonounod| 4o 410 Ao auo A plaeq pue aiejyam ay) sjowoid o) umousun o) - fq y
o4aL)
uo11e1D0SSY
30 sapPRIY
(422140/
Jaquisw Auedwo)
aoud spum- Payadsun) 21NuaA utor
s1ma7 Auuar g Jojouno) -funod 4 Auedwo) o) $3D1AISS paJteys
Apoq
pig =on019°s
‘doy
-A=(seon
9 JID)OH
‘day= snoyo. I9a1wwo)
01-60/90/10 ‘JuswabeuBwW XSiI POOJ) UO oM dusjaq
wouy s} ul uoibay spuejpiy Aousby  Apog AduaBy pooj 4 Jeuoiday
ON w9y JA ¢ 1oy auo S95POH 9A91S JUSWIUOIIAUT SY} YJIM 3IOM O] | JUSWUOIIAUT o) JUSJ] UIDASS
“Aureyn
pasu-ul-jaijay pue Jshi] susples
wniyeg Jopme) ‘youeig asnoyswi|y $333sn] |
ON 9 Jojouno) auo A :sa1jLeYd 931y} Jo} 3|qisuodsay Ayreyy o) Ky ssoy
‘auying
MK
sjquinio
N
uIMpooD “JoUISIP SY Ul S|9A9)|
Jaw! r ‘uamog 19]EM UlBJUlEW O) S9SIN0JISJEM.
UBWLION 4 Jemw i adoH Mri  YolmpJeH| mousaln g 1adoo)| uamog SIM SIM pue suonejs Buidwnd  Apog Adussy pJeog a5eurelq
ON JOJII2UNo)| JOJII2UN0)| JONIIDUNOD)| [ JOJIIDUNOD)  JOJ)IDUNO) W JOJIIOUN0D)|  JOIIoUno) Blle) L N ‘s|lefino pajdope sbeuew 0] JUSWUOIIAUT 5| Jeusayu) 88n JaAry
SIIoe] SIed Anuncs)
MeYYIRIg eysyoelg poomsuaany pue aye| weyuapog dnoug
Jenw auying Wrv: WrY SpejquisH oy} Jo yuswabeuew sy 0} Jndul Apog $3)e7 weyuspog
ON [ Joiouno) ) Jojjduno) Joqouno) sJ||D  uoydweH € qoy pue poddns Alosiape spinoid o AOD 18207 o) P poomsusanpd
s|
Jepunes opew aq Jooyos Arewind
I sIN MM Jusu Auno) piojepn 1e usy
‘sewoy] obpug (42010 jutodde ay} Joj Bunno |enuue ue jo
ON rsin [uly L4 € A ON sosuadxe pue s)soo sy} Aeysp o] shug o) Isnu] Asjyseq
2a1wwo)
‘20IM9S Julor - SWAYdS
sawep apm uoneaipnipy sy} jo syuswabuene Apog AosiApy uonedIpn(py|
SIA JuedeAl WL O] -Aunoy auo Bulpuny ay) JapISU0d 0| a1gnd 2|  Bupjied jeuoneN
19uleg 01 psuieg S joe P31 243us)
ON JON)1DUN0) | O 40| Jawipol auo |euoneasoal pue Buipods 2.ns1a7 JowyIow

88



siner,  spiem 10 swio} 3|qeulesns
or| ay) ajowoud o] “Asjiep aAM auy
apAH <_,” ng piem 10 JuswAolus uonewloul }8inb
Aeio 3y, pajeal | ey ejowoid o) “AejieA 2AM BY}
| 3pAH|  oImpreH uosunily,  ‘yepn): woyy 9q | Jo Ayuswe pue Aneasq |einjeu ay}
S3A | [ JoN12UNO) [ JONIIDUNO) | d JONIIPUNOD| Y JONIDUNOD|  df SIID 10U PaaN | @ouByUS puE BnIBSUOD Josjoid 01 Apog AlosiApy J| aNoOV AsjleA aim
seale ju
awyoed (paatnbay
adiuy 66n7  9IMNsqns 66n7 s31mwo)
-dreputs X0J)M 90  x09lIp\ Pue 9AM paweu pue aAp\ SISAL 8y} uo uonebineu Kiosiapy
ON dJonuno)  Jonduno)  gga)  SJIeAlY Suo pue) suo 40 JyBu suojsiy sy} abeuew o] Apog AlosiApy 2 uonyeSiAeN aAMm
jutod siyy. dnouo juswaseuey
e paiinbas sty poo)4
uonjeulwou spm  (uswwod 997 - 5)1>UN0)
S3A ON -funoo 335) aup SPUB|PIW IS9M
60
sdmiyd SiAder ‘sdijiyq apIm ansqns Anr gL 00SSY/| Apog s|uno)
SAA ¥ Jonounod| aonounod| ry S| -Aunoy +1 N| pasueyd JUSWIUISA0S (00T [euoIBay A0D 1B207 v SPUB|PIW 1S9
‘K1essa0au se sajuoyne
13430 0} pUB GO 34} O}
way) Jussaidal o} pue swajqoid
asay} Ayyuspl o} padeyd [jom si
uoljeroossy ay] “s0ead ul $3010}
pawie ay) ul swi Yed aAISS oym!
aAlesjsiulpe [euosiad ay}
390 Jejnonued ul pue 3210} }ape) pue uoneldossy syspe)
3gd ssuor;  ssuop apm VL 9Y} JO SIEjjam pue s[eiow sy} B 532104 SAIIsY
SaA dJonNwunoy; 40 -Aunod auo N UM PBUISOUOD S| UONBIOOSSY Y| UOLIRIDOSSY b} pUB|pIW IS9M|
youai4 PUE |19UNOD UIIAA PUB PIOYSL
dr punog Aunog aiysdoiys pleog
3dLd SIAJel ‘Jawelg SPIM! OUNOY aUIYspIoyaISH Aq pawiio} utor sayddng
S3A d JOYIDUN0)| [ JoNdUNe)|  H sKD -Aunod 4 i wnuosuo) Buiseyoind juiop Auedwo) v BIDISW 1SOM|
2a1wwo)
asud upny - sayddns
SAA d J07)1ouno) 1 anoqe 99s aA0Qe 995 9AOQE 935 BIDJOW ISOM
B e e
Aq s1apew aajosal
390 0} s|qissod Buiroid jou Ji Jo Jusns 93apiwwo)
“pea)sul [dued WL pue 3|0 e 0} Julodde SIAler:  sauop apm 3y} Ul YJINM 03 sjuswiulodde utor - foyany
0} paau Aew am Ing paysijoge aq 0} anp 3.e SALIoYINY 3d[od ON  Joynouno) d410 -Auno) auo WLUOD 0} S}98ll Sa)IWWOoD SIY | Aqog onqng V| 921104 euaw 3som
("00 2uIysIaIs30I0M
(DS 11 Aew wouy pue upjaIp pue pioys] ‘00
“peajsul [dued WD pue 3104 e 03 Julodde usmogi y ‘unHy apim; | 03 Zwoly anysdoiys ‘[pouno alysplojaieH Afuoyiny
0} paau Aew am Ing paysijoge aq 0} anp 3.e SALIoYINY 3d[od ON sJonwuno)  gsyo; -Aunod pacnpay Buisudwod) Auoyiny Bui Aqog ongnd V| 92110 eIDI3W ISaM|
PUE SIIYSACIYS "SIt
M Ul SaRIUNWWOD 3|qeulelsns pue (unfa.pm
eysyoe|g stma7 auer Buisnoy jo A1sAlsp sausnyul pue B piojioL
WrY / Yoldysy 0} @JnNquUIU0d Jey} suopesiuebio ‘aaysdoiys diysiauyieq
RGN uojylwey: ‘siaer apm sisquisw malpuy / Jo abuel e wouy seAiejussaidal ym) BaLY 3)IeW
ON g JOoNIdUN0) | Y JoNIduUNo) | o siiD -Aunod;  I8BuIgqe) 7 N qqeo pJeydry sieak z| soypebo) sbuuq diysisuped syl diysiaulieq q BuIsSNoH 1sam
aslel pue 3)eanpa o} pue
2UIYSISISI0IOM PUE BUIYSPIOSISH
sso.oe sueld 10ss399ns % Ueld
uamog STM| uamog 3PIM| uonoy |z epusby [e007 8y} Jo ainng
ON JoN1dUN0) | STM D] -Aunod auo uonejuswalduwil 3y} sjey|ioe) 0| Kyeyd ) 1No 03 SWODJ9M
dnoug
‘pue| usaib BSunjiom usain
abe||iA pue suowwo) BujuIsouod 38e||IA pue pue
uosdwoy | uny apm uosduioy] senss| ul 9anoe.d }s9q aIeYS pue uowiwo) sayd.lew
S3A 981099| ML Jl1D| -Aunod auo N 951099 Bulpuejsiapun Jajaq ajowold dnoio Surjiom b} 3Y3 pue s3jep|

89



90



AGENDA ITEM 12

Herefordshire

Council
MEETING: COUNCIL
DATE: 2 MARCH 2012

TITLE OF REPORT: | COMMUNITY GOVERNANCE REVIEW -

ROSS-ON-WYE

REPORT BY: ASSISTANT DIRECTOR LAW, GOVERNANCE AND

RESILIENCE

CLASSIFICATION: OPEN
Wards Affected

Ross-on-Wye East
Ross-on-Wye West

Purpose

To advise members of a request by Ross Town Council, supported by Ross Rural Parish Council, for
a community governance review of their areas; to make provision for such reviews to be undertaken
by Audit and Governance Committee; and to provide an aspirational timetable.

Recommendation(s)

THAT:

(a) the Council undertake a community governance review of the areas of
Ross Town Council and Ross Rural Parish Council in the Autumn of 2013;
and

(b) the Audit and Governance Committee be empowered to undertake

community governance reviews and to make recommendations to Council
in that regard; and

Key Points Summary

The Local Government and Public Involvement in Health Act 2077 (the 2007 Act) makes
provision for local authorities to undertake community governance reviews (CGRs) and for the
Secretary of State to issue mandatory guidance. This guidance was issued in March 2010.
The 2007 Act provisions are intended to enable citizens and community groups to make the
best use of empowerment opportunities.

A CGR may reflect the fact that communities expand over time with new housing
developments, with existing parish boundaries becoming anomalous as new homes are built
and people find they are in different parishes from their near neighbours. It can also deal with
warding arrangements

The guidance provides at paragraph 28 that a CGR should not be started when a review of the
principal council’s electoral arrangements is being undertaken. The Boundary Commission is
reviewing this Council’s electoral arrangements and should have concluded its work by the

Further information on the subject of this report is available from
Chris Chapman, Assistant Director Law, Governance and Resilience on (01432) 260200

91



Autumn of 2013. The Commission’s Chairman has specifically asked this council to desist
from a CGR while that review is in progress.

CGRs are best handled by a small group of Members, who can then make recommendations
to a full Council meeting. For this reason, it is suggested that the remit of Audit and
Governance Committee be expanded to undertake CGRs in the future, so that expertise is
built up for any future CGRs in other areas. That Committee may wish to form a sub-
committee for the purposes of a CGR.

Alternative Options

1.

Not to undertake a CGR and to leave existing parish boundaries unchanged. This would
disregard the submissions in favour of review made by the Town Council and the agreement
of the Parish Council involved.

To defer a decision until the results of the Boundary Commission’s review are know. The
situation in Ross in unlikely to have changed significantly but there remains some uncertainty
about when the Commission’s work will be complete. It is not yet know whether they regard
Herefordshire as a type B review (42-50 weeks) or a type C review (up to 62 weeks).

Reasons for Recommendations

The recommendation that the Council commits to an Autumn 2013 start date for a CGR
provides some certainty for the Town and Parish involved and provides a longer period for
awareness raising and community engagement.

Introduction and Background

4.1.

4.2

4.3

4.4

On 14th June 2010 the Ross-on-Wye Town Council resolved to make a formal request to this
Council for a CGR of the HR9 postal area. Any decision was postponed until after the May
2011 elections had taken place

On 20th December 2011 representatives of the Town Council met the Assistant Director Law
Governance and Resilience and made a number of points in favour of a CGR including:

e New housing and commercial developments had expanded the town’s built up area into
the rural parish area

e The 2010 Ross Town Plan adopted by this Council covers both town and rural areas

e There are 12 members of the Town Council, which meets regularly and has a number of
main committees. Elections are contested (25 candidates for 12 seats). Ross Rural has 8
members and meets every 2 months. There have been no elections since 2003.

e The Town Council maintains facilities such as play areas and a community centre which
are enjoyed by inhabitants of the Ross Town and Rural areas alike.

The Town Council representatives said that, despite the terms of their 14th June 2010
resolution, they were now asking for a view of the town and parish council areas rather than a
review of the whole HC9 area. Those areas are indicated on the attached plan and edged
Brown (Ross Town) and green (Ross Rural) — see Appendix 1.

The Ross Rural Parish Council met on 4th January 2012 and their clerk has confirmed that
they are happy to proceed with the request for a CGR.

92



Key Considerations

5.1 The request for a CGR in this instance appears to fulfil the criteria for review

52 Any review provides an opportunity to consider boundaries, numbers of members and warding
arrangements

53 The proposal links to the corporate priority of locality working
Community Impact

6. The community impact of the present arrangements and the potential for change is described
earlier in this report. On initial appraisal, there are no equalities issues.

Financial Implications

7. There is no budget for CGRs and the cost of printing, stationery, room hire, advertisements
and a postal ballot would have to be met from a special budget in the financial year 2013/14.
Funding will be considered as part of the budget process for 2013/14.

Legal Implications

8. The Council must have regard to the mandatory statutory guidance under the 2007 Act in the
conduct and timing of any review. Failure to comply could result in a judicial challenge.

Risk Management

9. If the Council does not proceed with a CGR, then the existing arrangements may damage
community engagement and democratic representation at the local level

Consultees

10. The Committee overseeing the review will make appropriate arrangements for consultation
and a ballot. The proposals in this report have been discussed with local Ward Members.

Appendices

1. Plan of Ross Wards

Background Papers

12. Correspondence with Town and Parish Councils for Ross Town Council and Ross Rural
Parish Council.

93



94



WUIUK [ LI rage 1 vl 1

2 . Brockington, 35 Hafod Road, Hereford. HR1 18H.
Council Herefordshire website: www.herefordshire.gov.uk

switchboard: 041432 260000

i Herefordshire m Courty of Herefordshire District Council,

Waorking in partniership for the peaple of Herefardshire

‘.\‘ \ ;“‘ :7
b, b R %

&
Wyela “i_x/Netherton b

~I\ S

Location:
Description: ROSS WARDS

Map Scale 1:25,620 ; Map Centre OS Grid Reference 360,368.8537669:224,447.3958644

© Crown copyright and database rights 2011, Ordnance Survey 100024168
No further copies may be made.

Ross Toom
P?vaw[wig

http://hc-exp/Exponare/A4PrintStandardHC.aspx9BrintVoucher=7a4b8802-6329-427...  16/02/2012



96



AGENDA ITEM 13

Herefordshire

Council
MEETING: COUNCIL
DATE: 2 MARCH 2012

TITLE OF REPORT: | PAY POLICY STATEMENT

REPORT BY: EMPLOYMENT PANEL

CLASSIFICATION: Open
Wards Affected

County-wide
Purpose
To approve a pay policy statement for the authority.

Recommendation(s)

THAT:
(a) the pay policy statement summarising existing council policies (at
Appendix A) be approved,;
(b) the planned review of the policies underpinning this statement be noted;
and
(c) authority be delegated to the Monitoring Officer to make any necessary

amendments to the Constitution to ensure compliance with the
legislation, and reflect the responsibilities of the Employment Panel (as at
paragraph 9 below).

Key Points Summary

. Council is required to approve a 2012/13 pay policy statement by 31 March 2012.

o The statement provides a summary of the existing policies of the council, and does not seek to
amend these.

o A review of policies will be undertaken in year and will inform a refresh of the statement for
2013/14.

Alternative Options

1 There are no alternative options; the approval by Council of a pay policy statement for the
authority is a statutory requirement.

Further information on the subject of this report is available from
Chris Bull, Head of Paid Service on (01432) 260044

97




Reasons for Recommendations

2

To provide transparency with regard to the council’'s approach to setting the pay of its
employees in compliance with the provisions of the Localism Act 2011

Introduction and Background

3

The Localism Act places a requirement on local authorities to produce an annual pay policy
statement for each financial year beginning 2012/13, and for this statement to be approved by
Council before the start of the financial year to which it relates.

The statement must set out the council’s policies relating to:

a) the remuneration of its chief officers
b) the remuneration of its lowest paid employees; and

c) the relationship between the remuneration of its chief officers and the remuneration of
its employees who are not chief officers.

The statement must include the council’s definition of ‘lowest paid employees’ and the
reasons for adopting that definition.

d) The statement must include policies relating to:

e) The level and elements of remuneration for each chief officer

f) Remuneration of chief officers on recruitment

g) Increases and additions to remuneration for each chief officer

h) The use of bonuses for chief officers

i) The approach to the payment of chief officers on their ceasing to hold office under, or
to be employed by the authority; and

i) The publication of and access to information relating to remuneration of chief officers

Key Considerations

6

The statement draws together factual material and provides a summary of the current policies
of the council.

The policies of the council and therefore this statement, are underpinned by the following core
principles:

a) Local arrangements are aligned to national terms and conditions

b) Pay structures and progression arrangements enable the business to recruit and retain
staff it needs, as an ‘employer of choice’ to achieve its goals in line with corporate plan,
vision and values

c) Policies are competitive with the external labour market to recruit and retain key
personnel to achieve business success.

d) Governance arrangements for reviewing pay and reward are robust
All posts, whether chief officer or not, have their level of remuneration established through

assessment by a nationally recognised and independent job evaluation scheme. In the future,
Council will have the opportunity to vote on any new salary packages exceeding £100,000.

J:\_COUNCIL\2011-2012\005 2Mar12\Pay Policy Statement\pps report.doc

98



9 Whilst approval of both the statement and pay packages exceeding £100,000 is reserved to
Council, it is proposed that the Employment Panel be the appropriate body through which
recommendations to Council are formulated. The provisions of the Localism Act will require
some amendment to the Constitution to reflect the accountabilities reserved to Council and
any consequential changes to the functions of the Employment Panel, and it is therefore
recommended that authority be delegated to the Monitoring Officer to make such
amendments as necessary to ensure compliance.

10 In approving its statement, a council must have regard to any guidance issued by the
Secretary of State. Draft guidance has been issued, and this has been taken into
consideration in the development of the statement. The draft guidance suggests areas where
councils may choose to go beyond the requirements of the legislation and it is proposed that
the Employment Panel give consideration to these issues over the coming year and, as
appropriate, recommend amendments to the next iteration of the statement. These areas
include: whether or not to implement an ‘earn-back’ pay system for senior staff; adoption of a
policy in respect of employment of a chief officer already in receipt of a public sector pension;
and approach to maintaining or reaching a specific pay multiple within the organisation.

11 The Employment Panel has also identified a number of areas where, in light of increasing
localism and the broader economic climate, they would expect to see pay policies be

reviewed; the outcome of these reviews will be reported to the Employment Panel to inform
the annual review of the pay policy statement.

Community Impact
12 The council, as an employer, has a significant role to play in the local economy. In addition,
consideration should be given in the coming year to the degree to which the commissioning

approach adopted by the council may be used to influence pay policies of local contractors
who supply goods or services on behalf of the authority.

Equality and Human Rights

13 The statement makes clear that the council’'s employment policies, and the processes by
which pay levels for a post are set, have full regard to relevant equalities legislation.

Financial Implications
14 There are no financial implications arising from the report; the statement simply summarises

current policies and pay levels. In future Council will have the opportunity to vote on any
proposed pay packages exceeding £100,000.

Legal Implications

15 The statement meets the requirements of the Localism Act 2011.

Risk Management

16 Failure to approve and publish a statement would result on non-compliance with a statutory
requirement. Arrangements have been made to ensure publication of the statement following
approval by Council.

Consultees

17 West Midlands Councils has provided advice and a model statement, which has informed the

J:\_COUNCIL\2011-2012\005 2Mar12\Pay Policy Statement\pps report.doc

99



development of the draft
Appendices
Appendix A — Draft Pay Policy Statement

Background Papers

. None identified.

J:\_COUNCIL\2011-2012\005 2Mar12\Pay Policy Statement\pps report.doc

100



Herefordshire Council March 2012
Pay Policy Statement

Introduction and Purpose
The purpose of this statement is to set out the council’s approach to setting the pay of its
employees (excluding those working in local authority schools) by identifying:

¢ the methods by which salaries of all employees are determined;

¢ the detail and level of remuneration of its most senior staff (chief officers), as defined by
the relevant legislation;

e who is responsible for ensuring the provisions set out in this statement are applied
consistently throughout the council, and for recommending any changes to council.

Once approved by Council, this policy statement will come into immediate effect and will be
subject to annual review.

Legislative Framework
Section 38(1) of the Localism Act 2011 requires local authorities to produce an annual pay
policy statement.

Under section 112 of the Local Government Act 1972, the council has the ‘power to appoint
officers on such reasonable terms and conditions as the authority thinks fit’, subject to the
provisions of section 41 of the Localism Act (namely for decisions in relation to terms and
conditions of chief officers to comply with the pay policy statement).

In determining the pay and remuneration of all of its employees, Herefordshire Council will
comply with all relevant employment legislation. With regard to the equal pay requirements
contained within the Equality Act, the council ensures there is no pay discrimination within its
pay structures and that all pay differentials can be objectively justified through the use of
equality proofed job evaluation mechanisms which directly relate salaries to the requirements,
demands and responsibilities of the role.

Organisational context

Herefordshire Council has, since 2007, been working in a unique partnership with the local
NHS to ensure that together we deliver excellent services, a better customer experience and
good value for taxpayers against a background of lower levels of public spending than we have
been used to in the recent past. This partnership has included the development of a number of
integrated services and management arrangements. Whilst the structures of the local NHS are
changing in response to national changes, the commitment of local partners to working together
to achieve these aims remains strong.

Pay Structure / National Frameworks

Herefordshire Council is committed to a fair pay and grading structure determined by a robust
and objective job evaluation process. The National Scheme is used for all posts up to HC7 and
the Hay Scheme for all posts above this level.

Based on the application of the job evaluation process, the council uses the nationally
negotiated pay spine (attached at Appendix 1) as the basis for its local grading structure. This
determines the salaries of the large majority of the non school based workforce, together with
the use of other nationally defined rates where relevant. There have been no increases in the
national pay spine since April 2009.

. All other pay related allowances are the subject of either nationally or locally negotiated rates,
having been determined from time to time in accordance with collective bargaining machinery
and or as determined by council policy. In determining its grading structure and setting

March 2012 Page 1 of 6
101



10.

11.

12.
13.

14.

remuneration levels for all posts, the council takes account of the need to ensure value for
money in respect of the use of public expenditure, balanced against the need to recruit and
retain employees who are able to meet the requirements of providing high quality services to
the community, delivered effectively and efficiently and at times at which those services are
required.

New appointments will normally be made at the minimum of the relevant grade, although this
can be varied where necessary to secure the best candidate.

From time to time it may be necessary to take account of the external pay market in order to
attract and retain employees with particular experience, skills and capacity. In accordance with
the council’s policy on market forces, where this is necessary the council will ensure the
requirement for such a market forces supplement is objectively justified by reference to clear
and transparent evidence of relevant market comparators, using appropriate data sources
available from within and outside the local government sector. Any market forces supplement
will be payable for a pre-determined fixed period and will be subject to ongoing review.

The council does not make use of performance related pay for any of its employees.

The council remains committed to adherence with national pay bargaining in respect of the
national pay spine and any annual cost of living increases negotiated in the pay spine.

Senior Management Remuneration

For the purpose of this statement ‘senior management’ means ‘chief officers’ as defined within
section 43 of the Localism Act. The posts falling within this definition are listed below, with
details of their remuneration (excluding standard pension contribution) as at 1 April 2012.
Where posts are jointly funded by partners, the net council element is also shown.

Post Sala Fig;?gal Total Net Council
ry . Remuneration Element
Benefits

Chief Executive (Head of Paid
Service) 183,725 None 183,725 101,049
Director of Corporate Services 130,000 None 130,000 71,500
Director for People’s Services
(Director of Adult Social
Services; Director of Children’s 120,000 None 120,000 120,000
Services)
Director of Place and
Communities 120,000 None 120,000 120,000
Asst. Director — Children and
Young People’s Services 78,231 None 78,231 78,231
Asst. Director —
Commissioning 78,231 None 78,231 78,231
Asst. Director Customer
Service and Communications 76,176 None 76,176 76,176
Asst. Director — Economic,
Environment al and Cultural 76,176 None 76,176 76,176
Services
Asst. Director — Homes and
Community 76,176 None 76,176 76,176
Asst. Director of Law, 90,000  None 90,000 81,000
Governance and Resilience
March 2012 Page 2 of 6

102




Post Sala Fig;rr‘gal Total Net Council

ry . Remuneration Element
Benefits

(Monitoring Officer)

Asst. Director People, Policy

and Partnerships 78,231 None 78,231 78,231

Asst. Director — Place based

Commissioning 76,176 None 76,176 76,176

Chief Officer, Finance &

Commercial Services (Section 90,000 None 90,000 90,000

151 Officer)

Whilst supported by the council, this post is not currently

Director of Public Health .
employed by the council

15.

16.

17.

18.

19.

20.

21.

22.

NB: ltalics indicate statutory postholder functions)

Additions to Salary of Chief Officers

The Chief Executive is the Returning Officer for Herefordshire. No additional payments are
made for fulfilling this duty at a local level; fees payable in respect of other electoral duties are
paid at nationally agreed rates and from central sources.

The council does not apply any bonuses, pension enhancements (subject to para. 22 below) or
performance related pay to its chief officers or to other staff within its workforce. No other pay
benefits are paid to chief officers at the time of producing this statement.

Recruitment of Chief Officers

Herefordshire Council’s rules with regard to employment of staff are set out within the
Employment Rules contained within section 4.9 of the Constitution, available
at the following link:

http://www.herefordshire.gov.uk/docs/K 004 Part 4 Procedure Rules 15Jul11.pdf

Where the council remains unable to recruit chief officers under a contract of employment, or
there is a need for interim support to provide cover for a vacant substantive chief officer post,
the council will consider and utilise engagement of individuals under ‘contracts for service’.
These will be sourced through a relevant procurement process in accordance with the council’s
contracts procedure rules, ensuring the council is able to demonstrate the maximum value for
money benefits from competition in securing the relevant service.

Herefordshire Council does not currently have any chief officers engaged under such
arrangements.

Any officer previously employed by Herefordshire Council in receipt of a severance or
redundancy payment when their employment ceases may not be re-employed by the authority
(including under a contract of services or as an agency worker) until a period of at least three
months has elapsed.

Any officer appointed to the council who has been made redundant within the previous two years
from an organisation covered by the Redundancy Payments (Continuity of Employment in Local
Government etc) (Modification) Order 1999 (as amended) (which applies to local authorities and
related bodies) will forfeit their redundancy entitlement.

Payments on Termination

The council’s policy on termination of employment of employees prior to reaching normal
retirement age, in accordance with regulations 5 & 6 of the Local Government (Early
Termination of Employment) (Discretionary Compensation) Regulations 2006 and Regulation
12 of the Local Government Pension Scheme (Benefits, Membership and Contribution)

March 2012 Page 3 of 6
103




23.

24.

25.

26.

27.

28.

29.

Regulations 2007 (as amended), is to base redundancy payments on ‘actual weeks pay’, and to
pay an enhanced lump-sum redundancy payment. This enhanced payment will be calculated
by multiplying by 1.5 the number of weeks statutory redundancy that would apply to the
employee taking into account relevant continuous local government service. (NB Statutory
redundancy pay is therefore included in the enhanced payment.). This may, at the discretion of
the relevant accountable body (see para 29 below) be increased to a maximum multiplier of up
to 2. An alternative to enhancement may be approved, namely to augment service within the
Local Government Pension Scheme at the rate of 1 year/5 years relevant service to a
maximum of 4 years.

Any other payments falling outside the provisions or the relevant periods of contractual notice
shall be subject to a formal decision made in accordance with the relevant process as set out in
the council’s Employment Rules (see para 29 below).

Pensions
Subject to qualifying conditions, employees have a right to join the Local Government Pension
Scheme. The employee contribution rates, which are defined by statute, are as of 1 April 2011:
Whole Time Pay Rate Contribution Rate
Up to £12,900 5.5%
£12,901 to £15,100 5.8%
£15,101 to £19,400 5.9%
£19,401 to £32,400 6.5%
£32,401 to £43,300 6.8%
£43,301 to £81,100 7.2%
More than £81,100 7.5%

The employer contribution rates are set by actuaries advising the pension fund; these are
reviewed on a triennial basis in order to ensure the scheme is appropriately funded. The current
rate, as of 1% April 2011 is 21.1%.

Broader Workforce perspective

The overall spend of Herefordshire Council is approximately £350 million. Approximately £39.7
million is spent on employing the non-schools workforce, with almost £35m on salaries
(including national insurance and superannuation) of directly employed staff to which this policy
relates. As at 31% December 2011 (the most recent data available at time of drafting) there
were 1096 full-time equivalent posts across the organisation, giving an average salary of
£31.9k.

For the purpose of this Pay Policy Statement, and in accordance with the provisions of section
38 of the Localism Act, Herefordshire Council defines “lowest paid employees” as those paid on
full time (37 hours) equivalent salaries in accordance with the minimum spinal column point
currently in use within the council’s grading structure. As at 1 April 2012, this is SCP 7 £12,787
per annum — there are five people paid at this level. The council employs apprentices who are
not included within the definition of ‘lowest paid employees’.

The current pay levels within the council define the multiple between the lowest paid (full time
equivalent) employee and the Chief Executive as 1:14 and; between the lowest paid employee
and average chief officer as 1:8. The multiple between the average full time equivalent earnings
and the Chief Executive is 1:6 and; between the average full time equivalent earnings and
average chief officer is 1:3.

Accountability & Decision Making

In accordance with the council’s Constitution, the Employment Panel (in respect of the Chief
Executive, Monitoring Officer, Section 151 Officer, Deputy Chief Executive and Directors) or the
Chief Executive (all other employees) is responsible for decision-making in relation to the

March 2012 Page 4 of 6
104



30.

31.

32.

recruitment, pay, terms and conditions and severance arrangements in relation to employees of
the council.

For those pay accountability matters identified within the Localism Act as being reserved to
Council, the Employment Panel will be the body accountable for formulating recommendations
to Council including the undertaking of an annual review of this statement before
recommending its approval to Council as one of the suite of documents Council approves as
part of its Medium Term Financial Strategy. The Pay Policy Statement therefore forms part of
the Budget & Policy Framework of the council.

In addition to approval of this statement, the right of approval of new salary packages over
£100,000 is reserved to Council. In such circumstances the Employment Panel will be the body
accountable for developing recommendations to Council.

Publication

After approval by Council, this statement will be published on the council’'s website. In
addition, for senior officer posts where the full time equivalent salary is at least £50,000, the
council's  Annual Statement of Accounts (available at the following link:
http://www.herefordshire.gov.uk/council gov_democracy/council/1858.asp ) includes a note
setting out the total amount of:

e salary, fees or allowances paid to or receivable by the person in the current and
previous year;

e any bonuses so paid or receivable by the person in the current and previous year;
any sums payable by way of expenses allowance that are chargeable to UK income tax;

e any compensation for loss of employment and any other payments connected with
termination;

e any benefits received that do not fall within the above

March 2012 Page 5 of 6
105



Appendix 1

PAY STRUCTURE AS AT 1.4.10 - NATIONAL JOINT COUNCIL FOR LOCAL

GOVERNMENT GRADES
National SCP (scp50 & Annual Pay Hourly Pay Rate
Grade above are local) Rate
4 12145 6.30
HC1 5 12312 6.38
6 12489 6.47
7 12787 6.63
7 12787 6.63
HC2 8 13189 6.84
9 13589 7.04
10 13874 7.19
10 13874 7.19
HC3 11 14733 7.64
12 15039 7.80
13 15444 8.01
13 15444 8.01
HC4 14 15725 8.15
15 16054 8.32
16 16440 8.52
17 16830 8.72
HC5 18 17161 8.90
19 17802 9.23
20 18453 9.56
21 19126 9.91
21 19126 9.91
HC6 22 19621 10.17
23 20198 10.47
24 20858 10.81
25 21519 11.15
26 22221 11.52
26 22221 11.52
HC7 27 22958 11.90
28 23708 12.29
29 24646 12.77
30 25472 13.20
31 26276 13.62
31 26276 13.62
HCS 32 27052 14.02
33 27849 14.43
34 28636 14.84
35 29236 15.15
36 30011 15.56
36 30011 15.56
HC9 37 30851 15.99
38 31754 16.46
39 32800 17.00
40 33661 17.45
41 34549 17.91
HC10 42 35430 18.36
43 36313 18.82
44 37206 19.28
45 38042 19.72
46 38961 20.19
HC11 47 39855 20.66
48 40741 21.12
49 41616 21.57
50 42747 22.16
51 43905 22.76
HC12 52 45099 23.38
53 46328 24.01
54 47584 24.66
55 48876 25.33
56 50206 26.02
HCI13 57 51570 26.73
58 52972 27.46
59 54412 28.20

106



AGENDA ITEM 14

Herefordshire

Council
MEETING: COUNCIL
DATE: 2 MARCH 2012

TITLE OF REPORT: | REPORT OF THE STANDARDS COMMITTEE
MEETINGS HELD ON 10 NOVEMBER 2011 AND
13 JANUARY 2012

REPORT BY: STANDARDS COMMITTEE

CLASSIFICATION: This is an open report.

MEMBERSHIP: David Stevens (Independent Member) (Chairman); Olwyn Barnett (Local
Authority representative), Jake Bharier (Independent Member); Chris Chappell (Local
Authority representative), Isabel Fox (Independent Member); - (resigned on 9th February)
Richard Gething (Town and Parish Council Representative); Mary Morris (Town and Parish
Council Representative).

Wards Affected

County-wide

Purpose

To inform Council about the activities of the Committee and its Sub-Committees and the
future of the standards framework.

Recommendation

That the report be noted

Dispensations

1. We have not received any applications for dispensations.

The Future of the Local Government Standards Framework

2. Last summer the Council's Group Leaders decided that the Standards Committee
should formulate proposals to enable consideration to be given to the way in which
the Council could deal with ethical standards when the current regime ceases. The
Committee created a working group and discussions have been held with Group
Leaders about the arrangements which need to be put in place to meet the
requirements of the new legislation.

3. The Localism Act 2011 received Royal Assent on 15 November 2011. It abolishes
the current standards regime, including a statutory code of conduct for councillors,
and oversight of the arrangements by Standards for England. In place of this are

Further information on the subject of this report is available from
Pete Martens, Committee Manager on (01432) 260248

107



new statutory obligations, which are considerably less prescriptive in the way
complaints should be handled, but will still have an impact on the Monitoring Officer
and his staff who are involved.

The Secretary of State has not yet made all the necessary orders to bring into force
the changes. However, the effective date will be 1 July 2012 and consideration is
being given to the arrangements which need to be put in place by then.

The Group Leaders and the Committee are particularly mindful of the need for the
new arrangements to maintain public confidence and to have a procedure which is as
simple and short as is possible, whilst complying with a range of legal obligations,
such as the principles of natural justice, as well as those of the Localism Act.

The precise arrangements and requirements on the Council will be the subject of a
further report when the Government has firmed up on its requirements. The issues
which the Committee has considered in its discussions with Group Leaders and the
Monitoring Officer include:

o the adoption of a new code of conduct. The Association of Council Secretaries
and Solicitors (ACSeS) is preparing a generic one which could be ‘rolled out’
across local authorities in England and would be similar to that operated before
the standards regime was introduced. When finalised it could be adopted,
subject to any amendment of detail required to deal with local circumstances;

. the introduction of a more streamlined process for dealing with complaints
about a Member of the Council. The Committee has looked at the creation of a
Standards Panel to hear any complaints that cannot be resolved at an early
stage by the Monitoring Officer.

o the way in which complaints about parish/town councillors will be dealt with - It
is not yet fully clear what the requirements will be but Herefordshire Council will
have responsibility for adjudicating on complaint matters;

o complaints procedure — the Monitoring Officer will play a more prominent role in
the initial filtering of complaints, and a more streamlined procedure is
envisaged, using a faster timetable than afforded by the present system;

o Register of Interests — work will be done by the Monitoring Officer on
establishing a new register of interests for the Council, and for the town and
parish councils within its remit once the necessary Statutory Instrument is in
place;

o possible membership of the Standards Panel is also being looked into; the
initial indications were that the existing independent persons will not be
permitted to continue under the new regime but the Government is now said to
be considering a change in its position. Consideration will therefore be given to
the numbers of independent persons required and any recruitment process;
and

o training — all Members will need to receive appropriate information and briefing
on the new statutory duties and new arrangements. This will include town and
parish councils.

Local Filter Cases and Determinations

8.

We have reviewed progress made with complaints about local authority, town and
parish councillors since the introduction of the local filter on 08 May 2008. In 2008, 18
complaints were considered, 50 in 2009, 31 in 2010, 64 in 2011, and 5 have been
received and are at various stages so far in 2012

108



9.  As part of the Localism Act 2011, the regulatory role of Standards for England (SfE)
ceased to exist on 31 January 2012. SfE no longer has powers to accept new
referrals from local standards committees, conduct investigations into complaints or
provide guidance.

10. Nevertheless the Committee still has to deal with complaints under the existing regime
until the new regulations come into force. All new complaints which are received
before the end of June 2012 will therefore be dealt with under the current regulations.
We are making steady progress with the existing complaints and aim to have all
completed before the new system comes into effect.

Background Papers

¢ Agenda for the Standards Committee Meetings held on 10 November 2011 and 13
January 2012.

DAVID STEVENS
CHAIRMAN
STANDARDS COMMITTEE

109



110



AGENDA ITEM 15

HEREFORDSHIRE COUNTY COUNCIL

REPORT OF THE HEREFORD AND WORCESTER FIRE AND RESCUE
AUTHORITY TO HEREFORDSHIRE COUNCIL 2 MARCH 2012

Chief Fire Officer’s Service Report

Operational Activity

The total incident numbers for Quarter 2 in 2011/2012 showed a slight increase
on the same quarter last year. 2236 incidents were attended in Quarter 2
compared with 2163 incidents the previous year which represents an increase
of 3.4%. This was due to an increase in the total number of fires attended.
However, the number of special service incidents (non-fire related) attended
and the number of false alarms attended have both decreased compared with
the same quarter last year.

The number of primary fires has increased from 324 to 360 (an increase of
11%). The number of secondary fires attended in Quarter 2 2011-12 was 518
compared with 318 in the same quarter last year. Analysis shows that there
was an increase in secondary fires starting in tree scrub, railway trackside
vegetation and roadside vegetation and the summer increase in secondary fires
lasted longer into September than in the previous year.

Please Note:

Primary Fires — broadly those involving buildings and structures and other
property such as vehicles, storage, plant and machinery, fires involving
casualties, rescues or escape, fires where significant fire and rescue resources
are employed.

Secondary fires — broadly those involving derelict buildings, or vehicles, single
buildings under demolition, fires confines to chimneys, other outdoor fires such
as those involving grassland, gardens and fences, refuse and refuse containers.

Items of Interest

7 2 years Sentence for Arson

At 03:35 hours on Friday 14 January 2011, Fire Control received a call to a
house fire in Evesham Road, Cookhill. The incident was identified as persons
trapped by fire and 3 fire appliances from Redditch Fire Station were mobilised
with the first arriving at 03.50 hours.

On arrival the fire crews were faced with a severe fire in a two bedroom
detached cottage. The Incident Commander mobilised an additional pump and
requested the attendance of a water carrier. As the incident was believed to
involve people who were reported trapped, considerable effort was used to
search the dwelling with Breathing Apparatus (BA) crews. At one stage the
bedroom above the room of origin of the fire collapsed into the ground floor
slightly injuring a firefighter. This firefighter was treated at the scene by
paramedics and remained on duty. Eventually no persons were found to be in
the dwelling.

111



A Fire Investigation Officer was also mobilised and arrived on the scene at
04:23 hours. Initial observations of the scene identified vital evidence in the
way of bottles containing an ignitable liquid which were preserved for later
seizure by Police Forensics Investigators.

A second Fire Investigator took on the job of a full scene examination in daylight
hours and worked alongside a Police Forensic Investigator and the West
Midlands Fire Service Hydrocarbon Detector Dog Team. The dog made several
indications to the presence of ignitable liquids within the cottage.

A Police investigation led to the arrest and charging of an individual on several
counts of arson.

After a 3 day trial at Worcester Crown Court in September 2011, where one of
the Service’s Fire Investigation Officers gave expert evidence, the individual
was found guilty of arson, recklessly endangering the life of the occupier, and
recklessly endangering the life of rescuers (emergency service) and others.
The individual was given a custodial sentence of 7 V2 years.

Herefordshire Awards Ceremony

Fire-fighters and staff from Hereford & Worcester Fire and Rescue Service were
honoured at an Awards Ceremony held on Friday 4 November at Hereford
Town Hall.

During the evening, medals for Long Service and Good Conduct were
presented by Lieutenant General Sir John Foley KCB, OBE, MC, DL, Vice Lord-
Lieutenant of Herefordshire, and also by Chief Fire Officer, Mark Yates and
Councillor Derek W Prodger, MBE, Chairman of Hereford and Worcester Fire
Authority. Station Commander Neil Pigott acted as Master of Ceremonies.

Fire and Rescue Authority Options for Appointment of a Treasurer and
Clerk/Monitoring Officer

The Authority agreed to directly employ a Treasurer and Clerk and the Chief
Fire Officer was given authority to complete detailed investigations for
consideration by the Appointments Committee in January 2012.

Reduction in Attendance at Automatic Fire Alarms - Consultation
Feedback

The Authority agreed 12 proposals that would assist the Authority in reducing
attendance at unwanted fire signals. The Service currently attends over 3,000
Automatic Fire Alarm (AFA) calls per year which equates to over a third of all
incidents attended (of which only a very small percentage turn out to be ‘real’
fires).

The proposals were consulted on widely and a twelve week consultation period
was completed prior to the review being presented to the Fire and Rescue
Authority. On completion of the initial review a more direct programme of
engagement had been undertaken with stakeholders likely to be affected by the
outcomes. A total of 650 premises from the business sector were contacted via
a letter. A wider campaign of partner, public, professional and representative

112



body engagement was managed through existing networks. The Service also
undertook a media campaign.

Amongst the recommendations approved by the Authority were:

Attendance continue to be made to Automatic Fire Alarms received to
dwellings (includes houses in multiple occupation, flats, schools,
residential care and other residential (includes special units, sheltered
housing, hotels, hostels).

Hospitals will receive a one fire appliance attendance to calls from
Automatic Fire Alarms for a period of 12 months, during this 12 months a
full assessment of each hospital be made to establish if a single fire
appliance or a non-attendance is appropriate.

The Authority will not adopt a ‘Charging for Automatic Fire Alarms’ policy
at this time.

Attendance will not be made to non-residential premises (includes
offices, shops, factories, warehouses, other buildings); unless it is
deemed necessary following a risk assessment.

All Pre-Determined Attendances to Automatic Fire Alarm calls to be
one pumping appliance only, except where risk factors and Intel
(intelligence) information indicate otherwise.

Revised Redundancy Policy

The Authority approved a revised Redundancy Policy which had been reviewed
in accordance with the Service’s review schedule. The key changes in the
policy related to the inclusion of the option for voluntary redundancy and pay
protection for those staff redeployed into alternative roles from three years full
pay to a sliding scale over a three year period.

Future Financial Prospects

Members received an update on the initial review of future financial prospects.

The Department for Government and Local Communities (DCLG) has now
released the national grant totals for the latter 2 years and the year on year
reductions were 8.5% and 5% respectively. The impact of this had been
factored into the Authority’s Medium Term Financial Plan.

With regard to a Council Tax freeze, DCLG had announced details of a further
Council Tax Freeze Grant for 2011/12 which meant that if the authority were to
set a precept of 0% the FRA would receive a grant equal to 3% of the 2012/13

precept which equated to approximately £0.627m.

113



Risk Management Strategy and Strategic Risk Register

The Authority approved a revised Risk Management Strategy and live Strategic
Risk Register. The overall objective of the revised strategy is to ensure that the
Authority identifies strategic risks and applies the most cost effective control
mechanisms to manage those risks.

Information Commissioner’s Office (IC) Model Publication Scheme Review

The Authority approved the Revised Publication Scheme which commits the
Authority to proactively publishing and routinely making available information
held by the Authority.

Business Continuity Planning

Members received a report and presentation on planning arrangements and
associated strategy. Approval was given to the assumptions and proposals as
laid out in the report and detailed during the presentation. Approval was also
given to resilience of response standards to be implemented by the Chief Fire
Officer during periods of appliance unavailability.

Health and Safety Liaison Panel

A recommendation had been made by the Policy and Resources Committee
in September 2011 that a Member be appointed to the Health and Safety
Liaison Panel. Group Leaders had recommended that Councillor P Watts
take on this role and he had duly accepted the nomination.

Brigadier Peter Jones, CBE
Vice-Chairman
Hereford and Worcester Fire and Rescue Authority

FURTHER INFORMATION

Any person wishing to seek further information on this report should contact:
Corporate Support on 01905 368367. Further information on the Fire and
Rescue Authority and the Fire and Rescue Service can also be found on the
Internet at (www.hwfire.org.uk).

BACKGROUND PAPERS

Agenda and papers of the meeting of the Fire and Rescue Authority held 14
December 2011

114



AGENDA ITEM 16

REPORT OF THE MEETING OF
WEST MERCIA POLICE AUTHORITY
HELD ON 13 DECEMBER 2011

Deputy Chief Constable

1. The Police Authority is pleased to report that following a recruitment process
the Assistant Chief Constable, Mr Simon Chesterman, has been appointed Deputy
Chief Constable with effect from 19 December 2011. Mr Chesterman originally
joined West Mercia from Thames Valley Police in June 2007. He has a number of
national responsibilities, on behalf of the Association of Chief Police Officers
(ACPO), in relation to armed policing, taser and prison intelligence.

Transition to Police and Crime Commissioners

2 A directly elected Police and Crime Commissioner will replace the Police
Authority from November 2012 and in the months leading up to the transition the
Police Authority will seek to ensure a smooth handover of duties and is confident
West Mercia’s Police and Crime Commissioner will inherit one of the most financially
sound forces in the country.

3. The Authority will maintain close contact with strategic partners to ensure they
are aware and can respond to the changes to police accountability and scrutiny and,
so far as is possible, and respecting constitutional arrangements for this area of
police governance, the Authority will assist the county, district and unitary councils in
their preparations for Police and Crime Panels.

Consultation on Policing Plan and Priorities 2012-15

4, The Police Authority and Chief Constable have commenced the process of
preparing the Policing Plan for 2012/13. Further details of the draft Plan and the
Police Authority’s consultation arrangements are available on the website
(www.westmerciapoliceauthority.gov.uk).

5. A consultation document has been produced and copies circulated to local
authorities, parish and town councils, partnerships and community organisations.

6. The Chairman, Chief Constable, Chief Executive and Treasurer will be
holding a Webcast on Wednesday 11 January 2012 at 7 p.m. in front of an invited
live audience.

7. The draft policing priorities are shown below and as part of the process of
developing them a Partnership Consultation Day was held in November 2011:

. Provide an effective emergency response

. Protect people from crime and anti social behaviour according to their needs
and vulnerabilities

115



. Proactively target organised crime groups and individuals who cause most

harm

. Work with partners to bring offenders to account and reduce re-offending

. Provide a supportive and effective response to victims and prioritise the most
vulnerable

. Disrupt drugs markets and the harm caused by drug and alcohol misuse

. Protect road users by working with partners to reduce casualties

i Plan and prepare to respond to any major and serious incidents

. Provide an efficient and effective policing service which delivers value for
money

. Plan and prepare to deliver our contribution to the Strategic Policing

Requirement (the force’s contribution to regional and national issues).

8. The Police Authority will adopt a Policing Plan at its meeting on 14 February
2012.

Budget

9. The Police Authority is considering a zero increase in the council tax precept
for a second year and in so doing will benefit from a special government grant for
freezing the level. However, it is understood that this special grant will not be
available in future grant years and a decision to freeze the Police element of the
Council Tax in 2012/13 will have financial implication for future annual budgets

10.  The Authority’s long term record of prudent financial management has
enabled a build up of strategic reserves which will help to cushion future reductions.
The current plans are to reduce expenditure in 2012/13 by £4.5m.

Hate Crime

11.  The Chief Constable has provided a report on Hate Crime and emphasised
that the force will continue to develop its links with local communities and other
agencies to deal effectively with Hate Crime and the issues around it. The force
remains committed to dealing with Hate Crime in a positive manner to ensure
communities had confidence in policing in their area and will continue to monitor
potential and emerging problems and reporting of prejudicial hate related incidents,
no matter how minor, will be encouraged.

Domestic Violence Prevention Orders

12. The Domestic Violence Protection Order 12 month pilot scheme was
launched in June 2012 in the three policing areas of Greater Manchester Police,
Wiltshire and West Mercia.

13.  The scheme is police led with an authorising officer not below the rank of

Superintendent (to ensure that the use of the scheme is proportionate, justifiable and
necessary and in accordance with the Human Rights Act 1998), issuing a perpetrator

116



of domestic abuse with a Domestic Violence Protection Notice. The Notice places a
number of prohibitions on the perpetrator with the intention of preventing further
violence to the victim and/or other persons living within the household. These
prohibitions might include a requirement for the perpetrator to leave the family home.

14. Magistrates, on hearing an application from the Police, will then decide
whether to impose a Domestic Violence Protection Order. Again, this order may
contain a number of prohibitions, including the requirement for the perpetrator to
leave the family home and will last for a minimum of 14 days and a maximum of 28
days.

15.  Eleven notices and seven orders were issued in the period between July and
September 2011 and this figure was in line with predicted figures and was being
used effectively to positively protect victims of domestic abuse.

16. The Home Secretary has stated that she was very pleased with progress and
the outcomes of the pilots to date. Due to the success of the pilot within South
Worcestershire it has been extended to the North Worcestershire Territorial Policing
Area before being considered for roll out across the force area

Professional Standards

17.  The six month figures for complaints have fallen significantly. Since 1 April
2011, West Mercia had recorded 313 complaint cases, which was a 27% reduction
in the number of complaint cases compared to 2010/11. Allegation figures have
reduced from 928 allegations in 2010/11 to 489 in 2011/12 for the same period — a
47% reduction.

18.  The work of the Professional Standards Department to re-focus recording and
training initiatives to improve the understanding of complaint management had
significantly impacted on the numbers of complaints. Staff have been encouraged to
deal with complainants’ issues at the time of reporting thereby improving service
provision and this has further led to a reduction in complaint recording

Community Resolution

19.  Community Resolution empowers the victim giving them a genuine say in
identifying the way in which a crime could be ‘resolved’ in a manner which meets
their needs. The resolutions used to date have been agreed between the officer
and the victim and have had no constraints so long as the resolution was appropriate
and proportionate to the crime, concentrating on ‘doing what is right rather than
gaining detections’.

20. For the purpose of analysis, the types of resolutions used by officers have
been grouped into four areas to assist in identifying trends.

o Financial resolutions, including money to replace or repair goods, pay vets
bills etc, and additionally this included donations made to charity.

o A simple written or verbal apology. For a victim an apology was seen as

particularly powerful giving the victim some sort of closure on the incident and
an opportunity for the offender to demonstrate remorse.

117



(@)

(@)

21.

Offender to agree to stay away from an individual or business.

“Other” — this category was made up of a diverse mixture of resolutions but
was the group which contained the most creative and often the most thought
out by a local officer. Examples in this sample included Volunteering with the
Rainbow Hill Local Policing team, car park sweeping and attendance at a fire
awareness course.

The Police Authority was supportive of this initiative but further work needs to

be undertaken to ensure consistency and accountability of their use and ensure that
information is provided to other Criminal Justice partners.

22.

101 Non-Emergency Telephone Number

A new national police non-emergency telephone number, 101, has been

introduced and should be dialled instead of 999 to report matters such as:

23.

A Stolen Car

Damaged Property

Suspected drug use or dealing;
Minor traffic collision.

For the deaf, hard of hearing or speech impaired, the service can be

accessed via textphone on 18001 101.

24.

West Mercia Police’s 0300 333 3000 will continue to operate as a general

switchboard number and should be used to speak to a particular person or
department, for example, the Local Policing Team

25.

Monitoring of Policing Plan Delivery

Performance against the delivery of the Policing Plan has been monitored on

a monthly basis and any problem areas highlighted and addressed. The Authority
has had recent discussions around the areas of:

O

O

Violent crimes with injury and Domestic burglary West Mercia was only 0.5%
and 0.1% off the ‘solved’ targets respectively.

Robbery (% solved) was noted to be behind target. However, the Authority
was reassured that very small numbers were involved and that a robust
management structure was in place to tackle this area to ensure the target
was met. It was confirmed that there were no trends relating to robbery giving
the Force cause for concern.

The rise in serious sexual offences volume appeared to be linked to an
increase in confidence in the police as there had been no increase in stranger
attacks. The Authority noted that most sexual offences occurred within the
domestic setting and, therefore, detections were harder to achieve, however,
it was hoped that once the Sexual Assault Referral Centre (SARC) was fully
operational this would assist in increasing detection rates.

118



Significant Cases and Court Results
26. The Police Authority has been updated on significant cases and court results

including, attempted murder, murder, sexual abuse and exploitation, drugs and
burglary.

Signed on behalf of the
West Mercia Police Authority

Sheila Blagg
Chairman

Further Information

Any person wishing to seek further information on the subject matter of this report
should contact David Brierley or lan Payne on Shrewsbury (01743) 264690.

Further information on the West Mercia Police Authority can also be found on the
Internet at www.westmerciapoliceauthority.gov.uk.

List of Background Papers
In the opinion of the proper officer (in this case the Chief Executive of the Police
Authority) the following are the background papers relating to the subject matter of
this report:

Agenda papers for the meeting of the West Mercia Police Authority held on 13
December 2011.

119



120



	Agenda
	
	HEREFORDMAP
	iv-fire-shirehall

	3 MINUTES
	All Member Q&A final with supplementaries

	5 QUESTIONS FROM MEMBERS OF THE PUBLIC
	All Agenda Public Questions

	8 LEADER'S REPORT
	9 PRAYERS AT COUNCIL MEETINGS
	10 COUNCIL TAX RESOLUTION 2012/13
	01  Contents Page
	02  Annex 1 i
	03  Annex 1 ii
	04  Annex 1 iii Police precept
	05  Annex 1 iv Fire precept
	06  Annex 1 v

	11 ELECTORAL REVIEW OF HEREFORDSHIRE: COUNCIL SIZE SUBMISSION
	DRAFT COUNCIL SIZE SUBMISSION (ver 9)
	New Charter FINAL APPROVED VERSION October 2011
	OUTSIDE BODIES MASTER LIST as from 23 June  2011

	12 COMMUNITY GOVERNANCE REVIEW - ROSS-ON-WYE
	Map showing Ross Parishes

	13 PAY POLICY STATEMENT
	PPS

	14 STANDARDS COMMITTEE
	15 HEREFORD & WORCESTER FIRE AND RESCUE AUTHORITY
	16 WEST MERCIA POLICE AUTHORITY

